Public Document Pack

To: Members of the Council

contact:
direct line:
e-mail:
my ref:

Ms. M. Bailey
01372 474179
mbailey@elmbridge.gov.uk
DS/MH

Tuesday 27 November 2018

Dear Sir or Madam,
Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Council will be held in the Council
Chamber, Civic Centre, Esher, on Wednesday, 5 December 2018
commencing at 7.00 pm for the transaction of the following business.
Yours faithfully

Chief Executive

Before the Mayor proceeds to conduct the business on the agenda there will be prayer.

Fire Precautions:
(To be read from the Chair if members of the public are present)
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, leave the room immediately. Proceed
downstairs by way of the main stairs or follow any of the emergency exit signs.
Leave the building and follow the signs to the fire assembly point in the Civic
Centre Car Park Recycling Area.

Page 1

Please Note: The Council permits the filming and/or recording of the public element of its
meetings. Electronic equipment and devices should be operated as unobtrusively as
possible and without disruption to the business of the meeting. The Council retains copyright
in all recordings. Filmed images should not be used or reproduced in a way that
misrepresents or distorts the nature of the proceedings or seeks to lower the public
reputation of the Council or an individual.
This meeting may also be filmed by the Council, broadcast live and subsequently retained
as an archive on the Council’s website (www.elmbridge.gov.uk). The images and sound
recording may be used for the purposes of public record or for training purposes. Entry to
the meeting room and use of the public seating area will be treated as consent to being
filmed.
Members of the public are also asked to ensure their mobile phones are switched off during
the course of the meeting, as they can interfere with the induction loop system and interrupt
the proceedings.
Free O2 wifi is available in all civic committee meeting rooms, including the council
chamber, for all to access.
Thank you for your co-operation.

Page 2

Access to Historical Information Relating to Reports
Please note that the items within this Agenda will usually have an historical context and
therefore may have been considered previously by the Council, Cabinet or its Committees.
Whilst reports appearing on this Agenda will include a background summary, Members
may wish to appraise themselves of the more detailed historical context and to do this may
wish to view previous reports / minutes on the matter which are available via the Council’s
website: www.elmbridge.gov.uk or intranet, either by searching on the relevant topic or by
committee reports. Copies of particular reports can be provided on request from the
Democratic Services contact shown on the front of the Agenda.

Part I Items
Page Nos.
1.

Declarations of Interest
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or as
soon as possible thereafter
(i)
(ii)

any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or
other interests arising under the Code of Conduct

in respect of any item(s) of business being considered at this meeting.
2.

Minutes

5 - 16

Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 3 October 2018.
3.

Mayor's Announcements

4.

Leader's Question Time
To receive any pre-notified questions addressed to the Leader / Member of
the Cabinet / Committee Chairman.
(The maximum time allowed for Leader’s question time is 40 minutes.)

5.

Leader's Update

6.

Urgency Decisions
To note that there have been no executive or non-executive decisions taken
as a matter of urgency since the last meeting of the Council.

7.

2019/20 Council Tax Base
The legislation requires that the Council Tax base calculations made must be
based on the position as at 30 November each year (30 November 2018 for
setting the 2019/20 Council Tax). The details of the 2019/20 tax base will
follow.
Page 3

To Follow

8.

Community Governance Review - Hersham

9.

Reports of Cabinet/Committees and Sub-Committee etc.

17 - 90

(a)

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 27 September 2018

91 - 100

(b)

* Shareholder Board - 10 October 2018

101 - 108

(c)

Appointments Sub-Committee - 10 October 2018

109 - 112

(d)

Cabinet - 10 October 2018

113 - 122

(e)

Individual Cabinet Member Decision Making - Planning Services 12 October 2018

123 - 126

(f)

Planning Committee - 16 October 2018

127 - 130

(g)

Individual Cabinet Member Decision Making - Housing 17 October 2018

131 - 134

(h)

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 18 October 2018

135 - 142

(i)

* Individual Cabinet Member Decision Making - Resources 31 October 2018

143 - 146

(j)

Licensing Committee - 12 November 2018

147 - 150

(k)

* Cabinet - 14 November 2018

151 - 178

(l)

Audit and Standards Committee - 21 November 2018

179 - 194

(m)

Planning Committee - 27 November 2018

To Follow

(n)

Individual Cabinet Member Decision Making - Leisure and Culture 28 November 2018

To Follow

(o)

Individual Cabinet Member Decision Making - Planning Services 29 November 2018

To Follow

Note:
An * against any of the above items indicates that included within the papers, and printed on
grey paper, is confidential and / or exempt information as detailed which is not for disclosure
to the press and public by virtue of the paragraphs specified within the reports of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).
If this is to be debated, the Council will be asked to take the items at the end of the meeting
having first resolved to exclude any members of the press or public present.

Page 4

Agenda Item 2.
These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the COUNCIL, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Elmbridge Borough Council
Minutes of Proceedings at the Meeting of the Council
held on Wednesday, 3 October 2018
Members of the Council:
* Mrs. S.R. Kapadia (Mayor)
* Mrs. M.C. Sheldon (Deputy Mayor)
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

Ms. R. Ahmed
D.J. Archer
M. Axton
S. Bax
M.J. Bennison
Tricia W. Bland
L.J. Brown
J.W. Browne
A.P. Burley
O.T. Chappell
B.J.F. Cheyne
A. Coomes
Mrs. C.J. Cross
A. Davis
G.P. Dearlove
I. Donaldson

*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

V.G. Eldridge
Mrs. C. Elmer
B. Fairbank
M.J. Freeman
C.R. Green
N. Haig-Brown
P.M. Harman
N. Houston
M.F. Howard
Mrs. C. James
A. Kelly
A.H. Kopitko
Rachael I. Lake
D.J. Lewis
Mrs. V. Macleod
Mrs. M. Marshall

*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

Mrs. D.M. Mitchell
Mrs. R. Mitchell
T.G. Oliver
A.R. Palmer
Mrs. K. Randolph
I. Regan
Mrs. C. Richardson
M. Rollings
C.R. Sadler
S.J. Selleck
Mrs. T. Shipley
Mrs. C. Sood
Mrs. J.R. Turner
S.J. Waugh

* Denotes attendance
23/18 Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.
24/18 Minutes
Resolved that the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 18 July 2018,
having been printed and circulated, be taken as read and signed as a correct
record.
25/18 Mayor's Announcements
The Mayor had continued with a busy schedule of engagements and
highlighted some of the key events, which included many school prize-giving
ceremonies; armed forces events; fairs & flower shows; and the official opening
of the Gymnastics Hall at the Elmbridge Xcel Leisure Centre which had been
attended by at least 100 children. All Members were encouraged to take the
opportunity to visit the new Gymnastics facility.
The Mayor had recently launched the “Gardener’s Under Glass” project at the
Molesey Centre, together with Heritage Day Celebrations including those in
Page 5

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the COUNCIL, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Cobham and Walton-On-Thames. The Mayor took the opportunity to thank the
Deputy Mayor who had taken part in the Cobham Heritage Open Day launch of
the duck race.
The Mayor was also pleased to advise that the Riparian Challenge had been a
great success and this year Councillor Mrs. M. Marshall had been the Mayoral
representative. The crew from the Thames Ditton Skiff and Punting Club had
been successful in retaining the Riparian Challenge Trophy. Thanks were
extended to all those who had taken part and in particular, the rowing crew, the
Skiff and Punting Club and the Worshipful Company of Scientific Instrument
Makers and the Mayor was delighted to announce that over £1,000 had been
raised for her Charity.
The Mayor also took the opportunity to highlight the Prudential Ride London
Race that was held on 29 July 2018. The Mayor thanked
Councillor A. Coomes; and two officers of the Council, Mr. Brooks and
Miss Ellera for taking part in the event and raising over £1000 in aid of her
chosen charity Elmbridge Rentstart.
Other engagements had included the Mayor’s Civic Day and the Ladies Lunch.
The Civic Day was held on 11 September 2017 and Mayors from other the
Surrey Boroughs had enjoyed some of Elmbridge’s places of interest, with the
day commencing at Brooklands Museum and then moving on to Chelsea
Football Club Training Ground. The day had concluded at Painshill Park. The
Ladies Lunch had also been a great success, attended by over 120 guests and
thanks were extended to all for their generosity in raising over £2,000 for her
Charity.
In terms of forthcoming engagements, the Mayor took the opportunity to
highlight the ‘Diwali’ themed Charity Ball to be held on 3 November 2018.
Tickets were still available to be purchased from the Mayor’s Secretary and
bookings would close on 15 October 2018.
The Mayor concluded her announcements by highlighting Remembrance
Sunday that included commemorating 100 years of Armistice Day. The Mayor
would be attending the wreath laying and service at St. James Church in
Weybridge on 11 November 2018. The Mayor encouraged all Members to join
her for the service. The Mayor also took the opportunity to highlight Elmbridge
Rentstart’s Carol Service at St. James Church in Weybridge on 29 November
2018. Details of these and other events would be provided in due course by
the Mayor’s Secretary.
26/18 Leader's Update
The Leader provided an update to Members in respect of traveller
encampments, bin collections, Hersham Village Hall and the Local Plan
timetable.

Page 6

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the COUNCIL, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Traveller Encampments
The Leader began by advising that in August the Council had obtained an
interim injunction preventing any further traveller encampments on publicly
owned spaces. This had proved very effective with only a small number of
vehicles entering the Borough and where they had done, they had moved on
within a couple of hours. The Injunction was the only one in Surrey and the
Council would be seeking to have it extended in the High Court the following
month. Irrespective of the injunction, officers had been requested to review all
150 public open space sites with Police colleagues to see if additional security
measures were possible.
A workshop had taken place in September 2018 involving all of the Leaders
and Chief Executives of the Surrey Districts and Boroughs, together with
Surrey County Council and the Police. There had been unanimous agreement
to work closely together to deal with what had become a significant issue in the
County and in particular to look at establishing a transit site in the County which
would in most cases empower the Police to move on encampments. However,
it was recognised that this was not a complete solution and there had been a
lengthy discussion regarding the Police using their existing powers where those
encampments were disruptive to local communities. It was expected that a
much clearer protocol would be developed between the Police and the Districts
& Boroughs so that residents were clear when the Police could exercise those
discretionary powers.
The Leader advised that he and the Chief Executive had also attended a public
meeting in Cobham, together with the Chief Constable of Surrey and the Police
& Crime Commissioner. This had been a lively meeting but it was helpful to
give residents the opportunity to hear what steps the Council had taken as well
as providing the opportunity to raise the matter of the perceived lack of action
by the Police in pursuing prosecutions for alleged criminal offences. The Chief
Constable had been under no illusion as to the strength of feeling of those
residents. These feelings were almost certainly shared by all residents of
Elmbridge. The Leader confirmed that the Council would continue to work hard
to find a long-term solution for the Borough and Members would be updated as
the action points from that workshop as they were taken forward.
Bin Collections
The number of reported missed bin collections continued to fall. Out of the
250,000 bins collected each week, in the first week of June there were over
1,200 missed collections reported. The figure had reduced to less than 300
during the last week. The improvement was also reflected in the number of
calls to Customer Services about waste and recycling issues which had also
dropped steadily since the summer.
The Leader took the opportunity to thank G.P. Dearlove as well as officers for
the huge amount of effort they had put into addressing what had become a
major problem and while the current performance was much better, they would

Page 7

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the COUNCIL, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

be continuing to press for even better service and much greater consistency
and resilience.
Hersham Village Hall
The Leader acknowledged that at the recent ‘Your Voice Matters’ meeting, held
in Hersham, a particular issue raised on the night had been the future of the
Hersham Village Hall.
The Leader reiterated that the Council was determined to listen to the views of
the residents and that the financial viability of renovating the village hall would
be closely looked at, alongside the feasibility study that was being
commissioned on the options around the possibility of replacing the existing
building. This was part of the recent Cabinet resolution to look at all options
including the retention of the existing buildings.
It was important to ensure that money was spent wisely whilst providing
excellent community facilities and it was expected to have the feasibility study
as soon as possible, together with updated costings for all necessary works to
the Village Hall to make it safe. Further consultation with all key residents and
stakeholders would also be undertaken at that point. The aim was to continue
to see the local community groups thrive and if that could be achieved by
modernising the two existing buildings economically and without having to
replace them on the existing site with a new community hub then that was what
would be done.
Local Plan
The Leader also provided an update in respect of the Local Plan. Members
were advised that progress was being made with pulling together a review of
suitable sites for potential development as well as those that were not proposed
to be developed, but the work was detailed and complicated.
It was expected that the preparatory work would be completed over the next
few months and that the new proposed Local Plan would be the subject of
public consultation next summer. There was a detailed item on the Cabinet
agenda on 27 September 2018, which set out the process to be followed.
It was important to get the Plan right so it was better that the right amount of
time be taken to do that rather than rush at it. All Members would be keen to
make sure that they were happy with the proposals and that good arguments
were in place for protecting the environment that made Elmbridge such a
delightful place to live.
27/18 Leader's Question Time
1.

Question asked by S.J. Selleck to the Portfolio Holder for Planning
Services, J.W. Browne
‘Is the Portfolio Holder in agreement with me that the current rules
Page 8

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the COUNCIL, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

applicable to CIL applications meet both the Government’s guidelines and
this Council’s interpretation of those Regulations?’
Response given by J.W. Browne
Thank you Madam Mayor and I’d like to thank Councillor Selleck for his
question and he’ll be pleased to know that I’m not going to give him a oneword answer.
This CIL Regulations are quite complex, stretching over a number of
Statutory Instruments, but we are satisfied that our Community
Infrastructure Levy is collected and allocated in accordance with the most
recent Regulations.
The levy of course, is a tool for local authorities to help deliver infrastructure
to support development and off-set its harm.
Colleagues might be interested to know that since we adopted CIL we have
allocated £7,331,233 through the strategic spending board and £3,314,444
through the local spending boards.
Colleagues and Madam Mayor, we are all aware that in the current financial
environment affecting all local authorities, these sums have assisted many
much needed and highly valued infrastructure projects to become reality.
Supplementary Question by S.J. Selleck
I thank the Portfolio Holder for his answer. I’m grateful for his explanation
to the residents and reminder to Councillors as to how effective CIL
collection is and how to use it for the future. Can the Portfolio Holder
confirm that there is no intention by the present Administration to amend
the rules applicable to CIL applications?
Response given by J.W. Browne
What I can say to Councillor Selleck is that whilst we will always keep the
rules under review, we need to make sure they’re fit for purpose and we
need to make sure that they will properly allow us to provide the money that
is needed for infrastructure projects, but there are no plans in place at the
moment.
2.

Question asked by Tricia W. Bland to the Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Transport, G.P. Dearlove
‘The installation of water fountains across the Borough would be an
appropriate use of the funding penalties from the Waste Contract by
reducing the amount of plastic waste, improving public access to tap water
on the go, and prove our determination to become a greener, more
sustainable Borough.

Page 9

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the COUNCIL, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

At the June Cabinet meeting, it was resolved that, and I quote “proposals
for the installation and maintenance of water fountains be fully costed and a
report brought back to Cabinet with recommended locations.”
As it is now four months since that meeting, can the Portfolio Holder please
update the Council as to when this report will be brought forward to Cabinet
and what does he think his recommendations will be?’
Response given by G.P. Dearlove
Thank you for the question. I have been are discussing options with
officers to ensure that we are getting value for money and that the scheme
is sustainable and future maintenance is not onerous. At the moment, I
have no specific recommendations, but it is planned that an item will be
presented to the November Cabinet meeting. This report will provide
outcomes, costs and recommendations.
3.

Question asked by D.J. Lewis to the Portfolio Holder for Environment and
Transport, G.P. Dearlove
‘Given the recent publicity about the need to reduce our usage of plastics,
would the Cabinet Member for Environment & Transport please advise
what actions are being taken by the Council to achieve this objective and to
increase the rates of recycling across the Borough, particularly with regard
to black plastic objects such as food trays and flower pots?’
Response given by G.P. Dearlove
I thank Councillor Lewis for his question.
Since the end of May the priority between Joint Waste Solutions and our
officers has been to bring back the roadside collection service to a standard
that the residents of Elmbridge expect. This we are achieving. We at
Elmbridge are working with other Surrey authorities through the Surrey
Waste Partnership to develop a shared strategy to reduce single use
plastics that cannot be recycled at the present time. This will enable us to
learn from what others are doing and by combining our resources, to have
a significant impact on the issue.
The commitments within this strategy are currently being worked on by
officers and I will be discussing them with colleagues from across the
county at the next Surrey Waste Partnership Members group meeting at
the end of October.
In terms of increasing recycling, the Surrey Waste Partnership are running
a number of communications campaigns over the rest of the year that focus
on our key material streams of food, textiles and recyclables. For
information, we also have some 20,000 subscribers now to the garden
waste service. These campaigns are supported by Elmbridge Borough
Council and also Joint Waste Solutions through local social media and
other communications channels. From 8 October, work is also currently
Page 10

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the COUNCIL, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

underway to increase recycling from a number of flatted developments in
the Borough, and we will take learnings from that work to make further
improvements in the recycling service offering to flats across the Borough.
The recycling market for some types of plastics is currently very
challenging. The County Council now manage the recycling collected within
Elmbridge and we continue to work with them on finding solutions to
recycling these difficult to recycle polymers.
Supplementary Question by Mrs. C. Elmer
I recently went on a recycling visit to Grundons with this Council. I was
lucky to get on a residents’ organised visit at short notice. The last time I
went was about 10 years ago. Do you have any plans to offer this to the
Council Members because we found it very, very interesting and I saw a lot
of improvement over the last 10 years. I just think everyone would find it
very useful if they were able to go on such a visit.
Response given by G.P. Dearlove
Yes, I think it’s an excellent idea. Its something I brought in, as you have
said, about 10 years ago, and we had 2 or 3 groups there. I myself, want to
go to the new centre at Charlton Lane and I think that after I have visited
that, I will come back and maybe suggest groups of 8 or 10, but I know
when we went to Grundons, 8 was about the limit because of Health and
Safety requirements. I will come back to you on that, thank you.
Supplementary Question by I. Donaldson
Having been heavily involved in recycling plants, one of the countries I was
involved in was using plastics mingled with tar macadam, which was
proving very successful and I’m thinking that would be a very good way out
of getting rid of our plastics and sorting out our roads. I just wondered if the
Portfolio Holder thinks this is a good idea?
Response given by G.P. Dearlove
The item that was raised earlier by Councillor Lewis was specifically about
black plastics. Black plastics are made up of so many mixtures and there is
no end product user at the moment. As I was trying to say from my
previous dialogue, we are looking with Surrey to see if there is an end user.
At the moment there isn’t. Until we get to that point I’m afraid I can’t mix
the plastic in the tarmac.
4.

Question asked by S. Bax to the Leader of the Council, T.G. Oliver
‘The Administration and our officers are to be congratulated on their
success at obtaining a High Court injunction to protect our parks and open
spaces. However, this is in stark contrast to the situation at Hurst Park in
my ward where we currently have five large dilapidated boats moored
without permission on Environment Agency land. They are operating as
Page 11

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the COUNCIL, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

commercial businesses, renting poor quality rooms to unsuspecting visitors
in some cases, and causing much distress and nuisance to our residents.
What can the Council do to assist the EA in removing this blight on area?’
Response given by T.G. Oliver
Thank you madam Mayor and I thank Councillor Bax for his question. As
you already probably know, the River has a complex range of land owners,
and the law of trespass only allows the owners of the land that the boats
are moored on to act against an unauthorised mooring. Amongst others the
land owners within the Borough include Elmbridge Borough Council, the
Environment Agency and Network Rail, but our ownership is only in a
minority of cases.
Where moorings do occur on Elmbridge land, for example Cigarette Island,
we have acted against the boat owners. Indeed, in June we obtained an
Injunction against one boat owner and required him not to moor any vessel
owned or controlled by him. The riverbank was then cleared. Officers
continue to encourage other land owners to take the same action.
The Environment Agency undertakes regular boat registration checks
including unauthorised moored boats. All boats are required to have valid
registration including boat safety certification and insurance. If boats are
found not to comply, then the Environment Agency will seek to enforce and
will prosecute. Unfortunately, this Council has no jurisdiction in relation to
environmental or health and safety matters.
We continue to work with colleagues and neighbouring Authorities to seek
a long-term solution to this problem. We are looking at the possibility
of joint Injunctions against specific persistent boat owners and also Public
Space Protection Orders (PSPO) with other neighbouring Councils, along
the length of the River Thames, but this is not necessarily an easy option
and is not without challenge or risk because, in relation to an Injunction,
there is a need to identify the nuisance operators who are constantly
moving locations, and, for a PSPO, there is a need to collate sufficient
evidence of nuisance and harm to apply for a proportionate and appropriate
remedy. All those issues and options are being actively investigated and
there is a regular liaison with the Environment Agency.
Supplementary Question by S. Bax
I looked online where some of the boats are being advertised and some of
the reviews from people that have stayed on them are quite eye-opening,
and some would be amusing if the situation wasn’t so serious. I welcome
what I’ve heard about closer working and I would ask the Leader if he
would agree with me that if it’s found that further powers are needed by
Councils or by the Environment Agency, that Elmbridge will play a part in
lobbying the Government to secure those powers because it’s a situation
that really needs to be addressed.

Page 12

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the COUNCIL, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Response given by T.G. Oliver
Indeed, I am happy to confirm.
Supplementary Question by M. Axton
Like Councillor Bax, I also get a lot of enquiries from residents who are
bothered by these boats and I think the Leader’s answer really highlighted
the main problem here, that the legal provisions are inadequate. The
people who own these boats are fully aware of the law and they do exploit
it. Often, on the very day of a court hearing, which has taken a long time to
get there, they move the boat to another section of land. So it really is the
legal provisions that are inadequate and because of this I wrote to our local
MP, Mr. Dominic Raab asking if there is anything he can do and he has
actually written to his Cabinet colleagues. Were you aware of that, and if
not, I hope that’s of use to you.
Response given by T.G. Oliver
No, Councillor Axton, I wasn’t aware that you had written to
Mr. Dominic Raab MP, but I have had lots of correspondence with local
residents over the summer and I’m aware that there is joint working, which
is absolutely key to this. Anything anybody can do to increase the powers
of this authority or to assist in requiring others to take those steps, so much
the better.
Supplementary Question by I. Donaldson
This week I had the opportunity of cycling our stretch of the riverbank and
of the slum boats, or whatever you like to call them, not one of them was
licensed, because I was checking them, there was litter and there was filth
and now they don’t bother moving the boats if they get an Injunction, they
just hole the boats and leave them there sinking. They are polluting our
river and since we take water now from our river and we use it for drinking,
somehow, we must be able to, wouldn’t you think Leader, we could put
something together about them polluting the water.
Response given by T.G. Oliver
That is an issue for the Environment Agency, if there’s water pollution but I
think we’ve made the point. I hope the answer that I gave to the original
question does reassure Members that we are doing absolutely everything
that we can. It’s an issue and I hope that at some point we can get a longterm solution.
Supplementary Question by C.R. Sadler
The issue of these boats extends right along the Thames and certainly in
Walton Central we have people living on both sides of the river. My
question is, you mentioned the Environment Agency doing these checks,
Page 13

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the COUNCIL, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

can we ask them to report to us on a regular basis as to how many of these
checks they have done, say once a quarter, because, like Councillor
Donaldson, I’m not convinced that they are done regularly and I think that if
they were to be done regularly, and if we were to be given the chance to
understand how much work they are putting in to it, then that might go
some way to improving the local residents’ concerns.
Response given by T.G. Oliver
I think that’s a very good idea. I’m looking at Councillor Nigel Haig-Brown
because I think that would be a very suitable subject for the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee to have a look at.
28/18 Urgency Decisions
Members noted that there had been no executive or non-executive decisions
taken as a matter of urgency since the last meeting of the Council.
29/18 Reports of Cabinet/Committees and Sub-Committee etc.
Resolved that, subject to the amendments noted below, the reports of the Cabinet
and the following Committees at the meetings held on the dates shown, be
received and the recommendations contained therein be approved:
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

12 July 2018

Individual Cabinet Member Decision Making – Planning
Services

23 July 2018

Local Spending Board – Hinchley Wood and Weston
Green, Long Ditton and Thames Ditton

24 July 2018

Audit and Standards Committee

25 July 2018

Special Meeting of the Planning Committee

30 July 2018

Planning Committee

4 September 2018

Individual Cabinet Member Decision Making – Planning
Services

5 September 2018

Page 14

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the COUNCIL, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Cabinet

19 September 2018

Minute No. 24/18 – Property Projects
C.R. Green, seconded by S.J. Selleck, moved the following amendment:
‘That recommendation (d) be amended to read ‘with regard to the Hersham
Village Hall, all options be considered including modernisation and renovation of
the hall.’’

By affirmation of the meeting, the Mayor declared the amendment to be carried.
30/18 Notice of Motion
Members of the Council considered a Notice of Motion which was moved by
G.P. Dearlove and seconded by T.G. Oliver.
The Notice of Motion was in the following terms:
‘For several years now, the Council has supported the Small Business
Saturday initiative as part of its commitment to supporting the local economy
and our fantastic independent businesses. This year the event falls on
Saturday 1 December, and I'd ask the Council to show its support for
Elmbridge High Street Shops and Businesses, by agreeing to provide free
parking for the day in our main and local car parks in our towns and villages.
As in previous years I will also be agreeing three additional free parking events
for the week preceding Christmas. Therefore, I propose that free parking is
provided in our local and main car parks on Saturday 1 December, to support
the Small Business Saturday initiative in Elmbridge.’
By affirmation of the meeting, the Notice of Motion was carried.

-------

The meeting commenced at 7.00 pm and concluded at 7.47 pm

Mrs. S.R. Kapadia
Mayor

Page 15

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the COUNCIL, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Democratic Services Officer
Ms. B. Greenstein

Head of Democratic Services

Other Officers in attendance
R. Moran
Mrs. S. Selvanathan
R. Lee
Mrs. C. Herbert
Mrs. P. Phillips
Ms. F. Ainsworth

-

Chief Executive
Strategic Director and Deputy Chief Executive
Strategic Director
Law Practice Manager
Committee and Member Services Officer
Management Accountant

Page 16

Agenda Item 8.
Committee:

Council

Date of meeting:

5 December 2018

Subject:
Lead Officer:
Portfolio Holder:
Link to Council Priorities:
Exempt information:
Delegated status:

Community Governance Review – Hersham
Head of Democratic Services
Leader – Councillor T.G. Oliver
All
None
For resolution

Executive Summary:
Further to the report to the Meeting of the Council on 18 July 2018, this report
updates Members on the conduct of a Community Governance Review including
the results of the consultation, and seeks a decision on whether or not to establish
a new parish (community) council for Hersham.
Recommendation: that the Council is asked to:
(a)

note the detailed report on the undertaking of the Community
Governance Review for Hersham and the outcome of the consultation;

(b)

having regard to the Community Governance Review, and the outcome
of the consultation, determine either:
- that a parish council for Hersham be established confirming its name
and boundary;
OR
- that no change to current arrangements be made; and

(c)

delegate authority to the Head of Democratic Services to take the
necessary next steps and to inform the electors and organisations
affected by the proposal of the Council’s decision.

Report:
1.

Budget and policy framework

1.1

The conduct of a Community Governance Review (CGR) and the
associated decisions about the formation or otherwise of new parish
councils is a matter for Council.

2.

Background

2.1

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (as
amended by the Legislative Reform (Community Governance Review) Order
2015), devolved decision-making powers for parish area reviews from what
is now the Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE)

Page 17

to principal councils, subject to adherence to regulations and directions from
the (then) Department for Communities and Local Government and the
Electoral Commission. Principal councils in this context are specifically
district / borough councils in England. The process for considering a change
is now termed a Community Governance Review (CGR). These powers
include the creation and grouping of parishes and everything pertaining to
their electoral arrangements.
2.2

Following completion of a CGR, should the Council decide to change the
electoral arrangements for Elmbridge and create a parish council for
Hersham, a Community Governance Reorganisation Order will be made, to
give effect to the change. The first parish election would be held in May
2019. If the Council decides to take no action / not to support the creation of
a new parish council, the duty to respond to another Community
Governance Petition does not arise if the new petition is received within a
two-year period following completion of the first Review (s.83(3) Local
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007). The area
requested by the new petition does not have to exactly mirror the previous
review area either for the duty to be disapplied: it only needs to “cover the
whole or a significant part of the area to which the previous review related”.
The Council would, however, retain a discretion and a power to carry out a
second review (but not a duty) under sections 82 and 85 of the Act.

2.3

On 27 February 2018, Elmbridge Borough Council received a valid petition
from the Hersham Community Council Steering Group, signed by 731 local
government electors, requesting that a CGR is conducted to consider the
establishment of a parish council for Hersham, to be called the ‘Hersham
Community Council’. A map of the proposed area for a parish council for
Hersham was included in the Petition.

2.4

The Petition proposes that a proposed Hersham Community Council would
cover the following areas within the Borough of Elmbridge:
- the Ward of Hersham Village (Polling Districts MA, MB and MC);
- part of the Ward of Esher (Polling District AC)
- part of the Ward of Oatlands and Burwood Park (Polling District OD);
- part of the Ward of Weybridge St. George’s Hill (Polling District PD);
- part of the Ward of Cobham and Downside (Polling District HC).
It is also located within the Hersham Division of Surrey County Council and
forms part of the Esher and Walton Parliamentary Constituency. A map of
the proposed Hersham Community Council area is attached at Appendix ‘A’.

2.5

The petition indicated that ‘We the undersigned local government electors in
the area shown shaded on the map overleaf call on Elmbridge Borough
Council to establish a parish council to be called Hersham Community
Council for the area defined overleaf.’ The petition states that ‘a new
Community Council would give substantial power back to the people of
Hersham; create a strong identity; receive up to 25% of money collected
from local planning charges (community infrastructure levy – CIL) and use

Page 18

this money for locally agreed projects to benefit the whole community; have
the authority and ability to apply for grants for specific local causes;
encourage and support new and existing groups – directly, efficiently,
financially, openly and focused on Hersham.’
2.6

The Hersham Community Council Steering Group have indicated that there
is no suggestion that a Hersham Community Council would generally take
on roles / responsibilities which are currently more appropriately provided by
the Borough and County Councils.

2.7

The Hersham Community Council Steering Group responded to the
consultation setting out the aims and objectives of the proposed Community
Council and their response is reproduced within the outcome of the
consultation set out later in this report.

2.8

At its meeting on 18 July 2018, the Borough Council approved a Terms of
Reference for the Review and delegated authority to the Head of
Democratic Services to conduct the CGR and to take all necessary action to
comply with the Council’s statutory obligations in that regard. The original
Petition (with names and addresses redacted) was included in the Terms of
Reference for the Review which, for ease of reference, is attached as
Appendix ‘A’ to this report.

3.

Guidance and criteria to be used for a CGR

3.1

In undertaking the Review, the Council must be guided by Part 4 of the
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, the relevant
parts of the Local Government Act 1972, Guidance on Community
Governance Reviews issued in accordance with Section 100(4) of the Local
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 by the Department
of Communities and Local Government and The Electoral Commission in
April 2008.

3.2

When undertaking a CGR, the Council must have regard to the need to
secure that community governance in the area under review:



Reflects the identities and interests of the community in that area; and
is effective and convenient,

and the Council should take into account influential factors such as the
impact of community governance arrangements on community cohesion and
the size, population and boundaries of a local community or parish.
3.3

The Council is also obliged to consult the local government electors for the
area under review and any other person or body which appears to have an
interest in the review and must take into account any representations
received in connection with the review. The Guidance indicates that this
might include local businesses, as well as local public and voluntary
organisations.

Page 19

3.4

The Terms of Reference for the Review referred to earlier, contained
background information, the original petition and set out the process for the
Review, the consultation themes, timetable and list of consultees.

4.

Consultation

4.1

As already referred to, when undertaking a Review, the Council is required
to consult the local government electors for the area under review as well as
any other person or body which appear to have an interest in the Review.

4.2

The consultation, in order to be inclusive, open and transparent, included
local businesses as well as local public and voluntary organisations.
Although such bodies would not be responsible for paying the additional
precept should a Parish Council be established, they might want the
opportunity to provide their views on whether a Parish Council would
improve the community governance arrangements in the area.

4.3

The consultation sought views on whether or not a Parish Council for
Hersham should be established. Views were also sought on other related
aspects of community governance arrangements in the area, such as
funding by levying a precept on the Council Tax paid by the residents within
the boundary of a parish council and the potential number of parish
councillors. The most effective and efficient way of capturing the views of
the local government electors and other interested parties was to undertake
a consultation over a 12 week period, which could be completed on-line, or
responding by e-mail or by letter.

4.4

A copy of the consultation questions and the outcome is attached at
Appendix ‘B’.

4.5

The Terms of Reference for the Review documentation in paper form, was
sent to 9,785 registered electors within the area of the Review, plus the
individuals / groups listed in the Terms of Reference. Specifically, 9,785
electors; 48 Borough Councillors and the two Members of Parliament
covering the Elmbridge area; two County Councillors together with Surrey
County Council; Claygate Parish Council; the Electoral Commission; the
Local Government Boundary Commission for England; five Residents’
Associations; seven churches; 10 schools; 11 nursery/preschools;
Neighbourhood Watch Elmbridge and 194 businesses within the area of the
review were sent or emailed the Terms of Reference and invited to give their
views. In total, 10,067 electors / interested individuals / businesses / groups
were sent the Terms of Reference of the Community Governance Review
and invited to give their views by way of the consultation.

4.6

A dedicated web page on the Borough Council’s website was set up that
contained the background information and a map of the proposed area
under Review.

4.7

The consultation took place over a 12 week period and ended at 5p.m. on
Tuesday 23 October 2018.

Page 20

4.8

After validating the responses and discounting a very small number of
anonymous or duplicate responses, the total number of responses is 632,
which represents a response rate of 6.46%.

4.9

The outcome of the consultation is set out in detail at Appendix ‘B’.
Considerations when undertaking a Review

5.

Community Governance, Identities and Interests of Local Area

5.1

Under Section 93 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health
Act, a Principal Council must comply with various duties when undertaking a
Review, including:
1.

Having regard to the need to secure that community governance
within the area under review:
a. Reflects the identities and interests of the community in that area
b. Is effective and convenient;
2. Taking into account any other arrangements, apart from those
relating to parishes and their institutions that have already been
made, or that could be made for the purposes of community
representation or community engagement in respect of the area
under review;
3. Taking into account any representations received in connection with
the Review.
5.2

Size, population and boundaries are linked to both community cohesion and
the identity of local communities, but more specifically to community
governance being effective and convenient. The guidance stresses that
whatever boundaries are selected they need to be, and likely to remain,
easily identifiable and reflect the “no man’s land” between communities
represented by areas of low population or barriers such as rivers, roads or
railways.

5.3

The guidance acknowledges that how people perceive where they live is
significant in considering the identities and interests of local communities
and depends on a range of circumstances, often best defined by local
residents. The pattern of daily life in each of the communities, the local
centres for education, and childcare, shopping, community activities,
worship, leisure pursuits, transport facilities and means of communication
will have an influence on the extent to which all of the residents in the
proposed area share a sense of community although the focus of people's
day-to-day activities may not be reflected in their feeling of community
identity, if for instance overwhelming historic loyalty is to another feature.

5.4

In addition, the Council is required to take account of any statutory guidance
published by the Secretary of State. In March 2010 the Department for
Communities and Local Government and the Local Government Boundary
Commission for England published such Guidance on Reviews.

Page 21

5.5

Whilst the guidance is generally supportive of parish councils, it is not
prescriptive and does not state that they should be routinely formed. Indeed,
parts of the guidance stresses that the statutory duty is to take account of
any representations received and gives the view that where a council has
conducted a review following receipt of a petition, it will remain open to the
Council to make a recommendation which is different to the
recommendation the petitioners wish the council to make. It also
acknowledges that a recommendation to abolish or establish a parish
council may negatively impact on community cohesion and that there is
flexibility for councils not to recommend that the matters included in the
petition must be implemented if they judge that to do so would not be in the
interests of either the local community or surrounding communities and
where the effect would be likely to damage or undermine community
cohesion.

5.6

It is important therefore, that the Council takes into consideration all the
matters required by the legislation and makes its decision on the outcome of
the Review based on the evidence presented, including the outcome of the
consultation, together with the issues and evidence set out in this report.

5.7

In terms of community governance arrangements already in place, a Surrey
County Councillor represents the Hersham Division; three Elmbridge
Borough Councillors represent Hersham Village Ward; and Hersham is
represented by the Member of Parliament for the Esher and Walton
Constituency. The Surrey County Council Local Committee enables
authorities to fulfil their community governance roles, along with other
examples such as the Borough’s Esher and Hersham Local Spending
Board. Specifically, the established Esher and Hersham Local Spending
Boards’ remit includes distributing Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
funds to local projects. It is worth noting, for example, that election turnout
for the area under review is relatively strong when compared with others in
the Borough of Elmbridge, as illustrated by the turnout figures of the
Borough Council Elections held in May 2018, attached at Appendix ‘C’.

5.8

It is difficult to capture the essence and activities in entirety of a particular
area but for the purpose of this Community Governance Review, the main
aspects are summarised below.

5.9

Hersham has as Centre with a supermarket and local businesses; Centre for
the Community; Technology Park; Hersham Village Market; and active
places of worship. Indeed, the Walton and Hersham Foodbank can be
accessed from St. Peter’s Church.

5.10

It can be seen that the local population within the area of Review has an
aptitude to form local associations and partnerships to address local issues
and that there is a range of such groups in the Hersham area. These
include residents’ groups, specialist and general interest groups and faith
groups / organisations, a range of mother and toddler groups etc. The views
of many of these groups and organisations were sought in respect of the

Page 22

Community Governance Review consultation. There is clearly a number
and range of organisations operating in the Hersham area, or providing
services for the local electorate, all of which support the existing identities
and interests of the local area.
5.11

It would appear from the information available, that the residents of
Hersham make good use of the various methods for engagement to make
their views known to the Council, asking questions and interacting with their
ward Councillors regarding a range of issues. This is evidenced by the
following examples.

5.12

High turnout of local residents to the ‘Your Voice Matters’ event held on 1
October 2018 at the Hersham Centre.

5.13

There is an active social media presence from Hersham residents and
specifically, a high level of interaction with Borough and County Councillors
through this platform is consistently evident.

5.14

Hersham residents are active in the Borough Council’s Residents’ Panel,
contributing ideas and providing feedback on a range of Council services
and proposals.

5.15

The Borough Council has held a number of Elmbridge Leisure Live events
over recent years. One such event was held on The Green, Hersham, in the
summer of 2016. There were over 40 stands with an estimated 3,000 to
3,500 people attending, making it one of the most successful of these
events to date.

5.16

A number of Hersham businesses are members of the Elmbridge Business
network. The owners of the Hersham Technology Park sit on the Elmbridge
Business Leaders Board.

5.17

The Hersham in Bloom programme is active and thriving. Hersham in
Bloom have worked with a local supermarket and are also currently seeking
new participants to further expand their reach.

5.18

The examples referred to in the above paragraphs all contribute to evidence
that the existing arrangements for community governance, community
cohesion, together with the identity and interests of the local area are strong.

5.19

All this evidence would appear to confirm that a healthy contribution is made
by Hersham residents to the decision-making activities of the Council, to the
management and maintenance of their neighbourhood, to overcome
difficulties and benefit community cohesion. It could be concluded that the
existing community governance arrangements reflect the identities of the
local population affected by the proposal. The majority of respondents to
the consultation are satisfied with the existing arrangements and do not
support the creation of a parish council for Hersham.

Page 23

6.

Efficiency and Effectiveness

6.1

As stated previously, an important factor for the Council to take into account
is the extent to which the community governance arrangements in place and
those being proposed are effective and convenient. The Guidance clarifies
that a parish should reflect a distinctive and recognisable community of
place, with its own sense of identity and that whatever boundaries are
selected, they need to be, and likely to remain, easily identifiable.

6.2

The current Ward boundaries have been in place since the Local
Government Boundary Commission for England’s Electoral Review
completed in 2016. The number of Borough Councillors were reduced from
60 to 48 and accordingly, there were changes to the Ward boundaries
across the Borough of Elmbridge. The new Ward of Hersham Village was
created at this time. Prior to this Electoral Review, the Wards of Hersham
North and Hersham South covered a large proportion of the area now
known as Hersham Village, with differing boundaries. A portion of the
former Ward of Hersham North now forms part of Esher Ward.

6.3

The boundaries for the proposed parish council are not easily identifiable in
all places for the conduct of effective and efficient elections because the
boundary does not exactly match those of existing Wards. Another Local
Government Boundary Review would be needed to achieve Ward
boundaries that were coterminous with the parish.

6.4

Of the consultees that supported the creation of a Parish Council for
Hersham, the majority of this group of responders were generally in favour
of the proposed name ‘Hersham Community Council’. However, a
proportion of those responders do not consider Burwood Park or Cobham to
be linked by community identity to be encompassed within the area of
Hersham.

6.5

With regard to a precept value, the Terms of Reference referred to the
Claygate Parish Council levy being a precept of £48,860 on the Council Tax
paid by the residents of the Parish which is £14.15 for a Band D property. In
addition, the Council pays the Parish £2,600 as a grant which compensates
the Parish for the loss suffered as a result of the Localisation of Council Tax
Benefits (a reduction in the billable number of Band D properties from the
discounts given as ‘Council Tax Benefits’). This gives a guideline only as
the precept could only be determined once a boundary and number of
properties for a new parish was known. The extent to which local electors
are willing to pay an additional precept for a new parish council is one of the
key factors for the Council to consider and the consultation exercise clearly
shows that a majority of respondents were not willing to do so on the
grounds that there was no discernible benefit and that they could not afford
it.

6.6

A large proportion of respondents to the consultation expressed concern
about the precept that a new parish council might raise and more
specifically, that the proposal did not sufficiently justify the formation of a

Page 24

body to deal with issues in a more effective or efficient manner than was in
place already. It could be deduced, therefore, that a newly created parish
council for Hersham would not be effective or convenient based on the lack
of real evidence about the extent to which the parish council could viably
deliver quality services not already being provided by the Borough and
County Councils.
6.7

Ultimately the key question asked of the electors and other organisations
about the proposed new parish council for Hersham was whether they
thought the existing community governance arrangements in Elmbridge
should remain or whether a new parish council should be created. The
outcome of the consultation was that 55.7% of those who responded
thought that the existing arrangements should be kept and 43.8% wanted to
change the arrangements to create a new parish council for Hersham. 0.5%
of respondents were unsure.

6.8

The cost of parish councils should also be referred to. Whilst the delivery of
a parish election is undertaken by the Borough Council, the cost element in
respect of the parish council election is borne by the Parish Council itself. It
is not necessarily appropriate to compare the election costs of Claygate
Parish Council as the electorate numbers for the proposed parish council for
Hersham are greater.

6.9

If a new parish council wished to provide new or additional services, they
would have to raise a precept which would not be in keeping with the
responses from the consultation about electors not being willing to pay an
additional precept because they can see no clear benefit.

6.10

With regard to a precept, out of the 629 respondents, 271 did not want to
pay an additional precept; 187 supported paying an additional precept; and
171 made no comment in this regard.

7.

Other forms of community representation

7.1

The Council is obliged to consider other forms of community governance or
representation that could be put in place when undertaking this Review. It
would be possible for various alternative forms of engagement forums to be
established instead of a parish council. A specific purpose for such an
engagement forum would need to be identified that is currently unmet by the
existing governance arrangements. Members will be aware that other forms
of community representation such as the Local Committee and Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Local Spending Boards already exist with differing
status, format and management arrangements. Clearly, it would be for
Members to consider whether they feel there is a need for any other forms
of community governance or representation.

8.

Conclusions

8.1

Taking into consideration the responses from the consultation, evidence
gathered and summarised in this report, the following conclusions are made:

Page 25

 The Hersham Community Council Steering Group submitted a petition
signed by 731 local government electors from within the area under
Review, seeking the creation of a parish council for Hersham, to be
known as the Hersham Community Council. Their consultation response,
setting out the aims and objectives of the Community Council is
reproduced within the consultation outcome;
 The outcome of the Community Governance Review consultation does
not show broad support for the creation of a new parish council for
Hersham;
 Given a response rate of 6.46% and that every registered elector
received a paper copy Terms of Reference and consultation, the level of
non-response appears to indicate that the issue of a new parish council
does not sufficiently engage the electorate in the area and has not shown
a wider demand for change in the governance arrangements;
 No obvious gaps in representation or resident involvement in civic affairs
or other democratic shortcomings have been identified by petitioners or
respondents that would naturally be filled by the creation of a community
council. To this extent, it remains unclear what civic space a community
council is intended to occupy;
 The existing community governance arrangements in Hersham appear to
reflect the identities and interests of people in Hersham and are effective
and convenient and are supported by a majority of those who took part in
the consultation.
9.

Communicating the outcome of the Review

9.1

As soon as practicable after making a decision as to the outcome of the
Review, the Borough Council must publish its decision and its reasons for
taking that decision and take sufficient steps to ensure that persons who
may be interested in the review are informed of the decision and the reason
for it. Neither the legislation nor Guidance specifies who should be informed
or how this is to be achieved.

9.2

The decision will be conveyed in writing to the Hersham Community Council
Steering Group who submitted the original petition. Officers will update the
Council’s web pages relating to the Review so that interested parties can
read the related Council reports and the Council’s decision, as well as
issuing a press release to maximise the coverage in the local media. This is
considered to be the most effective way of publicising the recommendations,
decision and reasons.

Financial implications:
The table below shows a breakdown of the best estimate of total costs spent on
the consultation process and other costs associated with the CGR:

Page 26

Activity

Printing and collation of Terms of Reference /
Consultation document

Estimated
costs to
date
£
4,017.77

Outgoing envelopes (no reply envelopes)

528.00

Outgoing postage (no incoming postage)

3,000.91
£7,546.68

TOTAL

In addition, and whilst more difficult to quantify, it is also acknowledged that
additional resources in Officer time has been utilised in respect of undertaking this
Community Governance Review, mainly within the Democratic Services Team, but
also with support from Legal Services and Organisational Development Teams.
There is no specific budget provision for the conduct of the CGR or the
consultation process required. At the conclusion of the process, a bid for funding
from the Community Governance Review New Burdens Fund will be made to the
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government to recover identified
costs. This Fund is available to support local authorities that are required to
undertake a CGR.
Environmental/Sustainability Implications:
None for the purposes of this report.
Legal implications:
The Council will make its decision on next steps following the conclusion of the
Community Governance Review by considering all the representations received
and reaching a judgement on the basis of the statutory criteria. The principal duty
placed on the Council is to have regard to the need to secure that community
governance for the review area reflects the identities and interests of that
community and is effective and convenient. Whatever the Council decides, it will
publicise the outcome of the review with the reasons for the decision it has made.
If the decision is to create a new council for the area, that step would be
implemented by a reorganisation order. A copy of a model order can be obtained
from the Housing Communities and Local Government website. The order will
include a map showing the effects of the decision in detail. The order and map
would be deposited at the Civic Centre and be made available for public
inspection.
Equality Implications:
The relevance of the public sector equality duty to the recommendation in this
report is considered to be negligible and the Council’s decision is not expected to
have any disproportionate impact on people with protected characteristics under
equalities legislation.

Page 27

Risk Implications:
Failure to undertake a Community Governance Review in accordance with
legislation and guidance would damage the reputation of the Council. The Council
agreed a Terms of Reference for the Community Governance Review and this
report sets out the outcome of the Review, including the results of the consultation.
Community Safety Implications:
None for the purposes of this report.
Principal Consultees:
Chief Executive
Head of Legal Services
Background papers:
None.
Enclosures/Appendices:
Appendix ‘A’ – Terms of Reference of the Community Governance Review including map
Appendix ‘B’ - Consultation Questions and Outcome of the Consultation
Appendix ‘C’ - Results of the Borough Elections – May 2018
Contact details:
Ms. B. Greenstein, Head of Democratic Services
01372 474174, bgreenstein@elmbridge.gov.uk

Page 28

Appendix A

ELMBRIDGE BOROUGH COUNCIL
COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW 2018
PROPOSED HERSHAM COMMUNITY COUNCIL
DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE
What is a Community Governance Review?
A Community Governance Review is a review of the whole or part of the
Borough to consider one or more of the following:
•
•

•

•

Creating, merging, altering or abolishing parishes;
The naming of a parish and the style of a new parish (i.e. whether to call it a
“village”, “community” or “neighbourhood” with the council similarly named as a
“village council”, “community council” or “neighbourhood council”);
The electoral arrangements for parishes (including council size, the
number of councillors to be elected to the council, and parish warding),
and
Grouping parishes under a common parish council or de-grouping parishes.

The Borough Council is required to ensure that community governance within the
area under review will be:
•
•

reflective of the identities and interests of the community in that area; and
is effective and convenient.

In doing so, the Community Governance Review is required to take into account:
•
•

The impact of community governance arrangements on community cohesion; and
The size, population and boundaries of a local community or parish.

The government has emphasised that recommendations made in a Community
Governance Review ought to bring about improved community engagement, more
cohesive communities, better local democracy and result in more effective and
convenient delivery of local services.
A Community Governance Review is carefully considered by the Principal Authority
in accordance with legislation and the Guidance on Community Governance
Reviews issued previously by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government, as published in 2008.
A petition has been submitted to Elmbridge Borough Council, as Principal Authority.
If the petition area has more than 2,500 electors, the signatures of 7.5% of those
electors would need to be obtained in order for the petition to be valid. The Council
would need to validate the signatures and, provided the threshold is met, would then
conduct a Community Governance Review within 12 months of the submission.

Why are we carrying out this Community Governance Review?
A submission has been made by Hersham Community Council Steering Group of a
valid community governance petition signed by 731 local government electors within
the proposed Hersham Community Council area, to create a ‘Hersham Community

Page 29

Council’, which has triggered a Community Governance Review. The proposed
Hersham Community Council area specifically covers the following Wards/Polling
Districts within the Borough of Elmbridge:
•
•
•
•
•

the Ward of Hersham Village (Polling Districts MA, MB and MC);
part of the Ward of Esher (Polling District AC);
part of the Ward of Oatlands and Burwood Park (Polling District OD);
part of the Ward of Weybridge St. George’s Hill (Polling District PD); and
part of the Ward of Cobham and Downside (Polling District HC).

Elmbridge Borough Council, as Principal Authority, is required under Section 83(2) of
the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 to undertake a
Community Governance Review to consider the petitioners’ request, which is as
follows:
“We the undersigned local government electors in the area shown shaded
on the map overleaf call on Elmbridge Borough Council to establish a
Parish Council to be called “Hersham Community Council” for the area
defined overleaf.”
A copy of the full petition is attached at Annex 1 to this document.
The boundary for the proposed Hersham Community Council is as follows:
•
•
•
•

to the north is the railway line;
to the south and east is the River Mole;
to the west is the south side of Queens Road from the railway line at Sir Richard’s
Bridge to the junction with Seven Hills Road not including the roundabout; and
to the west is the whole of the east side of Seven Hills Road and the south side of
Portsmouth Road to the Elmbridge Borough Boundary.

The proposed Hersham Community Council covers the following areas within the
Borough of Elmbridge:
•
•
•
•
•

the Ward of Hersham Village (Polling Districts MA, MB and MC);
part of the Ward of Esher (Polling District AC);
part of the Ward of Oatlands and Burwood Park (Polling District OD);
part of the Ward of Weybridge St. George’s Hill (Polling District PD); and
part of the Ward of Cobham and Downside (Polling District HC).

It is also located within the Hersham Division of Surrey County Council and forms
part of the Esher and Walton Parliamentary Constituency.
A map of the proposed Hersham Community Council area is attached as Annex 2 to
this document.

What do parish councils do?
By way of information, a summary of the general powers and duties of parish
councils is attached as Annex 3. The list is intended as a summary of the main
potential functions of parish councils. It is not intended to be a definitive list of such

Page 30

functions. The Hersham Community Council Steering Group have indicated that
there is no suggestion that a Hersham Community Council would generally take on
roles which are currently more appropriately provided by the Borough and County
Councils.
Electoral Arrangements
Ordinary Parish Elections are held once every 4 years, with all Councillors being
elected at the same time. The standard Parish electoral cycle is for elections in 2015
and every 4 years after 2015. However, Parish elections may be held in other years
so that they coincide with elections in associated district or London Borough Wards in
order to share costs.
New or revised Parish electoral arrangements come into force at ordinary Parish
elections. Alternatively, if new or revised Parish electoral arrangements are to be
implemented in the third year of sitting Councillors’ terms of office, provision can be
made to alter the term of office of Councillors, enabling the Parish to co-ordinate with
its normal year of election.
Council Size
Council size is the term used to describe the number of Councillors to be elected to
the whole Council. The 1972 Act, as amended, specifies that each Parish Council
must have at least 5 Councillors: there is no maximum number. In practice, there is a
wide variation of Council size between Parish Councils. That variation appears to be
influenced by population.
The National Association of Local Councils (NALC) published guidance in 1988 on
the suggested number of Parish Councillors to be allocated depending on the size of
the population being represented. NALC recommended that a Council of no more
than the legal minimum requirement of five Members was inconveniently small and
that it considers that the practical minimum should be seven. It considered that local
council business does not usually require a large body of Councillors and business
convenience makes it appropriate to suggest that the practical maximum could be 25.
However, it is important to note that ‘the conduct of Parish Council business does not
usually require a large body of Councillors’ is re-iterated by the Government.
Warding
Parish warding should be considered as part of a community governance review.
Parish warding is the division of a parish into wards for the purpose of electing
councillors. This includes the number and boundaries of any wards, the number of
councillors to be elected for any ward and the names of wards.
There is likely to be a stronger case for the warding of urban parishes, unless they
have particularly low electorates or are based on a particular locality. In urban areas
community identity tends to focus on a locality, whether this be a housing estate,
shopping centre or community facilities.
Accordingly, and in line with Claygate Parish Council, it is considered appropriate that
the proposed Hersham Community Council would not be a Warded Parish.

Page 31

The Present Structure of Parishes and their Electoral Arrangements
The Borough of Elmbridge currently has one Parish Council, namely Claygate Parish
Council. Claygate Parish Council was established in 2000. The Parish boundary is
coterminous with the Claygate Ward Boundary and has an electorate of 5,573 (as at
1 February 2018). Claygate Parish Council has ten Parish Councillors and the next
Parish Council election is scheduled for 2 May 2019.
Claygate Parish Council’s website details the following:
‘What does a Parish Council bring to Claygate?
Dedicated local focus, without involvement of national political parties;
Funding via the precept for Claygate’s exclusive benefit, plus access to other
sources of funds, both public and private;
A forum for involving more residents in consulting and taking action to improve
village quality of life;
An officially recognised focus for representing Claygate in discussions at Borough
and County level and an effective local partner for the Borough and County Councils.
Claygate Parish Council’s Core Mission:
The overall aim of Claygate Parish Council is: Constantly to strive to improve the
quality of life for all those who live, and work, in Claygate, whilst preserving its unique
character as a warm, caring and sustainable village community.’
Claygate Parish Council levy a precept of £48,860 on the Council Tax paid by the
residents of the Parish which is £14.15 for a Band D property. In addition the Council
pays the Parish £2,600 as a grant which compensates the Parish for the loss suffered
as a result of the Localisation of Council Tax Benefits (a reduction in the billable
number of Band D properties from the discounts given as ‘Council Tax Benefits’).
Electorate Forecast
The Council has used the Register of Electors as at 1 February 2018 in providing
the relevant existing ward / polling district electorate figures. These are
represented at Annex 4 to this document. For the purpose of this Review, we are
required to forecast the expected growth in the number of dwellings for the area
covered by the proposed Hersham Community Council for the coming five years.
The forecast amounts to 446 homes (this figure includes permissions, sites
identified in the Land Availability Assessment and Local Plan allocations).
However, this figure assumes that all of the homes expected to be delivered
within the first 5 years of the Local Plan period (2019/20-2023/24) would be
delivered 5 years from now which may not be the case. It should also be noted
that 74 of these new homes are part of a development at Whiteley Village and
thus are not strictly individual homes, as it is part of 30 residential care suites with
communal and ancillary facilities and refurbishment and extension to Whiteley
House to provide an extra 44 care home units. On the basis of all of the
developments listed above coming forward (446 units), there would be an
additional 1,066 people by 2023.

Page 32

Consultation
The Council has drawn up this Terms of Reference document. This document lays
out the aim of the Review, the legislation that guides it and some of the policies the
Council considers important in the Review.
As part of the consultation, the following individuals / groups will also be consulted:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Members of Elmbridge Borough Council;
Surrey County Council including Surrey County Councillor for the Hersham
Division;
Dominic Raab MP, Esher and Walton Constituency;
Claygate Parish Council;
Hersham Community Council Steering Group;
Petitioners;
The Local Government electors of the area of the proposed Hersham
Community Council;
Electoral Commission;
Local Government Boundary Commission for England;
Hersham Village Society and Hersham Residents’ Association;
Residents’ Associations which have areas included within the proposed
boundary, for example Esher Residents’ Association, Weybridge Residents’
Association etc.;
Neighbourhood Watch Groups within the proposed boundary;
Hersham Churches;
Hersham Schools, staff and Parent Teacher Associations and sixth form
pupils;
Early Years Education providers and parents/carers;
Sheltered Accommodation residents;
WI Groups which meet within the proposed boundary;
Hersham Market organisers and customers;
Community Centre users;
Local Businesses; and
Whiteley Village residents and management.

The Council will take into account the representations that are received by judging
them against the criteria in the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health
Act 2007.
Steps will be taken to notify consultees of the outcome of the Review via the
Council’s website and press releases.

Page 33

What are we consulting on?
We are consulting the public and interested stakeholders on the request in the petition
referred to above, which is

To establish a parish council to be called Hersham
Community Council for the area defined overleaf.
Why has this request been made?
The Hersham Community Council Steering Group has submitted a petition
for a proposed Hersham Community Council for the area defined overleaf.
For the purposes of this review, we are also required by law to make recommendations on
other related “electoral arrangements” in respect of the proposed Hersham Community
Council, as follows:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

the year in which ordinary elections of parish councillors are to be held;
the division (or not) of the parish into wards for the purpose of electing
parish councillors;
the number and boundaries of any such wards;
the number of parish councillors to be elected for any such ward;
the name of any such ward.

In relation to (a) above, Elmbridge Borough Council proposes that in respect of any
future Hersham Community Council elections, these coincide with Borough Council
elections and elections to other Parish Councils in the Borough.
In relation to (b) to (e) above, the introduction of ‘wards’ would mean that each parish
councillor would be elected by voters living within a particular area (or ward) within the
parish, and they would represent those voters on the parish council. The Borough
Council proposes that, in the event of the outcome of this Community Governance
Review confirming the creation of a Hersham Community Council, it would represent
the area defined overleaf, namely the following areas within the Borough of Elmbridge:
•
•
•
•
•

the Ward of Hersham Village (Polling Districts MA, MB and MC);
part of the Ward of Esher (Polling District AC);
part of the Ward of Oatlands and Burwood Park (Polling District OD);
part of the Ward of Weybridge St. George’s Hill (Polling District PD); and
part of the Ward of Cobham and Downside (Polling District HC).

We would therefore like to know what YOU think of the proposals:
(a)

to establish a Hersham Community Council that the Hersham Community
Council Steering Group have indicated they intend as an independent legally
underpinned community council which is an effective local partner for Surrey
County Council and Elmbridge Borough Council;

(b)

if a Hersham Community Council is established, to have a total of 12 Community
Councillors be elected to represent it;

(c)

that the Hersham Community Council would receive funding by levying a
“precept” on the Council Tax paid by the residents within the boundary of the
Hersham Community Council;

(d)

to make no other changes to the electoral arrangements in respect of the
remaining area covered by Elmbridge Borough Council.
Page 34

How to let us know your views
Let us know what you think of the proposals via the Council’s website [link to consultation
page to be added].
Alternatively, you may send your representations by emailing electoral@elmbridge.gov.uk
or, in writing to
Ms. B. Greenstein, Head of Democratic Services
Elmbridge Borough Council
Civic Centre
High Street
Esher
Surrey KT10 9SD
by no later than 5pm on Tuesday 23 October 2018
Please ensure that you state your name and address clearly on any representations
submitted. Please note that any submissions received after 5.00 p.m. on 23 October
2018, or any representations submitted anonymously, will not be taken into account.
Please also note that the consultation stages of a Community Governance Review are
public consultations. In the interests of openness and transparency, the Council will
make available for public inspection full copies of all representations it takes into account
as part of this review.

What happens next?
In arriving at its final recommendations, the Council will take account of the views of local
people and any other person or body who appears to have an interest in the Review by
judging them against the criteria set out in the Local Government and Public Involvement
in Health Act 2007 and associated government guidance.
The Borough Council will take steps to notify consultees of the outcome of the review by
publishing all decisions taken, together with reasons, on the Council’s website; through
general press releases, and by placing key documents on public deposit at Elmbridge
Borough Council’s Civic Centre, High Street, Esher, Surrey KT10 9SD.
If this review results in any change to the electoral arrangements for Elmbridge Borough
Council, a Community Governance Reorganisation Order will be made to give effect to
the change.

Page 35

A timetable for the Community Governance Review
A Community Governance Review must, by law, be concluded within a 12-month
period from the day on which the Borough Council receives a valid community
governance petition and ending on the day on which the Council publishes its final
recommendations. The agreed timetable for the Community Governance Review is
set out below:
27 February 2018

Community governance petition submitted.

29 February 2018

Community governance petition validated.

18 July 2018

Terms of Reference and Timetable for Review to be approved
by the Council.

28 August 2018

Council to publish Terms of Reference.
Eight-week consultation period commences with local
people and interested parties.

23 October 2018
at 5.00 p.m.

Closing date for consultation period.

24 October 2018

Period of consideration of submissions received starts. Final
recommendations are prepared for Council meeting.

5 December 2018

Council to consider consultation responses and determine
final recommendations.

10 December 2018 Final recommendations are published – concluding the
Review and initiating any required actions.

Page 36

Annex 1
The Petition

Page 37

The Petition

Page 38

The Petition

Page 39

The Petition

Page 40

Annex 2

Page 41

Annex 3
General Powers and Duties of Parish Councils
The role played by parish councils varies considerably. Smaller parish councils
have only limited resources and generally play a minor role, while some larger
parish councils have a role similar to that of a small district council. Parish
councils receive funding by levying a "precept" on the council tax paid by the
residents of the parish.
The list below is intended as a summary of the main functions of parish councils. It
is not intended to be a definitive list of such functions. Where a function is marked
with an asterisk a parish council also has the power to give financial assistance to
another person or body performing the same function.
Functions
Allotments

Bus Shelters and roadside
seats
Bye Laws
Clocks*
Closed Churchyards
Commons Land and Common
Pastures
Community Centres and
Village Halls

Conference facilities*
Crime Prevention*
Drainage
Education
Entertainment and the Arts*
Environment

Flagpoles

Powers and Duties
Powers to provide allotments
Duty to provide allotment gardens if demand
unsatisfied
Power to provide and maintain
Power to make byelaws for public walks and
pleasure grounds
Power to provide public clocks
Powers (and sometimes duty) as to maintain
Powers in relation to enclosure as to
regulation and management and as to
providing common pasture
• Power to provide and equip premises for
use of clubs having athletic, social or
educational objectives
• Power to provide buildings for offices and
for public meetings and assemblies
Power to provide and encourage the use of
facilities
Powers to spend money on various crime
prevention measures
Power to deal with ponds/ditches
Right to appoint governors of primary schools
Provision of entertainment and support of the arts
Power to act for the benefit of the community by
tackling and promoting awareness of
environmental issues
Power to erect flagpoles in highways

Page 42

Functions
Highways

Investments
Land

Litter bins
Lotteries
Monuments and Memorials
Mortuaries and post-mortem
rooms
Nature Reserves

Nuisances
Open Spaces, Burial Grounds,
Cemeteries and crematoria*
Parish Property and Records
Parks and pleasure grounds
Parochial charities

Planning

Powers and Duties
• Power to repair and maintain
footpaths and bridleways
• Power to provide lighting of roads and public
places
• Power to provide parking places for
vehicles, bicycles and motorcycles
• Power to enter into an agreement as to
dedication and widening
• Power to provide traffic signs and other
notices
• Power to plant trees, etc., and to maintain
roadside verges
• Power to prosecute for unlawful
ploughing of a footpath or bridleway
• Power to contribute financially to traffic
calming schemes
Power to participate in schemes of collective
investment
• Power to acquire land by agreement or
compulsory purchase,
• Power to appropriate land
• Power to dispose of land
• Power to accept gifts of land
• Power to obtain particulars of persons
interested in land
Power to provide litter bins including
receptacles for dog faeces
Power to promote lotteries
Power to agree to maintain monuments and
memorials
Powers to provide mortuaries and postmortem rooms
Power to designate statutory to the nature
reserves and marine nature reserves - English
Nature can designate sites of specific
scientific interest
Power to deal with offensive ditches, ponds
and gutters
Power to acquire, maintain or contribute
towards expenses
• Powers to direct as to their custody
• Power to collect, exhibit and purchase local
records
Power to hire pleasure boats in parks and
pleasure grounds
• Power to appoint trustees of parochial
charities
• Duty to receive accounts of parochial
charities
Right to be notified of and power to respond to
planning applications
Page 43

Functions
Powers and Duties
Postal and telecommunications Power to pay the Post Office, British
Telecommunications or any other public
facilities
telecommunications operator any loss sustained
in providing post or telegraph office or
telecommunications facilities
Power to provide public conveniences
Public Conveniences
Raising of Finances
Recreation*

Swimming pools, bathing
places, baths and washhouses
Tourism*
Town Status
Transport*

Village greens
Water Supply

Power to raise money through the parish precept
•

Power to acquire land for or to provide
recreation grounds, public walks, pleasure
grounds, and open spaces and to manage
and control them.
• Power to provide gymnasiums, playing
fields, holiday camps
Power to provide
Power to contribute to the encouragement of
tourism
Power to adopt town status
Power to (a) establish car sharing schemes (b)
make grants for bus services, (c) provide taxifare concessions; (d) investigate public
transport, road use and needs; (e) provide
information about public transport services
Community Transport Schemes
Power to maintain, to make bylaws for and to
prosecute for interference with village greens
Power to utilise well, spring or stream and to
provide facilities for obtaining water therefrom.

Page 44

Annex 4

Electorate statistics for the proposed Hersham Community Council Area
Eligible date 1 February 2018

Hersham Village Ward (complete)
Polling District MA, MB, MC = 6,111

Esher Ward (part)
Polling District AC = 1,479

Oatlands and Burwood Park (part)
Polling District OD = 1,299
Weybridge St. George’s Hill (part)
Polling District PD = 676

Cobham and Downside Ward (part)
Polling District HC = 36

Total electorate for the proposed Hersham Community Council = 9,601

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX ‘B’

Outcome of Community Governance Review Consultation
On 27 February 2018, Elmbridge Borough Council received a valid petition from the
Hersham Community Council Steering Group, signed by 731 local government
electors, requesting that a CGR is conducted to consider the establishment of a
parish council for Hersham, to be called the ‘Hersham Community Council’.
When undertaking a Review, the Council is required to consult the local government
electors for the area under review as well as any other person or body which appear
to have an interest in the Review.
The most effective and efficient way of capturing the views of the local government
electors and “other bodies” was to undertake a consultation over a 12 week period,
conveying the Terms of Reference of the Community Governance Review (as
agreed at the Meeting of the Council held on 18 July 2018) along with a survey
which could be completed on-line, by email or by letter.
In addition to the question ‘whether or not you support the creation of a parish
council for Hersham’, the survey included questions to ascertain consultees’ views
on various aspects of community governance arrangements in the area. Responses
to these questions were received by all channels ie via web; e-mail and letter.
The Terms of Reference and consultation information were delivered to all
consultees in paper or electronic form encouraging responses via the Council’s
website or by e-mail or letter. A dedicated web page on the Borough Council’s
website was set up that contained the background information and map of the
proposed area under Review. The Council’s social media accounts were also used
to raise awareness of the consultation.
The consultation took place over a 12 week period and ended on 23 October 2018.
In total, 10,067 electors / interested individuals / businesses / groups were sent the
Terms of Reference of the Community Governance Review and invited to give their
views by way of the consultation.
After validating the responses and discounting anonymous or duplicate responses,
the total number of responses was 632, which represents a response rate of 6.46%

Page 47

QUESTION ONE:


Whether or not you support the creation of a Parish Council
for Hersham?

43.83 % of respondents were in favour of the creation of a Parish Council with
55.70% who were not in agreement and 0.47 % who were unsure.
Outcome from the Overall responses received

Yes (277)

43.83%

No (352)

55.70%

Unsure (3)

0.47%
%

How the Consultees Responded to the Consultation
Organisations / Groups
1%
Letter
17%

E-mail
11%
Website
71%

Page 48

2. Analysis of Key Themes

Overall Key Themes for saying ‘Yes’ to the creation of a ‘Hersham
Community Council’
Positive impact on local residents & businesses
Greater representation
Funding to solely benefit Hersham
Residents to have an input into future of Hersham
Creation of Council would reunite the ‘old’ Hersham (prior to boundary changes)

Overall Key Themes for saying ‘No’ to the creation of a ‘Hersham
Community Council’
Increased Bureaucracy
Satisfied with how local services are run by the Borough Council
Satisfied with how local issues dealt with by local Borough Councillors
Against increase in Council Tax
Concern with proposed boundaries for proposed Council
Fear of inequalities and inefficiencies if ‘smaller’ councils break away

Page 49

3. Further Questions asked
Please note that the three ‘unsure’ respondents have not been included for in
this section.
QUESTION TWO: If a Parish Council for Hersham is created, the petition
proposes that it be called ’Hersham Community Council’ –
what do you think?
The Respondents in support of the proposal to create a ‘Hersham Community
Council’ responded to this question as follows:

Supported the proposed name
Commented with alternative name
Did not support proposed name
No Specific Comment








Web
Response
170
21
0
7

Letters

Organisations

E-Mail

1
0
8
60

1
0
2
0

0
0
0
7

Alternative Names Suggested:
Hersham Parish Council
To protect and enhance Hersham
Hersham Council
Hersham Village Community Council
Hersham Village Parish Council
Hersham Village Council

Respondents against the proposal to create a ‘Hersham Community Council’
responded to this question as follows:

Supported the proposed name
Commented with alternative name
Did not support proposed name
No Specific Comment

Web
Response
16
19
37
180

Letters

Organisations

E-Mail

1
0
0
35

0
1
0
0

0
0
0
63

Alternative Names Suggested:





Hersham Parish Council
Hersham Community Representatives
Hersham Village Council
The Minority Self-Interested Group of Hersham

The literal comments received in respect of this question are attached at
Annex 1 for Members update.

Page 50

QUESTION THREE: If a Parish Council is created, do you agree that there
should be a total of 12 (Parish) Councillors elected to
represent it?
The Respondents in support of the proposal to create a ‘Hersham Community
Council’ responded to this question as follows:

Supported the number proposed
Commented with alternative number
Did not support proposed number
No Specific Comment

Web
Response
170
20
0
8

Letters

Organisations

E-Mail

1
0
8
60

1
0
2
0

0
0
0
7

Alternative Number of (Parish) Councillors Suggested:












Would support up to 15
11-13 for a majority
8-12 councillors
10-12 Councillors
10 or less
10 councillors
8 councillors
6 Councillors
5 Councillors
Less than 12
An odd number for majority

Respondents against the proposal to create a ‘Hersham Community Council’
responded to this question as follows:

Supported the number proposed
Commented with alternative number
Did not support proposed number
No Specific Comment

Web
Response
12
19
119
102

Letters

Organisations

E-Mail

1
0
2
33

0
0
0
1

0
0
10
53

Alternative Number of (Parish) Councillors Suggested:








An odd number such as 15
10
8
6
7
5
keep to a minimum

The literal comments received in respect of this question are attached at
Annex 1 for Members update.

Page 51

QUESTION FOUR: If a Parish Council is created, it would receive funding by
levying a 'precept' on the Council Tax paid by the residents
within its boundary - what do you think?
The Respondents in support of the proposal to create a ‘Hersham Community
Council’ responded to this question as follows:
Web
Response
176
13
9

Supported the proposed precept
Did not support proposed precept
No Specific Comment

Letters

Organisations

E-Mail

2
1
66

2
0
1

1
0
6

Respondents against the proposal to create a ‘Hersham Community Council’
responded to this question as follows:
Letters

Organisations

E-Mail

Supported the proposed precept
Did not support proposed precept

Web
Response
6
179

0
24

0
0

0
54

No Specific Comment

67

12

1

9

Overall outcome of whether a precept was supported

Supported the proposed precept

29.73%

Did not support proposed precept

43.08%

No Specific Comment

27.19%
0

50

100

150

200

250

The literal comments received in respect of this question are attached at
Annex 1 for Members update.

Page 52

300

QUESTION FIVE: It is proposed that no other changes be made to the
electoral arrangements in respect of those areas of
Elmbridge not covered by the area of the Review - what do
you think?
The Respondents in support of the proposal to create a ‘Hersham Community
Council’ responded to this question as follows:

Supported this question
Did not support this question
General comments received in
response to this this question
No Specific Comment

Web
Response
143
0
32

Letters

Organisations

E-Mail

1
0
0

1
0
0

0
0
0

23

68

2

7

Respondents against the proposal to create a ‘Hersham Community Council’
responded to this question as follows:

Supported this question
Did not support this question
General comments received in
response to this this question
No Specific Comment

Web
Response
76
9
35

Letters

Organisations

E-Mail

1
0
0

0
0
0

0

132

35

1

63

0

The literal comments received in respect of this question are attached at
Annex 1 for Members update.

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX 1

Literal Comments Received in respect of the following questions:
QUESTION TWO: ‘If a Parish Council for Hersham is created, the petition
proposes that it be called ’Hersham Community Council’ –
what do you think?’






































A good name - am happy with that title
A I am opposed I have no views on the name
Accept
against - totally unnecessary waste of time
Against the proposal. We do not need yet another layer of bureaucracy at
added expense to the taxpayer
Agree
Agreeable
Agreed
An appropriate, descriptive name
Appropriate name.
As good a name as any
As I disagree with the proposal, the name is immaterial.
As I do not want a council, what it is called is immaterial
As it is proposed to be a Parish Council, then think that is the name it should
have - but I am not wanting the Council anyway
As it would be generically a parish council it should be called Hersham Parish
Council
Awful name sounds like its a sub council
Bad name for an unnecessary organisation
Best name
Better to be called Village Coucil.
'Council' causes confusion with Elmbridge and Surrey CC. I would prefer
'Hersham Community Representatives'
Disagree
Disagree - it would be better to call it Hersham Parish Council which is
consistent with Claygate
Do not support creation of Parish Council so no view on name
Do not want a Parish council
Do not want another layer of bureaucracy in dealing with local issues
do not want Hersham Community Council
does not matter although most of the area to be included lie outside of
Hersham and look to other areas in Elmbridge for their centre
Don’t want
Don't agree
Don't agree with it
dont care
Don’t create a Parish Council
Don’t need a new council
Don't support the application
Either Hersham Parish Council or Hersham Community Council
Excellent
Fine

Page 55









































Fine - more than just a village etc
Fine but why not Hersham Parish Council
Fine to avoid confusion.
Fine, good name
Good
Good choice
good idea
Good name
Good name says what It is
Great
Have no view the name is irrelevant - Hersham is not an area that presently is
recognised except by those living in a very confined area close to Hers
HCC is fine
Hersham Community Council is acceplable title
Hersham community Council sounds good
Hersham is too limited a name for this. In any case, I strongly object to the
creation of a Parish Council.
Hersham parish council
Hersham Parish Council would be a better term, no point in trying to hide what
it actually is.
I agree
I agree with the name and prefer the use of community council to parish coucil
I agree with this
I agree with this name
I agree with this terminology.
I agree, it should be Hersham CC
I am completely opposed to the idea so it does not matter
I am in total disagreement with it. I live in Cobham and have nothing to do with
Hersham and am nowhere conceivably near it for it to be logical.
I am not in favour of this proposal
I am strenuously opposed to the idea so the question of the name is irrelevant
I am strongly against the inclusion of Pains Hill becoming part of Hersham
when it belongs to Cobham
I believe it is the right name for the new council.
I believe that a proper vote should be cast before this goes ahead
I cannot think of any other name!
I do not agree to a parish council for hersham
I do not agree with the formation of this council.
I do not believe there should be a Parish Council for Hersham so the name is
irrelevant
I do not see the rationale behind this proposal other than for them to be able
to include Burwood Park.
I do not support a creation of a Parish Council. We don't need more
administration in Elmbridge
I do not support the creation of a Parish Council for Hersham.
I do not support the creation of a Parish Council full stop. Increasing
payments to an already unwelcome regressive form of taxation, is unhelpful.
I do not support this initiative

Page 56









































I do NOT support this wasteful initiative, the council tax is already very high
and I am not sure it is being spent effectively
I do NOT support this wasteful initiative, we should be looking for ways to
reduce cost not increase it
I do not think a parish council should be created - this is just more
bureaucracy
I do not think it should be created. If it were, suggest calling it Let's waste
Taxpayers' Money
I do not think we need another layer of Councillors in Hersham = we have
enough already.
I do not wish for a Parish Council for Hersham
I do support Hersham Parish Council. As we hear or see nothing of Esher
councillors and what is going on. But residents across the road from us do !
I don’t agree with this.
I don’t support this proposal so don’t support the name
I don’t want it, it isn’t my community council
I don't agree that it should be created
I don't care what it is called as I do not support the creation of a parish council
I don't care what its called
I don't see the need for that. It seems an unnecessary additional layer of
government.
I don't think it should proceed, therefore a name is irrelevant
I don't want a separate parish council for Hersham.
I fully agree as Parish Council could be a confusing term.
I have no objections to this
I have no opinion on the name if a Parish Council is created
I have no opinion on the proposed name
I have no preference one way or another
I have no problem with this
I have no views on the name
I like the name.
I prefer Hersham Village Council
I see no reason why it should not be called HERSHAM PARISH COUNCIL!
I support this
I think it's just more bureaucracies.
I think this is a good name
I think this is a good title
I think this is a very bad idea, I would like the old ‘Parish’ title to be used.
I think this is fine
I vociferously object as a taxpayer to having a further, and utterly
unnecessary, layer of government imposed on the area and paid for from my
tax.
I would be happy with that name or Hersham Parish Council.
I would be happy with that name and would work closely with it if established
I would suggest Hersham Parish Council instead.
I'd prefer Hersham Village Council, or if not then Hersham Parish Council
If it is a parish council, why not call it that?
If like to see the word Village in there - Hersham Village Council

Page 57













































I'm fine with the name
I'm happy with that.
In agreement
Indifferent
It is an embracing title and probably better than calling it a Parish Council
which can have ecclesiastical connotations.
It is as good a name as any
It is completely unnecessary
It is still local government, so it is a touch disingenuous to use "Community".
It is too trendy.
It should not be created. Yet another layer of bureaucracy.
It shouldn't even be thought about
it will or won’t happen despite what i might think
It’s a great idea creating local representation
It’s ok
Its as good as Parish Council
It's fine as a name, just seems like an extra layer of beaurocracy.
Madness
Maybe focus on helping people rather than deciding on a name.
N/A
N/A as do not support it
N/A as I don't support the creation of a parish Council.
Name is immaterial
Name is ok
No
No - I do not think such a group would truly represent the community so
should be called something like 'The minority self interested group of
Hersham
No - we do not need a Parish Council for Hersham
No, more bureacracy
No because I don't want it.
No comment
No if its a Parish council it should be called that
No issue with name
No more. We already have an mp and many councillors.
no need for another level of goverment
No objection provided Pains Hill Park and Residences are excluded from the
proposed Hersham Parish Council
No opinion
No opinion as not required
no preference
No problem
No problem with name
No view
No, Hersham Parish Council is fine - it doesn't need to be defined further.
No. This is a leading question.
No. I oppose creating another layer of bureaucracy at a time when councils
are already under enormous financial pressure

Page 58
















































Not Applicable
Not applicable as I object to the entire idea
Not applicable as we don't need any more Councillors.
Not bothered
Not concerned as do not agree with creation of parish council
Not happy with the name either
Not in favour
Not in support
not need
Not particularly bothered about the name
Not required
Ok
OK with this name
Or Hersham Parish Council
Pefer Hersham Village Council
Perfect
Perfectly acceptable
Prefer "Hersham Parish Council" in line with most/all other parish councils
where the word "parish" does not seem to cause confusion.
Prefer “parish council”
Prefer Hersham Parish Council as "parish" used commonly elsewhere
Prefer Hersham Village Parish Council
Prefer just Hersham Council
Prefer Parish Council
Rather long but could be abbreviated to HCC
Really don't want a Parish Council for Hersham
Says exactly what it is.
Should be called Hersham Parish Council. People will then know what it is.
Should be Hersham Village Community Council
Shouldn't be called anything as I am not in support of this proposal
Sounds fine
Sounds good
Sounds like a good name
Sounds like a village hall action group.
Strongly disagree - Cobham has nothing to do with Hersham.
Strongly disagree. It should be called "Hersham Parish Council"
Support that name
That it shouldn't be created at all. We already have two layers of local
government, we don't need three.
That or Hersham Parish Council
That seems OK
That’s an appropriate title
That’s fine.
The name is alright
The name is appropriate
The name is stupid - better to call it Hersham Parish Council
The name is suitable, if this is created.
The name isn't important in my view

Page 59





































The name seems to be an accurate description of the area covered although
"Parish Council" is a more widely-understood term.
The proposed name is not relevant to my decision
The word "community" is too loose and not applicable to most people outside
the immediate Hersham village area. Call it a Parish council.
This is an ego trip for activists
This is just another layer of local government that we don't need
To protect and enhance Hersham
Totally Agree and that's the perfect name
Unnecessary
Waste of money - please don't do this
We agree
We do not need a 3rd council to pay for.
We do not need a separate council. I am happy being represented by
Elmbridge and no further staff are needed to do the work that Elmbridge
already doe
We do not need or want a Parish Council for Hersham
We do not require any more bodies set up to interfere. There are already
councillors to do this job.
We do NOT want a Hersham Community Council
What a waste of time and money
Whole idea is ridiculous.
Why not a Parish Council
Why not call it Hersham Parish Council, since that is what it is. A different
name will cause confusion.
Would prefer it be called Hersham Village Community Council
Yes
Yes - agree
yes - good
Yes - IF one is created
Yes Correct name
Yes fine with it.
Yes I like it
Yes it us a good idea
Yes that is a suitable name.
Yes that seems fine
Yes the 'Hersham Community Council’ is a good name as is "Hersham Village
Council’
Yes, good idea
Yes, that seems Fine to me.
Yes. It's a good name
Yes. This is fine.

Page 60

QUESTION THREE: ‘If a Parish Council is created, do you agree that there
should be a total of 12 (Parish) Councillors elected to
represent it?’








































0 we don't need more administration in Elmbridge, what we need is our roads
properly maintained
10 or less councillors
10 to 12
12 Councillors is too many - the minimum required level should be adhered to
12 elected Councillors is a reasonable representation
12 is too many, cost vs benefits is unclear and the expenses that will be
claimed are unknown.
12 is the accepted number
12 is too many 6 should be enough
12 is too many. It would make the council unwieldy and take longer to come to
decisions. I suggest 5
12 is two many, it will be swamped by self-interested pressure groups.
12 seems a reasonable number. I would say 15 would be the absolute
maximum given the size of Hersham
12 seems about right
12 seems to many
12 too many.
12 would be excessive
12 would be good but I would support up to 15
12 would be too many members for this proposal Community Council
8 would seem to be sufficient. None would be preferable!
8-12 seems about right to me
A bit difficult to say as I don't know what the norm is elsewhere.
Against the proposal. We do not need yet another layer of bureaucracy and
increased Council Tax
Agree
Agreed
Another 12 people sucking money. Just what we need, not.
As above
As above, no interest in this idea whatsoever
As before political bureacracy.
As few as possible too much voting and layers of bureaucracy already
As few as possible, ideally one.
As I disagree with the proposal, the number is immaterial.
Consider either 11 or 13 (odd number) so that a majority is possible during
any votes
Disagree
Ditto above
Do not want a Parish council
Don’t want
Don't agree with the proposal
Don't support the application
Fine
I accept

Page 61









































I agree
I agree with this
I am content with the Council as it is, and don’t see the need for another layer
of Government
I do not agree that a parish council should be created
I do not support the creation of a Parish Council for Hersham
I do not support this initiative
I don’t agree with this.
i don't know if that is appropriate or not
I have no comment. Probably it is fine.
i suppose...
I think an odd number would be better for voting based decisions, so maybe
11 or 13 members
I think anywhere between 8-12 councillors would make sense
I think none of you have any idea of what community is or how to help one.
I think that would be good
I think we already have enough Councillors. Don't see the need for adding
more.
I would suggest an odd number e.g. 11 so there is no chance of a deadlock
I'd want zero. We don't need more administration in Elmbridge, what we need
is our roads repaired.
If created the total number of councillors should be not more than 8 to keep
costs down
If it is created, then I think 6 councillors is sufficient
If that is the usual amount on this type if body, Yes.
If that is what the people of Hersham want to pay for, so be it.
If that's what it takes
It seems a lot
It seems like too many, is 10 not enough?
It seems rather large for an electorate of only 9600 people.
It sounds like too many. I think that the whole idea adds an unnecessary level
of local government.
It would appear excessive and require justification
Keep the number to an absolute minimum
Maximum should be 12
Might not need 12??
N/A
No
No We do not need a further level of Bureaucracy. We have enough
Councillors for the area.
No - far too many - max. 5
No - far too many. 1 should be the maximum if a Parish Council is to be
created.
No - it could manage with half that number.
No - it should be 7 as recommended by NALC. This would minimise the cost.
No - its too many
No - just one would be one to many. Local councillors are either powerless in
the face of the Surrey

Page 62









































No - that's 12 local busybodies more than is needed.
No - This is just another layer of unnecessary bureaucracy. There are already
too may councillors.
No - This is too many to be effective. 8 would be more appropriate
No - this seems excessive
no - too many councillors already all claiming expenses
No - too many councillors creating additional drain on the local budget and
council tax
No - we should not be adding an additional later of wasteful management
No - we should not be adding an additional layer of wasteful councillors
No (see above).
No 12 is too many
No because I don't want.
No comment
No far too large - 5 at most
No issue with this number
No leave it as it is
No objection provided Pains Hill Park and Residences are excluded from the
proposed Hersham Parish C
No opinion
No opinion as not required
No preference.
No that is far too many
No there's already enough councillors for Hersham as it is.
No- this seems to be high and disproportionate to the number of individuals
within the boundary.
No too many.
No view
No why so many people
No, 10 should be enough.
no, an odd number such as 15 would be better to avoid 'hung' votes, etc..
No, because that's 12 expense claims. We've just reduced the number of
councillors and their costs.
No, far too many
no, how can it possibly need 12 councillors?
No, it should not be created
No, its far too many to represent such a small place
no, there shouldn't be a new council. If there is, then 12 councillors is too
many.
No, too many layers of bureaucracy already
No, too many, we already have enough representation.
No, we already have Elmbridge and Surrey councils.
No, we do not need another layer of amateur bureaucrats spending our
money
no. I have no faith any additional Councillors would ask for, or follow my
opinions
No. Such a Parish Council will be a further drain on resources during a time
of austerity.

Page 63








































No. This is a leading question.
No. A maximum of 6 should be elected.
No. As I said previously I do not agree with more councillors being elected as
we do not need them.
No. Don't want a parish council
No. See above. These questions seem to be heavily weighted in favour of
creating a parish council
No. Too many different points of view, therefore takes too long for conclusions
to be reached.
No. Too many representing another and unnecessary layer of local
government. 6 would be ample
No. Wasteful amount of people.
None
Not Applicable
Not bothered
Not clear why so many would be needed.
Not in support
Not sure
Ok
ok - I presume these are not paid councillors - I would object to them being
paid
Or less. We should go ahead even with less.
Preferably none. 12 is an utter waste of public funds, a scam, jobs for the
politicos of Hersham.
Seems a lot, can it be less?
Seems far too many and too costly
Seems like an awful lot of councillors...don’t know what I am comparing this
figure with.
Seems like overkill to me. Why 12 councillors for a small town?
Seems reasonable. Assume very limited expenses only if any.
Sensible number yes
Sounds like overkill to me - a talking shop, increased bureaucracy, longer
decision making etc
That is a matter for people living in Hersham: I live at Pains Hill in Cobham
That is way to many Councillors
That may be too many. Would want quality not quantity. Getting 12 committed
people will be difficult
That seems an appropriate number
That seems quite high for 9600 people
That should be a maximum. 6 would be better
The proposed number of councillors has no bearing on my decision
there should be zero as I do not think a Parish Council is required
This is reasonable.
This seems a lot, a smaller number, 10 or fewer would be better.
Too many, cap at 6
Too many. 8 would be adequate.
Unnecessary

Page 64

















Whatever the number there is a danger of special interest groups applying
pressure
Who decides if 6 are in favour and 6 against. No strong view on absolute
number.
Why 12 - why not 6?
Would an odd number be better. Who will have casting vote if deadlock on
any discussion/issue??
would we have to vote for them?
Yes
Yes - 12 seems a good number
Yes - IF one is created
yes - who know the area
Yes fully agree
yes, as long as the number does not incur too many expenses.
Yes, as that will give each area its own set of councillors to represent the
different areas
Yes. Somewhere between 8 and 12.
yes/negotiable
Yes: They should ideally be resident within Hersham.

Page 65

QUESTION FOUR: ‘If a Parish Council is created, it would receive funding by
levying a 'precept' on the Council Tax paid by the residents
within its boundary - what do you think?’




































A complete waste of Council Tax payers money
A further tax burden for absolutely no benefit; Parish councils are an utter
waste of public funds.
A necessary evil
A small levy
A waste of money
Absolutely fine so long as it is around £10-£20 per household
Absolutely not
Absolutely not, we pay enough as it is
Absolutely not. We already pay far higher tax than others
Acceptable.
Against the idea. See above. Where are questions about why residents may
object?
Against the proposal. We do not need yet another layer of bureaucracy and
increased Council Tax
Against. Could not agree until knowing exactly how much.
Agree
Agree funding is required, this however should be restricted / limited on
increasing.
Agree if it helps with protecting Hersham residents
Agreed
agreed in principle but assume that the overall cost to residents would not
increase
Agreed. It’s a small price to pay to protect a community.
Am aware that the creation of a separate entity within the borough comes at
an additional cost
Another bill to pay for negligible benefit
Another financial burden on the local residents. I do not support a 'precept'.
Another precept is not acceptable
Are there any other options? How can residents exert any financial control on
the councillors?
As long as any extra monies is not excessive
As long as it’s only a small levy that’s acceptable as we already pay enough
tax for local services
As long as it's not too much
As long as it's not too much extra
As long as my Council Tax doesn't increase
At a time of massive uncertainty, an increase in costs to all is wholly
inappropriate .
Awful idea. strain to household budgets that can’t afford to subsidise a
political vanity project
Better than paying more Council tax for non-services
Council Tax is already high, so no
Council tax is high enough. Object to further costs in the shape of a 'precept'
Definitely no

Page 66







































depends on level, small ok
Disagree
Disagree- Should be funded by Council. CIL funding would be better used this
way than currently
Disagree strongly, this is a waste of tax payers money
Do not want to pay any extra
do not want to pay more
Do not wish any increase in council tax
Does this mean a Council Tax increase?
Don’t know what this means!?
Don't support the application
don't wish for an increase in council tax
Fine
Fine, that doesn't cause a problem elsewhere especially in the numerous
Surrey parish councils
Following Claygate's lead I think we Hersham residents would benefit from
this levy
Funding for this folly should explicitly be paid for by resdients within its
boundary.
Given this is expected to be in the order of £12 per year, no problem.
good
Good idea
Good idea as long as any extra charge is not excessive. Reading the info it
states around £2 per Mth
Happy to pay a small sum which in turn mobilises funding for projects solely
benefiting Hersham
Happy to pay the small increase in council tax
Having to pay a precept is one of the reasons for not supporting an HCC
I accept that there will be a levy to Council Tax.
I agree
I agree I principle but it depends on the Mount of the levy
I agree with this
I agree, but there should be some control
I am against this as I do not want to pay extra for any reason. the council tax
is too high now
I am against this. As a resident on the far boundary I would receive no benefit.
I am against this. My house, while within the proposed area, does not really
form part of Hersham.
I am happy with this as the levy would be of benefit to all hersham residents.
I am in full agreement as the precept would be of benefit to Hersham itself.
i am not convinced it would make any meaningful improvements to me so i
would not be supportive
I am opposed to this - I don't see what the benefits would be to me
I am totally opposed to this. Our council tax is already very high and I have to
pay it out of my pe
I am very much against paying a levy on top of council tax to fund another
futile talking shop
I disagree and would not want to pay an additional amount to the Council Tax

Page 67









































I do not agree
I do not agree to this
I do not agree with raising and spending any more money
I do not agree with the levy.
I do not agree with the proposed ideas.
I do not agree. I do not wish to pay any more money than I currently do
I do not support
I do not support a 'precept'.
I do not support the creation of a Parish Council for Hersham
I do not support this ...we have a voice already
I do not support this initiative
I do not support without a clear cost benefit analysis of what extra gain can be
achived vs current
I do not think there should be a precept added to the council tax.
I do not think this is justified or necessary
I do not want an extra cost in addition to the Council Tax.
I do not want to pay an additional levy
I do not wish to be part of Hersham
I do not wish to pay any extra council tax
I do not wish to pay extra on my council tax - for an unnecessary extra layer of
bureaucracy.
I do not wish to pay more Council Tax for what will be a talking shop
I don’t mind providing the money is used for Hersham Community Council and
nt one of the neighbour
I don’t think we should pay extra for it. Not everyone in the area are
millionaires.
I don't have any objection to this. I think its a small amount to pay
i don't know why that would be necessary
I don't like the idea of paying for a parish council I don't want.
I don't think it's right to impose an additional financial burden on the
hardworking people of Hersh
I don't want to pay any more Council Tax
I don't want to pay more council tax as it's far too high already.
I feel that it would have no power to do anything but have no cap on the
precept. That is wrong.
I fully support there being a precept as part of the Community Council
I have concerns that there is no information provided on the size and control
of the levy.
I have no objections because the money, hopefully, will be dedicated to
maintaining and improvements
I object.
There is no justification for this or its associated cost
I strongly disagree
I strongly disagree with any proposed additional levy on council tax
I support this.
I think a small levy would be worth it
I think as long as it's clear, transparent and we have comment and possibility
of capping
I think it is crazy to add a precept onto the council Tax

Page 68






































I think it is totally unneccesary to expect residents for pay any more money for
a Parish Council.
I think its a joke.
I think that this is a ridiculous waste of money. Better to get existing
arrangements to work.
I think this is a good idea
I think this is a total waste of taxpayers money. We already pay for services
via our tax to Elmbridge
I think this is acceptable
I think this is an unnecessary additional cost burden on the people of
Hersham
I think this is an unnecessary cost
I think this is fair
I think this is OK
I think we already pay too much council tax for diminishing services - I am
against paying more.
I think we pay enough already so am disappointed if this will cost us more
I will refuse to pay and and will fight it in the courts
I would be happy with this
I would be surprised if the people of Hersham really want to pay for more
politicians.
I would not wish to pay increased Council Tax to fund this - regardless of
amount
I would object to my money being used for this unnecessary endeavour
I would object to paying extra Council Tax for unlikely tangible extra benefit
I would object to paying more Council Tax for something that I do not agree
with.
I would oppose this funding option when we have been presented by a
position out of our control
I'd prefer to pay and have a council that represents the Hersham community
I'd rather not pay any additional Council Tax
If it is for the good of Hersham residents then I support this
If it is under 50p a week and it makes a difference then it is worth it
If it must go ahead, it should be funded by voluntary donations.
If it were £2 a month, I would agree to it.
If it will help keep them funded which in turn will aid the community i have no
problem with it
If it's created, then that's fine - common practice.
If we have to give a bit individually to gain collectively, it's not too bad.
If you want extra money spend it on securing open spaces from gypsy
encampments
Im happy to pay a small additional charge
I'm unwilling to pay more money into local government, this is reason I vote
NO
In favour
In order to be effective it needs some funding so this makes sense
Increasing payment to an already unwelcome regressive form of taxation, will
hit the poorest members
Is this a serious question?

Page 69








































It is a small amount for what can be a good return for the community
It is a totally unnecessary charge to achieve little benefit.
It is a waste of money
It is an added burden on taxation and should not be more than around £15
pounds annually.
It is not a large amount and is outweighed by the benefits
It is not clear on the documentation if the 14.15 is a monthly/yearly figure for
Claygate.
It must be funded by residents in the Community Council area and not by
other council tax payers.
It will hit the poorest members of our community hardest.
it will or won’t happen despite what I might think
It would be extra on the current council tax which is already paid to Elmbridge
Borough Council
It's added cost for something unnecessary. Our borough council do a fine job
(on the whole).
It's just another way to get more Tax out of the Hersham residents.
It’s one good reason for not having a "Parish Council"
Makes sense
More tax to pay for more unnecessary councillors
Must be right
N/A
Needs funding to have any effect. However I think it needs to start off
modestly.
Needs to kept to a minimum needed to administer council business
No
No - I don’t agree with this - we already pay too high council tax for services
received/
No - this is a money and land grab. We already pay far too much Council Tax.
No comment
NO -Council Tax already too high, and likely to rise next year. Strongly
oppose this further tax
No extra cost
No- households already pay a lot of tax and services reduce annually
No I would rather wipe my arse with a razor blade than fund your bullshit
ideas
No justification for increasing the Council tax by the amount of the precept.
No money should be spent on this.
No more levies should be raised.
NO NO NO NO NO NO
No objection provided Pains Hill Park and Residences are excluded from the
proposed Hersham Parish C
No preference.
No problem
No problem with that
No should not increase the council tax as we pay enough already
No way, council tax is way to high in the first place
no, a good reason for not having a new parish council

Page 70







































No, do not want to pay extra.
No, I am totally against any funding as described above, with no indication
given of actual addition
No, I do not agree
No, I do not support this at all
No, let it be paid for by the proposers, if they want it pay for it, not people who
do not want it.
No, let it be paid for by the proposers, not by people who do not want it.
NO, NO, NO. I AM NOT PREPARED TO PAY ANYTHING FOR THIS - IT IS
UNNECESSARY!
No, Pay too much council tax already, don't get very much for it, why pay
more!
No, the rest of the residents of Elmbridge can pay in the same way I pay for
their councillors.
No. We pay a huge council tax bill. no more for more layers of bureaucracy.
No. I don't see why. We already pay an enormous amount and the parish
councillors would be volunteers
No. If there's an increase in CT it should go into the existing borough and
county budgets.
No. Waste of money
No. We already pay the administration costs for 2 councils.
No. We are already stretched to cover local amenities and every penny is
needed by the current council
No. We pay enough already
No. Why should we pay more. Cut the top salaries and bonuses
Normal practice and very little cost.
Not acceptable
Not at all happy about paying more Council tax
Not in agreement with this, with no indication of actual cost increase proposed
Not in favour
Not in favour of a precept to fund this bad idea
Not necessary
not needed do not agree
not relevant to St Peter's
Ok
Outrageous
Please do not waste any funding on this
Precept would be forced by a tiny minority onto majority of residents and is
completely unacceptable
Provided it is sensible and properly monitored it is a sound approach
Providing the money stays in Hersham I have no problem with that
Residents are over taxed already. They would not welcome an additional
Parish Council precept.
Seems reasonable
Seems sensible. However, not clear what the controls are on that. How is
that managed?
So long as it is a reasonable amount
Sounds good

Page 71







































Strongly oppose any money spent or raised for another layer of bureaucracy.
Strongly opposed. Council tax is already high enough and don't feel the need
for further expense.
Support
Support this
Thanks fine with me.
That is fine.
That is ok
That seems appropriate
That seems good. How else would it be funded?
That the Council should get its priorities right and attend to our appalling
roads and litter.
That's ok as long as a maximum level is set
Thats okay
There no basis to add an additional layer of management or extra levy on
Council tax
This appears to be the normal and as long as it is not excessive it should be
alright
This is a key reason for not having yet another layer of local government.
This is a vanity project by unidentified people-it should not proceed.
This is acceptable to achieve its aims
This is fine, local money for local services
This is not acceptable. Council tax rates are already too high. It should be
cost neutral a saving
This is reasonable as long as normal standards of visibility is available to the
electorate
This is reasonable.
This is simply horrific. We pay a hugely excessive amount for bad council
services already
This is the best way for our councillors to act on our behalf.
This is worthwhile to improve quality of life and retain character of Hersham
this levy is a snob tax and will disadvantage the' normal' houses in Hersham
This sounds like even MORE taxes to be paid by us for less of a service - this
is a BAD idea!
This will divert funds from what Elmbridge should be doing and in the future
increase taxes.
Totally against council taxes are too high a percentage of ones income as it is
without adding it
Totally agree
Unacceptable expenditure
Under present financial constraints, difficult to accept, rather spend the money
on Adult Social Care
Unnecessary
Unfortunately this is unavoidable
Unnecessary expense
Unsure
Very happy to pay the extra small amount it will cost.
Waste of funding, things should remains as they are

Page 72








































Waste of money - we should be trying to reduce expenditure not create
another layer of bureaucracy
We agree
We already too much council tax and I resent being forced to pay more for
something unnecessary
We are already paying close to the highest Council Tax in England - not worth
a further levy
We are paying enough at present
We do not need another level of governance and cost
We do not need more funding without clear direction of the benefits
We do not want to pay an extra levy on our Council Tax for another layer of
bureaucracy
We pay enough tax right now
We shouldn't be charging residents extra on top of council tax, everyone is
stretched enough.
We would be paying more double like other Parish Councils do, and the we
will stiil p Council as well.
What difference would this be to staying the same
What is a precept ?
Within reason, yes, in the same way that the one in Claygate is.
Within the lines of the amount t taken to fund Claygate's Council, OK.
Wrong - waste of money
Yes
Yes - agree
Yes - IF one is created
Yes agreed
Yes as long as it is capped at a reasonable rate
Yes as long as money was used solely for that
Yes but Council Tax is already very high so the extra must be capped to a fair level
Yes fine
Yes good
yes if the amount was agreed initially
Yes if the precept is set around £14.15 for a Band D property as proposed in
the consultation document
yes -nothing can be done without money
Yes provided that levy was kept separate from council tax and used solely for
Hersham community.
Yes would pay this
Yes, although an element of saving is expected against cost of existing
services covered by new PC
Yes, but it needs to be clear and surcharge kept to a minimum.
Yes, it should
Yes, providing the cost is reasonable.
Yes. I agree.
Yes. It is a trivial amount.
Yes. It would be unacceptable for the parish council to be funded by nonHersham residents.
Yes. The amount is small.

Page 73

QUESTION FIVE: ‘It is proposed that no other changes be made to the
electoral arrangements in respect of those areas of
Elmbridge not covered by the area of the Review - what do
you think?’



































a change to the boundaries and governance should also consult adjacent
wards
Acceptable
Again, good idea
Against the idea of creating a parish council
Against the proposal. We do not need yet another layer of bureaucracy and
increased Council Tax
Agree
Agree there have been too many changes to boundaries some with poor
results
Agree there should be no changes at all
Agree, no changes
agreeable
Agreed
Agreed, but areas covered by the review should Have a deciding vote on any
changes.
Agreed. Another level of bureaucracy that is not needed
as above
As above no advantage of changing
Clearly sense has prevailed elsewhere with Elmbridge saying no to big
government.
consider if area south of a3 should align to cobham. Change electoral
boundaries to reflect village
Content.
Disagree
dont care
Don't change anything - we don't want this
Don't know.
Don't support the application
Don't understand the question
Electoral arrangements should remain as they currently are
Existing council processes are sufficient, Hersham does not need additional
representation.
Expected
Fine
Fine, Hersham is worthy of having a community council.
Fine.
Get shot of half of the existing lot.
Give all a community council
Given the current stress on funding, no more money should be wasted on
these types of proposal
Good

Page 74






































Good-was a parish councillor. No to stuck-up busybody with reams of wasted
paper
Hersham must not be obliterated after I live there
Hersham should not have been split up as it was in latest change but can't
see that being reversed!
I accept
I agree
I agree that no other changes need to be made.
I agree with the proposals
I am against any changes.
I am happy about there being no other changes
I am not in favour that a Parish Council for Hersham is created
I am satisfied that the current electoral arrangements in Elmbridge are
perfectly adequate.
I can't give my views in 100 characters, the boundary is wrong Cobham is not
Hersham.
I do not agree to a parish council for hersham
I do not feel qualified to comment
I do not know.
I do not think any changes need to be made to the current arrangements
I do not think there should be any changes
I do not understand the question
I do not want any changes to the current electoral arrangements, areas or
councils
I don’t really have an opinion on the other areas
I don’t understand why borders were redrawn for Hersham and the whole
village was not kept together.
I don't have any knowledge on what other changes could be made to electoral
arrangements
I don't have any views on this matter
I dont support the proposal at all
I don't understand this question or its implications.
I don't want any changes
I don't want to be a Parish council so things won't change anyway.
I expressed by disapproval of the revised Electoral arrangements for
Elmbridge Council at the time.
I feel Hersham is being squeezed out of the council's thoughts - we need to
push it back in
I go not agree to a parish council for hersham
I have always thought that the election of only 1/3 of councillors acts to
prevent change
I have been very unhappy since being in the Esher Ward for elections, I am a
Hersham Resident!
I have no opinion
I have no problem with this
I live in Hersham and I am unhappy that I have to vote for a Esher councillor
which I refuse to do.
I think Hersham should be Hersham. My ward is now Esher and I totally
disagree with this.

Page 75









































I think it is illogical that any changes may be proposed beyond the changes
that are being proposed.
I think it will be wonderful to have Hersham reunited and we will feel at last
that our area matters
I think the area is well served by the present arrangements
I understand as this has benn done and cannot be undone.
I would remove the part of Hersham that is in the Cobham and Downside
Ward from the proposal.
I would support the creation of PCs if SCC and EBC were abolished and
unitary authorities created
I’m happy with that
I'd like Hersham to have its own identity even if this means review of whole
area
Ideally I would like to return to the previous Hersham boundaries
I'm not sure, I need more information about it.
Immaterial.
It should all stay the same
Keep other areas as is.
Keep things as they are
Leave as is, the damage has been done now anyway in terms of electoral
arrangements.
Leave the system as it is.
Like the idea of a non-partisan voice - do regret that Hersham only has 3
direct council reps from 6
Make no changes at all
Makes sense
Meaning not clear
N/A
No
No change
No changes are needed
No changes in this respect to any area outside the area of Hersham defined in
the Map shown here.
No changes required
no changes should be made at all
No comment
No comment on this
No Comment or thoughts
No further cahnges outside of this review
no knowledge
No need to change these arrangements
No objection
No objection provided Pains Hill Park and Residences are excluded from the
proposed Hersham Parish C
No opinion
No opinion on this.
No other changes should be made
No other changes should be made

Page 76










































No other comments
no preference
No strong view but not sure why Hersham now has fewer wards/councillors
than before.
No thanks
No thoughts
no thoughts in this respect
No view
No! The current carve-up of Hersham is what led to this in the first place
Not Applicable
Not applicable as do not want or need this created
Not bothered
Not in support
not my concern
Not required
Not sure what this means.
Nothing should change full stop. Hersham do not need a separate council.
Ok
ok - but the area near to Cobham may need careful consideration - and
possible boundary adjustments
OK; Hersham needs own voice; e.g. parking regulations that suit Walton do
not suit Hersham
Once a Community Council is established Elmbridge should have a Boundary
Review to re-align their bo
Other areas are very similar to Hersham, it seems inappropriate to
differentiate.
Parish Council should cover a wider area of Hersham
Please leave matters as they are
Present electoral arrangements do not need any changes
Seems reasonable
Sensible,
Should return to the original electoral arrangements for Hersham area
Suggest the area south of A245 should be reviewed and potentially excluded
from the proposed area.
That is clearly sensible. If other districts need a change they should apply in
the same way
That is fine
that seems reasonable
That would surely depend on their needs
That's fine
That's not a problem
That’s okay
The council appears to have fairly limited rights - so I don't see the real-world benefit.
The electoral conditions should remain.
The entire concept is just so wrong
The logical outcome. But Painshill should not be covered by HCC and KT11
residents given the option
The longmore estate should be returned to Hersham voting.

Page 77




































The parish councillors must be able to vote on elmbridge council as other
elected people do.
The physical area of Hersham should be reunited as defined before. It should
not have been split.
The previous electoral boundaries for Hersham were far more practical.
The system should all be left as it is.
The whole idea makes no sense and will devalue my property. There is no
good which can come from it.
Then it’s not a council
There do not need to be any changes to the electoral arrangements
There is no reason why any changes would need to be made to other areas of
Elmbridge
There should be no changes to any area, including the area of the review.
There should be no changes whatsoever including in Hersham
THERE SHOULD BE REDUCTIONS IN COUNCILLORS AND COUNCIL TAX
NOT INCREASES
There should not be a Parish Council for a fictitious area that is not
noteworthy in anyway
They should make their own proposals
Things should be left as they are.
This change is not necessary.
This has only come about due to the boundary changes implemented by the
previous tory administration
This seems reasonable also.
Those areas with 'Parish Councils' will have a disproportional influence. It
should be all or none.
Totally agree
Typical politics.
ues
Unnecessary
Unless other residents want a Parish Council, there is no reason for any other
changes at this time
We do not need a Parish Council, so no electoral arrangements need to be
made.
We should scrap the two tier system we currently have with SCC and EBC
and have one local authority
We think no changes should be made in any area of Elmbridge
Why?
Would have preferred Dukes Road came under Hersham rather that Esher
Ward
Would have preferred to still be in the Hersham Ward
Yes
Yes no other changes
yes unless a review of present ward boundaries
Yes, clearly defined arrangements
Yes, this is good

Page 78

Other Comments made in response to the Consultation





























quite satisfied with what has been brought to our village by the councillors
already
12 Councillors to represent 9,600 electors appears excessive. One
representative for 800 electors
12 representatives looks excessive when trying to make decisions so I would
suggest 8 would be sufficient for effective management. Also one must
encourage other people, other than existing or past Councillors to apply to sit
on the Community Council.
A total waste of money achieving nothing
Addition of another layer of government will not make any difference to the
level or effectiveness of the way local affairs are managed now
Against if it means any increase in the total council rates for residents in the
area
Agree no other changes to electoral arrangements
Agree with funding by precept
Agrees in principle with creation but not if this means paying one penny more
in bills to the council for the privilege
Agree with creation of HCC in principle but not funded by council tax precept
Already have perfectly efficient local government operation in Elmbridge and
to introduce another layer of management and clearly even higher cost seems
absolutely no sense whatsoever
Also in the first newsletter it said cost would be 25p per week but in the
second it is now 50p per week
An additional financial burden on the relevant residents
Another total unneeded layer adds expense and no value we should be taking
out layers not adding them
As a pensioner I do not have money to waste
HCC will have a positive impact on the residents and business community
Can see a benefit of bringing more activity locally so that it is relevant and
accessible
Complete waste of time and money and should be stopped right now.
Concern over possible adverse consequences of extra council tax on families
on borderline of solvency
Do not need another layer of bureaucracy, do not want extra cost of Council
Tax and the election of another 12 Councillors
Don’t want to pay any additional taxes
EBC does a perfectly adequate job and I see no reason for the creation of a
further council for Hersham
Exercise will only increase our council tax
Feel perfectly happy with the present situation and are fully represented by
truly wonderful cllrs at present
Feel perfectly represented by the cllrs we already have
Feels perfectly represented by existing EBC cllrs
Hersham resident would like to register my support fr the creation of a Parish
Council in Hersham

Page 79
































Hershams interests are already looked after by three local councillors and
John O'Reilly at SCC who has responsibility for the area and local in depth
knowledge.
I am against the creation of a parish or community council
I am completely against the creation of a Hersham council
I am more than happy with Elmbridge thank you
I am not in favour of this idea and feel it is a total waste of money and the cllrs
who represent Hersham currently are fine
I am opposed to this on the grounds of cost
I am quite happy to be part of Elmbridge as now
I am satisfied with the way EBC carries out its obligations hampered as it is by
financial constraints imposed by central government and see no necessity to
alter existing arrangements.
I am totally against a HCC as it will create another layer of government and
involve an extra levy on the council tax
I am very happy with the job being done by EBC and see no advantage in the
creation of a further council
I am completely satisfied with the way the council performs so do not feel the
need to add any additional layer
I can see no merit whatsoever in creating a HCC
I can see no reason why we should be required to pay additional council tax
to pay for duties already in the preserve of EBC
I can see no sense in having this community council
I can think of no valid argument for a parish council
I do believe we have enough bureaucracy in Elmbridge already and if we are
to remain the happiest community in surrey the last thing we need is more
people telling us what we can do and can’t do
I do not agree to any more councillors being elected. It is more important to
spend money on schools, roads, social care and not under any circumstances
on a new council for hersham
I do not agree to pay any more than the already very high council tax we pay
I do not agree with more cllrs being elected
I do not agree with the number of cllrs
I do not agree with there being another council for Hersham
I do not believe we need this additional burden so am not in favour of it
I do not feel having another layer of self important cllrs will not add to
residents costs
I do not feel part of Hersham Village as I am in the Oatlands and Burwood
Park Ward
I do not like the idea of a levy on the council tax
I do not really see Hersham is a village with its own identity; it is just part of
Walton on Thames
I do not support a precept being levyed on the council tax paid by residents
I do not support the creation of a parish council for Hersham
I do not support the creation of such a body as it is another layer of
organisation to cope with and finance
I do not support the idea of a parish council for Hersham as I think it is totally
unnecessary and bureaucratic

Page 80


































I do not think we need more cllrs, Elmbridge does a good job from it's Esher
base
I do not want to elect another 12 cllrs nor pay an extra levy on my council tax
I don't believe this is a good idea and is a waste of money
I don't think we need more cllrs and EBC is entirely adequate
I feel inefficiencies and inequalities may result if small councils start to break
away.
I feel represented totally by the cllrs we already have
I feel the cllrs we have at present represent our village perfectly and don't
want yet another layer of bureaucracy to deal with
I have no desire for yet another layer of local government telling me what I
can, should or should not do
I have no desire to pay extra money for 12 people to do so
I live in Painshill House which should be part of Cobham
I see no advantage in local affairs being governed in a small area such as
Hersham by as many as 9 or 12 councillors each with a ward in Hersham,
who may not have the experience needed
I think it could be a real opportunity to allow the residents of the old Hersham
area as well as the new an input into its future
I think it is unnecessary and a waste of money and overly bureaucratic
I think this extra layer of government is totally unnecessary and bureaucratic
I voice my objection to adding another level of bureaucracy by forming a
parish council
I want to remain under Cobham postcode, not Hersham
I would not want to pay more on an ongoing basis for this establishment.
If 12 cllrs the norm, then a reasonable number
If HCC is created, agrees with name and number of 12 parish cllrs
I'm a resident of Burwood Park and do not want to join the HCC
I'm prepared to pay the precept on the council tax
Im very interested and about time too
imposing yet more tax on homeowners is necessary or fair because it will
inevitably fall heaviest on the higher rate payers already paying a lot of money
for a negligible improvement to what is already taxed
In the communication there is no tangible output, simply saying create a
strong identity, encourage and support new and existing groups etc is not
enough to make me consider parting with additional money.
It is a waste of money which would be better spent elsewhere
It would add another unnecessary layer of to local government in this area
Last thing needed is increase in council tax, an extra layer of local
government and therefore the election of another 12 cllrs
Local authorities are struggling financially so this is not an opportune time to
add another tier of local government
Money would be better spent elsewhere rather than creating a HCC
My answer is a firm and absolute no
No exact indication of cost to residents. It has also cost Elmbridge a good
sum of money to insult residents for this initiative and It is a waste of our
council tax.
Not a good use of money

Page 81

































Not necessary to create a parish council to carry out services already
delivered by EBC
Not pleased with in increase in taxes
Not really in favour of creating another tier of bureaucracy or the additional
cost of financing it. Local Government appears to be stretched on finances
already and if I am required to pay more money, I would prefer it to be spent
on supporting local services rather than on a new parish council
Not think it necessary to have additional councillors to improve the adequately
run village, especially incurring another cost to the already high council tax. I
am satisfied with the way the village is currently run by present councillors
Opposes funding through a precept
Opposition to the creation of yet another layer of local government when
Hersham is adequately represented already by county and borough cllrs
Parish councils achieve very little
Please do not waste time and money setting up a parish council
Proposal will be a waste of money. We do not need the expense of more
councillors
Proposes no changes to the existing electoral arrangements
Record in the strongest terms objection to creation of HCC
Sounds like a wonderful idea
Strongly against the proposal
Strongly objects to place Painshill in Hersham Parish as is in Cobham
The answer is definitely no
The confusion could also lead to some buck-passing when issues don’t fit
neatly under the umbrella of services of either parish or elmbridge councillor
The cost of this scheme is not good value for money
The list of actions they would carry out is no different to what the local
borough council currently does
the new proposals must inevitably lead to a higher tax burden for residents
The present system of local government in Elmbridge is capable of doing all
that the Parish Council Steering Committee planned to do and probably more
The proposal of having a Hersham Community Council as a very bad idea as
it is an extra layer of bureaucracy where none is needed and has to be paid
for. Experience elsewhere with similar bureaucracy has shown this to be a
complete waste of money.
The review is unacceptable to us because we are pensioners on a very tight
financial budget
The whole process is costing money which is rather unfortunate
This confusion would lead to problems when trying to determine whom to
contact to get issues resolved
This extra layer of local government is unneccesary and I am strongly
opposed to it
This proposal is very different from Claygate parish council where there is a
recognised centre and all the residents are electors in Claygate ward
This will add cost and create the need for even more elections and slow down
the decision-making process
To have a sub-council to the local councilis just an extra layer of beaurocracy
and we have too much of that already
To set up another layer of bureaucracy is not worthwhile

Page 82

































Total oppose proposal to increase council tax, add an extra layer of
government and require the election of 12 cllrs
Total waste of council tax and not necessary to have more layers of decision
making
Totally unnecessary and overly bureaucratic and a waste of council tax
payer’s money
Trend these days is for less layers of government - see Cornwall and Wiltshire
trying to unite a substantial group of people with very different needs will
create division and may prove to be less efficiently undertaken by the work
currently undertaken by the SCC and EBC
Unnecessary increase on tax burden of residents
Unnecessary layer of bureaucracy that has no real power is in our view not
needed for our village
Unnecessary tier of bureaucracy within the already bloated local government
Unwelcome extra cost, EBC should be reducing cost to taxpayers not
increasing them
Unworthwhile to set up another layer of bureaucracy
Wants a clean and tidy village
Wants to see Hersham reinstated as a whole and properly represented
Wants to stay with EBC
We already have Surrey and Elmbridge cllrs so why more?
We already pay a huge amount of council tax
We are ok as we are and served very well by EBC - if it isn't broken, don't fix it
We are satisfied that our existing councillors provide a good service and a
good level of support
We believe that having a single tier of council provides a better level of
service than could be achieved with multiple tiers of council
We believe the additional cost far outweighs the benefits especially with the
costs of 12 councillors
We believe the presence of such a council would only confuse the
administration of services
We do not believe services proposed for this Council provide any significant
benefit to the community
We do not need 12 additional cllrs racking up expenses
We do not need more committee members arguing about measures that will
never materialise
We do not support the creation of a Parish Council for Hersham. We see no
benefit in this proposal
We have enough bureaucracy across this country and really don’t need more
we have lived in Hersham for nearly fifty years and are quite satisfied with the
current arrangements
We need no further layer of bureaucracy in the local area
We see no benefit in paying extra for this Council
What a terrible waste of everybody’s time and money. Let it die at birth
Wholly unnecessary extra layer of government
Would just be introducing another layer of bureaucracy and adding
unnecessary cost to our already high council tax. I do not think the
introduction of yet more councillors would improve the already pleasant village
in which I live

Page 83













Yes to 12 parish cllrs
Vast majority of members in favour of creation of community council for
Hersham. Views are based on opinions and comments from our AGM
meetings over a period of years.
Sees the HCC as a way of delivering the aims of HRA in a much more
effective way through a body with an offical status that can provide community
cohesion and raise a small amount of funding for use locally
HRA feel that the boundaries of the previous Hersham North and Hersham
South wards would provide a good geographical basis for a HCC with further
discussion on the southern boundary to reflect residents in the Cobham area
Members felt strongly that the heart of Hersham Village was important
Felt size of village should not be reduced and lost in surrounding areas
Felt old boundaries should exist and all village amenties should be maintained
for existing and future residents to enjoy.
There are some supporters in central Hersham but the majority of members
along Queens Road, Burwood Road and towards Seven Hills Road are very
much opposed as they do not consider themselves Hersham residents
12 parish cllrs would be excessive
Members do not want to give any money to fund HCC
If Hersham wants a parish council it should be restricted to the current area of
Hersham

Page 84

ELMBRIDGE BOROUGH COUNCIL

ELECTION OF BOROUGH COUNCILLORS - 3rd MAY 2018

OFFICIAL RESULTS OF POLL
As Returning Officer for the election of Borough Councillors in the Borough of Elmbridge held on 3rd May 2018. I hereby
give notice that the number of votes cast for each candidate was as follows; and that the candidates against whose names
the word "Elected" is marked are duly elected Borough Councillors with a term of office expiring in May 2022.

Ward and Number of Vacancies

Page 85

CLAYGATE (1)

Names of Candidates

Description

Votes

Labour Party

121

Liberal Democrat

1,427

SUGDEN, Mark

The Conservative Party
Candidate

988

BROWNE, James William

The Conservative Party
Candidate

1,280

KINGSTON, Elaine Linda

UK Independence Party
(UKIP)

128

Liberal Democrat

268

Labour Party

253

ANDERSON, Vera-Anne
ROLLINGS, Mike

COBHAM & DOWNSIDE (1)

PITMAN, Zelda Eloise
THRELKELD, Irene

1

Result

Total Electors

% Voting
2018

% Voting
2016

Elected

5,484

46.3%

47.3%

6,321

30.5%

30.8%

Elected

ELMBRIDGE BOROUGH COUNCIL

Ward and Number of Vacancies
ESHER (1)

Names of Candidates

Description

Votes

DENNIS, Susan Elizabeth

Labour Party

186

HARMOUR, Laura Jayne

Green Party

151

The Conservative Party
Candidate

1,142

Esher Residents Association

840

Labour Party

314

HILL-PURCELL, Anne Elizabeth

Hersham Village Society

640

MITCHELL, Ruth

The Conservative Party
Candidate

1,152

Green Party

256

Liberal Democrat

236

Labour Party

71

WAUGH, Simon Jonathan
WILLIAMS, Richard Charles John
HERSHAM VILLAGE (1)

CROOK, Julie Anne

Page 86

PALMER, Olivia Joy
HINCHLEY WOOD AND WESTON
GREEN (1)

AMBEKAR, Liz
ANDREWS, Jacqueline Mary
HAIG-BROWN, Nigel
HERBERT, Geoff

Hinchley Wood/Weston
Green Residents'
Association
The Conservative Party
Candidate

2

1,762
437

Result

Total Electors

% Voting
2018

% Voting
2016

6,481

35.9%

38.5%

6,171

38.4%

39.5%

6,343

39.5%

40.2%

Elected

Elected

Elected

ELMBRIDGE BOROUGH COUNCIL

Ward and Number of Vacancies
LONG DITTON (1)

Names of Candidates

Description

Votes

Result

Liberal Democrat

1,019

Elected

The Conservative Party
Candidate

1,011

Labour Party

193

The Conservative Party
Candidate

1,337

Green Party

183

MONKEY, The Drummer

Official Monster Raving
Loony Party

22

POPHAM, Tony

The Molesey Residents
Association

1,048

Labour Party

265

The Molesey Residents
Association

1,043

Labour Party

273

FAIRBANK, Barry Arthur
RILEY-HARDS, Claudia Rosamund
SCHILTZ, Bronte Baddeley

MOLESEY EAST (1)

BAX, Steve
HOWARD, Lisa

Page 87

RENDALL, Rosie
MOLESEY WEST (1)

AHMED, Ruby Robjan
DORAN, Marc
NAGLE, Paul Terence
WOOD, Paul Leslie

Liberal Democrats

181

The Conservative Party
Candidate

745

3

Total Electors

% Voting
2018

% Voting
2016

5,243

42.6%

38.7%

6,648

43.0%

43.9%

6,732

33.4%

33.9%

Elected

Elected

ELMBRIDGE BOROUGH COUNCIL

Ward and Number of Vacancies

Names of Candidates

OATLANDS AND BURWOOD PARK
CHEYNE, Barry James Frederick
(1)
KADWILL-KELLY, Simon Anthony
WEERTMAN, Warren
WINTON, Graham
OXSHOTT & STOKE D'ABERNON (1)

BRYANT, Hugh David
BURLEY, Andrew Peter

Page 88

FORD, Dorothy
WOOD, Nicholas David
THAMES DITTON (1)

GRIFFIN, Benjamin Peter

JAMES, Caroline Kyrke

OXLEY, Francisca
WANG, Xingang

Description

Votes

Result

The Conservative Party
Candidate

1,513

Elected

UK Independence Party
(UKIP)

51

Labour Party

254

Liberal Democrats

370

Labour Party

118

The Conservative Party
Candidate

1,755

Liberal Democrats

366

UK Independence Party
(UKIP)

50

Labour Party

210

Thames Ditton / Weston
Green Residents'
Association

1,593

Liberal Democrats

214

The Conservative Party
Candidate

412

4

Total Electors

% Voting
2018

% Voting
2016

5,867

37.4%

34.3%

6,510

35.2%

32.9%

6,381

38.2%

36.9%

Elected

Elected

ELMBRIDGE BOROUGH COUNCIL

Ward and Number of Vacancies
WALTON CENTRAL (1)

WALTON NORTH (1)

Page 89
WALTON SOUTH (1)

Names of Candidates

Description

Votes

RAMSBOTTOM, Peter Adrian

Labour Party

292

RICHARDSON, Christine Jean

The Conservative Party
Candidate

1,020

WOOLGAR, Graham Leonard

The Walton Society

947

Official Monster Raving
Loony Party

38

HAWKES, Margaret Mary

Liberal Democrats

256

HYLANDS, Lana Victoria

Labour Party

634

IONS, David William

UK Independence Party
(UKIP)

90

KOPITKO, Alan Harvey

The Conservative Party
Candidate

851

Liberal Democrats

719

The Conservative Party
Candidate

1,276

Labour Party

336

BADGER, Baron

ELMER, Chris
HOWARD, Malcom Forbes
JEPSON, Katrina Anne

5

Result

Total Electors

% Voting
2018

% Voting
2016

Elected

5,942

38.2%

38.1%

6,007

31.3%

29.1%

6,719

34.9%

32.0%

Elected

Elected

ELMBRIDGE BOROUGH COUNCIL

Ward and Number of Vacancies
WEYBRIDGE RIVERSIDE (1)

Names of Candidates

Description

Votes

FRANKLIN, Stephanie Clare

Labour Party

193

MACKENZIE, Craig Calder

Independent

304

Liberal Democrats

891

MUDDYMAN, Andrew Martin

The Conservative Party
Candidate

842

POPE, Timothy Patrick

UK Independence Party
(UKIP)

39

Weybridge & St George's
Independents

878

Labour Party

219

The Conservative Party
Candidate

1,293

MACLEOD, Vicki

WEYBRIDGE ST GEORGE'S HILL
BHAMRA, Rani Kaur
(1)

Page 90

RENDALL, Angus
SOOD, Charu

6

Result

Total Electors

% Voting
2018

% Voting
2016

Elected

5,922

38.4%

36.0%

6,289

38.1%

38.4%

Elected

Agenda Item 9.(a)
These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Elmbridge Borough Council
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Report of a meeting held on Thursday, 27 September 2018
Members of the Committee:
* N. Haig-Brown (Chairman)
* Rachael I. Lake (Vice-Chairman)
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

D.J. Archer
M. Axton
S. Bax
M.J. Bennison
Tricia W. Bland
Mrs. C.J. Cross
M.J. Freeman

*
*
*
*
*
*
*

N. Houston
Mrs. V. Macleod
Mrs. C. Richardson
M. Rollings
C.R. Sadler
Mrs. C. Sood
Mrs. J.R. Turner

* Denotes attendance
Also present:
M.F. Howard, D.J. Lewis and Mrs. M. Marshall
12/18

Declarations of Interest
In respect of item 3 ‘Recommendations from the Countryside Consultative Group
meeting held on 12 July 2018’ (Minute No. 14/18 refers), whilst not a disclosable
pecuniary or any other interest under the Code of Conduct, M. Bennison wished
that it be noted that the Claygate Common Access matter was located within his
Division as Surrey County Councillor for Hinchley Wood, Claygate and Oxshott.

13/18

Minutes of the Meetings held on 16 May and 14 June 2018 (for signing)
In respect of Minute reference 5/18 (f) of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
meeting held on the 14 June 2018, the Chairman commented that the Membership
of the Elmbridge Energy and Sustainability Group should have stated O.T.
Chappell, Tricia W. Bland and Mrs. C. Elmer.
Subject to this amendment, the minutes of the meetings held on 16 May and 14
June 2018 were agreed as correct records and signed by the Chairman.
Recommendation to Cabinet on 14 November 2018

14/18

Recommendations from the Countryside Consultative Group meeting held on 12
July 2018
(Link to Council Priorities: A5, A6, P4, P5)
The Committee considered a report in relation to the recommendations from the
Countryside Consultative Group (CCG) meeting held on 12 July 2018 in respect of
Page 91

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

five matters, namely ‘Claygate Common Access’; ‘Access Request Couchmore
House, Littleworth Common’; ‘Lower Mole Countryside Management Project; ‘Tilt
Road Parking’; and ‘Glaxosmith Access Weybridge Heath’.
Claygate Common Access
Following a change in the ownership for plots located on 40 Acre Field, which was
adjacent to Common Lane, a request had been received to move the access point
further down Common Lane so that the owners could control the access point. The
existing access point was adjacent to the car park on Common Lane that had been
closed due to incidents of anti-social behaviour. Ward Councillors had been
consulted on the matter and no objections had been made. The CCG Members
had agreed that the track accessway could be moved subject to the resident
bearing all the costs, which the Committee supported.
Access request Couchmore House, Littleworth Common
The CCG had considered a request for the permission to construct a new
accessway across Littleworth Common to Couchmore House so that two additional
dwellings could be built within the grounds of Couchmore House. Concerns had
been raised over the intensification over a highly used part of the common and as
the additional crossover would create a pinch point there would be an increased
flooding risk associated. Accordingly, the CCG members did not consider that the
proposal was appropriate for the area and could not give support to an additional
crossover. The Committee concurred with this approach.
Lower Mole Countryside Management Project
The CCG had been advised of the annual review of the Service Level Agreement
with the Lower Mole Countryside Management Project (LMCP) as part of the
Countryside Partnerships. The service level agreement confirmed funding from the
Council for the forthcoming year with an indication that funding would continue over
a three-year period through to 2020/21. The CCG had acknowledged the excellent
work of the partnership and the significant saving to the Council through works
completed by the Project. Accordingly, the CCG had recommended that the
Council provide an indication that funding would continue over a three-year period
and that consideration be given to increase the current grant annually by inflation.
During consideration of this item, the Committee considered that the
recommendation to provide an indication to the project that funding would continue
over the three-year period, should be amended to say that the Council ‘would’
continue to fund the project over the three-year period through to 2020/21. This
was to provide clarification to the project that the funding would continue to be
provided during the period of the Service Level Agreement.
Tilt Road Parking
The CCG had considered a request from a resident of Korea Cottages, Cobham for
the permission to have a ‘H-Bar’ painted on Tilt Road outside of their property.
Ward Councillors had raised objections that the request was not appropriate for a
conservation area. The CCG had been advised that as there were only two
properties located around Tilt Road that had similar driveways, the introduction of
this would set a wider precedent. Accordingly, the CCG could not support the
request.
Page 92

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

One Member, who was also a Cobham Ward Councillor, noted that the agenda had
stated that objections had been raised by Ward Councillors as it would not be
appropriate for a conservation area. The Member commented that they had no
issue with the proposal given that there were other road markings already present
in the vicinity. In this regard, the Member moved an amendment to the
recommendation to allow the proposal to go forward.
One Member, who was also a CCG Member, commented that the Group had
carefully considered this proposal at its meeting in July 2018 and had been
provided with additional photos and evidence to aid their determination. The Group
considered that as this was within a conservation area, it had been feared that this
could have set a precedence.
Upon consideration of the amended recommendation put forward to allow the
proposal, a vote was taken via a show of hands and the amendment was lost. The
Committee then voted on the substantive CCG recommendation by way of a show
of hands and this was subsequently agreed.
Glaxosmithkline Access Weybridge Heath
The CCG had considered a request from Glaxosmithkline (GSK) for the permission
to resurface the existing vehicular track and create a new pedestrian access path
adjacent to the existing vehicle accessway. In 2009, the CCG had considered a
number of requests from the company in respect of traffic calming measures and
improved pedestrian access. Although permission had been given for a pedestrian
path following discussions with neighbours, GSK had decided not to proceed at that
time.
GSK had indicated that due to an increase in traffic along Heath Road, it was now
an appropriate time to allow measures to be introduced to improve safety for both
their workers and local residents and therefore sought permission for a path to be
created.
When the initial permission had been considered in 2009, GSK had been required
to carry out more local consultation however, this had not been progressed. The
CCG was also advised that accident / near miss data had not been provided.
Furthermore, they had been informed that there would be a permissive right of way
across the site, and the Countryside Team would monitor the track to be safe.
Given that the proposed footpath would be constructed using Type 1 loose
materials, concern had been raised that this would turn the track in to a road. In
this regard, the CCG had considered that there was insufficient information to make
a decision on and as such required further information in respect of results and
findings from neighbour consultation; and information on accidents / near misses
for tracks / roads, which the Committee supported.
Recommended: that
Claygate Common Access
Members were in agreement that the track accessway could be moved subject to
the resident bearing all the costs.
Page 93

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Access request Couchmore House, Littleworth Common
Members felt that this was not appropriate for this area and as such did not give
support to an additional crossover.
Lower Mole Countryside Management Project
a)

the Council would continue to provide funding to the Lower Mole Countryside
Management Project over the 3-year period through to 2020/21; and

b)

that consideration be given that the current grant is increased annually by
inflation.

Tilt Road Parking
Members did not support the request.
Glaxosmithkline Access Weybridge Heath
Members felt that there was insufficient information to base a decision on and as
such asked for further information:
1)
2)

results and findings from neighbour consultation
more information on accidents/near misses for track/road
Matters of Report

15/18

Scrutiny of Cabinet Members - Portfolio Holder for Leisure & Culture, Councillor
M.F. Howard
(Link to Council Priorities: All)
The Portfolio Holder for Leisure & Culture, Councillor M.F. Howard was invited to
attend the meeting to answer any questions that the Committee may have in
respect of the work currently being undertaken as part of his Portfolio and highlight
any issues or challenges.
On behalf of the Performance and Finance Standing Panel, one Member requested
an update in respect of the Sports Hub Playground project including when it would
be completed and become usable. The Portfolio Holder explained that due to the
saturation of the ground where the playground was to be located, there had been a
delay to work commencing. However, the contracted work on the playground would
commence in November 2018 with the required drainage and construction of
concrete bases being undertaken in December. From January to March 2019 it
was anticipated that the grassed area around the playground would become
established and the play equipment would be installed in April 2019. The
playground would then be opened for use by the local community soon thereafter.
Given that the Xcel Sports Hub had been open for twelve months, the Chairman
asked for an update on the key metrics being used to manage the facility and how it
Page 94

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

had been used to date. The Portfolio Holder explained that the performance and
usage of the Xcel Sports Hub had been very successful over its first 12 months of
operation and this had been evident by the varied number of events that had been
held at the facility which included: a number of Football Association courses; 13
School Sports days held on the athletics track, which was an increased number of
bookings than those held at the former Stompond Lane site; Spelthorne District
Sports Day as well as the Elmbridge and Runnymede Primary Schools Association;
increased external bookings for the function room to hold Christmas, Birthdays and
Wedding celebrations; Walton Casuals Juniors held a successful football
tournament in June with approximately 2168 participants making up 271 teams; the
finish line of the Elmbridge 10k race had been located at the Sports Hub; and the
Walton Casual Seniors had launched a football academy at the Hub. The Portfolio
Holder was pleased to advise that the resident clubs had been enjoying their new
home and the level of interest in joining the clubs, participating in both football and
athletics, had increased significantly. The clubs had been working with the
Council’s Sports Development Team to identify ways to encourage more volunteers
to support the clubs as they continued to grow.
In respect of sponsorship, the Portfolio Holder was pleased to report that the
Council had employed an external specialist company to attract sponsorship for the
site. To date, a number of businesses had signed up which included Air Products;
McCarthy and Stone, Knight Frank; ACS; The Jockey Club; Wood Value and
Vanilla Bean.
In respect of the Leisure Facility Strategy and Management Options Appraisal that
had been considered by Cabinet in September, one Member enquired how the four
Public Halls namely Elm Grove, Cecil Hepworth Playhouse, King Gerorge’s Hall
and Vine Hall would be managed and operated after August 2021 given that they
would not be included within the new Leisure Contract. Furthermore, the Member
also enquired about the future of both Ansell Hall, that had been closed for several
years, and Hersham Village Hall that had been closed for over a year. In respect of
the four halls not included within the new Leisure Contract, the Portfolio Holder
explained that the Trustees of King George’s Hall had confirmed that they were
looking to take back the management after August 2021. There were ongoing
plans for the future development of the Cecil Hepworth Playhouse and alternative
management options were being reviewed which would be reported back to
Cabinet. With regard to Elm Grove, this site had a wide range of buildings and had
the potential for redevelopment and discussions in this regard would be held at the
appropriate time. In respect of Vine Hall, there were no current plans however, any
consideration or discussion would be held with Ward Councillors before August
2021. The Portfolio Holder further commented that the future of the Hersham Hall
had been considered at the Cabinet meeting in September and it was agreed that
Ward Councillors would be consulted on all options available including a ‘no
change’ option for any redevelopment. In respect of Ansell Hall, the Portfolio
Holder explained that the Council made the decision to close it in 2008 due to the
low level of usage. It was understood that a new planning application for the site
was coming forward which would outline how the hall would be used and managed
going forward.

Page 95

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

One Member asked why the Council’s flower displays had not been very successful
this year compared to some of the neighbouring Borough’s. The Portfolio Holder
explained that unfortunately a number of the plants had died due a fault in the
watering process and where replacement plants had been installed, these had
been from a plant stock grown much later in the year and therefore had not been in
as an abundant state of those grown earlier in the year. Furthermore, he gave an
assurance that these issues would be rectified for the forthcoming season.
In respect of the increased number of unauthorised encampments the Borough had
experienced during the year, the Committee had a number of questions on this
matter which included: what had been the costs to the Council following the
encampments; how the travellers gained access to the green spaces; what was
being done to protect the Council’s green spaces against future incursions; how did
the level of unauthorised encampments compare to previous years; what would
happen after the court injunction ran out; was there any transit sites identified; and
what was the out of hours procedures for contacting senior officers should an
encampment occur.
In response, the Portfolio Holder explained that the total cost incurred by the
Council due to the encampments was £180,000 and this was by way of clearance
of the sites (£25,000), external support from Bailiffs (£95,000) and site repairs /
improvements (£33,000).
In respect of gaining access to the green space’s sites, the Portfolio Holder advised
that each site was different however it was believed that some reconnaissance was
carried out to the location prior to the convoy arriving whereby padlocks would have
been broken ready for them to access the site. In response to the unauthorised
encampments, the Council had been in liaison with the Surrey Police Design Out
Crime Officer who had reviewed a number of the Council’s green spaces sites and
made recommendations to improve the security. It was anticipated that these
recommendations could be implemented throughout the Borough. In addition, the
Council would also install alternative padlocks to sites which were more durable
and more difficult to break.
The Portfolio Holder acknowledged that over the last three years the number of
unauthorised encampments had doubled in total each year. In 2016 there had
been 8 encampments, in 2017 there had been 16 and this year, more than 30
encampments. It had also been observed that the number of vehicles per
encampment had increased significantly.
The Head of Leisure and Cultural Services explained to the Committee that the
Council was to seek an extension of the current temporary interim injunction when it
expired on 8 November 2018. Should the Council be unsuccessful, and further
encampments were to arise, the Council would revert to using the powers that had
already been used over the last two to three years i.e. the Council’s four step
process (section 77) or where there was mitigating circumstances, the Police could
use Section 61. The Portfolio Holder was pleased to note that by obtaining the
interim injunction, it had been successful in deterring further encampments.
Furthermore, should the injunction be extended, it would mean that the Council
would not need to make all of its green spaces in to fortresses within the Borough.
Page 96

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

In respect of Transit Sites, the Portfolio Holder explained that this was a Surrey led
project and that there was the view that around four transit sites, located in or
around Surrey, could be beneficial to move travellers on to. He commented that
there had been a pilot scheme undertaken in Chichester and it had been noted that
a weakness of the scheme had been when the transit site was at full capacity, no
further individuals could be directed to it. The Portfolio Holder acknowledged that
there was no easy solution to this matter although new ways for dealing with
unauthorised encampments would continue to be pursued.
The Committee was advised that should an unauthorised encampment occur
outside of the normal working hours, there was an emergency telephone number
available to phone to report the encampment. The Head of Leisure and Cultural
Services further advised that the Council had a 24-hour service provision by
Guildford Care Line who held a large cascade of contact details for specific Senior
Officers should they need to be contacted.
One Member enquired whether the Council had any plans to improve the leisure
facilities across the Borough for children given that some playground equipment
had been getting older and required refurbishment. The Portfolio Holder explained
that an inspection programme for all of the Council’s playgrounds was undertaken
and where the need for action arose, a proposal would be put forward and acted
upon.
The Committee thanked the Portfolio Holder for Leisure & Culture for attending the
meeting and for providing informative responses to the Members’ questions.
16/18

Cabinet Decision Making
(Link to Council Priorities: All)
The Committee considered the Cabinet’s Forward Plan, which covered the period 1
October 2018 to 31 January 2019 and contained matters which the Leader of the
Council had reason to believe would be the subject of consideration by Cabinet or
Individual Cabinet Members during this period. The Committee was also asked to
identify any relevant matters for inclusion within the Work Programme in 2018-19.
AGREED that the

17/18

(a)

Cabinet’s Forward Plan be noted; and

(b)

decisions taken by Cabinet at its meeting on 19 September 2018 be noted.

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2018/19
(Link to Council Priorities: All)
The Committee was invited to review progress against its work programme, identify
any additional items for consideration at a future programme and add, amend or
delete items from the work programme as appropriate.

Page 97

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

The following items were highlighted for inclusion on the Committee’s work
programme during the year: the future location of Esher Citizens Advice Bureau;
an update regarding the use of the default payments from the Joint Waste
Collection Contract to purchase water fountains; the future of the Cecil Hepworth
Playhouse; Licensing dog walkers; and the digital voting system used at Council
meetings. In respect of the requested update from the Surrey Downs Clinical
Commissioning Group, the Organisational Development Officer explained that this
was currently being arranged and the details of which meeting this item would be
considered at would be confirmed in due course.
The Committee considered the draft terms and conditions for the Health and
Wellbeing Task and Finish Group and supported these going forward.
The Organisational Development Officer provided the Committee with an update
from the Portfolio Holder for Environment in respect of the Joint Waste Contract that
was promised to be to provided following his recent attendance at the meeting held
in July 2018. The statement was as follows:
‘Progress has been made since I attended the O&S meeting in July and outlined
the action I had taken to address problems with the waste collection services.
While there are still pockets of problems which are addressed as and when they
arise, missed collections have reduced. The number of reports is now averaging
less than 50 per day; a significant reduction on levels seen between April and June.
In addition, all misses are being returned to promptly, with 98% collected by the end
of the next working day.
Across all of the waste services improvements have been made. As well as
addressing immediate issues in resourcing and data, Amey are producing a longer
term improvement plan to deliver enhancements and provide stability to the
collection and cleansing services across the borough. I will continue to work with
Amey and the Joint Waste team to drive further improvements, so that residents
have a waste collection services which they can rely on as they expect.’
AGREED that
a) the terms and conditions for the Health and Wellbeing Task and Finish Group
supported; and
b) the progress of the Committee’s work programme for 2018-19 be noted.

------The meeting commenced at 7.00 pm and concluded at 8.48 pm
N. Haig-Brown
Chairman

Page 98

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Democratic Services Officer
M. Clarke

Committee and Member Services Officer

Other Officers in attendance
Mrs. N. Anderson
I. Burrows
Miss. L. Leigh
H. White
L. Harvey-Samuel
Ms. F. Ainsworth

-

Head of Organisational Development
Head of Leisure and Cultural Services
Policy Officer
Countryside Officer
Policy Assistant
Management Accountant

Page 99

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9.(b)
These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Elmbridge Borough Council
Shareholder Board
Report of a meeting held on 10 October 2018
Members of the Cabinet:
* T.G. Oliver (Chairman)

*
*

A. Davis
N. Haig-Brown
A. Kelly

*
*

Mrs. R. Mitchell
C.R. Sadler

Also present:
Mrs. M. Marshall
1/18

Appointment of Chairman for the Municipal Year 2018/19
The Shareholder Board appointed Councillor T.G. Oliver as Chairman for the
Municipal Year 2018/19.

2/18

Exclusion of Public
Minute
No.

Item

Description of Exempt Information
(Schedule 12A)

7/18

Development of Cobham Garages

Paragraph 3

Recommendation to Council on 5 December 2018
3/18

Review of the Name of Shareholder Board
(Link to Council Priorities: Community Wellbeing)
At the Annual Council Meeting on 16 May 2018, the Shareholder Board was
established and constituted as a formal decision-making Committee of the
Council.
However, since its establishment, some Members had expressed the view that the
name of the Committee should be changed to better reflect the formal nature of
the work that it would be undertaking. Furthermore, the change of name would
also help provide clarity between the Company Board and the Shareholder Board.
Members agreed that in order to aid a better understanding of the role of this
Committee, the name of the Board be retitled ‘Shareholder Committee (Housing)’
going forward.
Recommended: that
Page 101

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

(a)

the Shareholder Board be retitled Shareholder Committee (Housing);

(b)

the Terms of Reference and composition of the Shareholder
Committee (Housing) remain unchanged to that established for the
Shareholder Board on 16 May 2018; and

(c)

the Head of Legal Services update the Council’s Constitution to
reflect the change of name accordingly.
Matters of Report

4/18

EBC Homes Ltd - Progress Report
The Shareholder Board considered a report that provided an update on all matters
relating to the establishment of EBC Homes Ltd. and which set out key priorities
for the remainder of 2018/19, as part of the operational planning process.
Members noted that both EBC Homes Ltd. and EBC Investments Ltd. had been
registered and officers were currently working through the appointment of
Directors, in accordance with standard Companies House requirements.
A brief update was provided in respect of the recruitment of the Non-Executive
Director. The Strategic Director and Deputy Chief Executive reported that the
Council had contacted some agencies in this regard and the agencies had quoted
a fee of between £7,000 - £8,000 to secure an appointment for this role. It was
noted that a couple of individuals who lived within the Borough had been
suggested for this position and consideration in this regard would be given to them
in the first instance. It was acknowledged that individuals with property
development background would be preferred. The Strategic Director and Deputy
Chief Executive further advised that initially the role would be for a one-year
period with remuneration in the region of £3,000 - £4,000 per annum. It was
suggested that should this approach prove unsuccessful, then a local
advertisement, on the same basis as those used for recruiting to the Independent
Remuneration Panel, could be used.
The Strategic Director and Deputy Chief Executive reported on the recruitment of
the Development Officer. It was considered appropriate that this initially be
recruited on a 2-year fixed term post. Whilst this post would sit within the Asset
Management & Property Services Team, given that the role would include
identifying suitable sites, it would also be working closely with both the Planning
Services and Housing Services Teams.
In respect of communications and marketing, the Board noted that a single page
update would be available on the Council’s website and when EBC Homes Ltd.
was fully established, consideration could be given to developing a micro-site or
its own website. It was considered appropriate that communications and
marketing activities start small until some schemes / projects had been delivered.
The Strategic Director and Deputy Chief Executive then provided an update in
respect of how the units / homes would be managed going forward. The Board
Page 102

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

acknowledged that bringing the housing management back in-house was not an
option and therefore an outline specification had been written and early
discussions had taken place with both Crown Simmons and Transform Housing &
Support. The Strategic Director and Deputy Chief Executive advised that
proposals had been received from both housing providers on the basis of a
one-year pilot and these were in the process of being evaluated. It was hoped
that an appointment in this regard would be made shortly.
In answer to a question as to whether Rentstart could be suitable as a future
Housing Management Company, the Housing Development Consultant confirmed
that this organisation had not been approached at this stage. The two Housing
Associations that had been approached had good reputations and were based
within the Borough. Given that the housing management proposal was for a
one-year pilot only, should Rentstart wish to be considered in the future they could
submit a tender once there was a larger number of homes to be managed.
The Board received an update regarding the current projects in progress which
included Albermarle House and Weybridge Hall.
The Strategic Director and Deputy Chief Executive also took the opportunity to
report that the Council was currently looking at acquiring a property in the Borough
that included 37 flats. Early thoughts had been that 50% would be used for
privately rented and 50% for affordable rental. The Board was pleased to note
that if purchased, most of the units could be used straight away without too much
investment. As the Property Appraisal Group had given its support to acquiring
the site, the Head of Asset Management and Property Services further advised
that the site was now under offer and the due diligence aspects were in progress.
Given this position, a report would be submitted to Cabinet in November and
Council in December 2018.
A discussion took place regarding the governance structure in respect of the
Property Appraisal Group and the Shareholder Board and given that there needed
to be no conflict and clear transparency, it was considered appropriate that both
be run in parallel and only where residential units were involved, the Shareholder
Board be invited to attend the meeting of the Property Appraisal Group.
The Strategic Director and Deputy Chief Executive then provided an update
regarding new development opportunities. The Board noted that a full analysis of
the planning register was ongoing with a view to identifying potential sites. The
Housing Development Consultant took the opportunity to update on progress in
this regard and out of 400 approved planning applications, he had a list of
approximately 30 schemes for further consideration. The Board noted that the
schemes being considered should be ones that would fit with the objectives of the
Business Plan and which would ultimately provide affordable housing.
An update regarding the future planned activity, which included the setting up of
the EBC Homes Ltd. financial and trading systems was also provided. A
discussion also took place regarding the borrowing limit and access to the
Council’s Affordable Housing Enabling Fund.

Page 103

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

The Board welcomed the comprehensive update and accordingly
Resolved that the progress made on the establishment of the Housing Company
be noted.
5/18

Reflection on the training held on 1 October 2018
The Shareholder Board acknowledged and reflected on the bespoke training that
had been undertaken by all Members of the Board on 1 October 2018.
The training had been delivered by representatives from Browne Jacobsen and
had been supported by Mr. Ozay Ali, the Housing Development Consultant.

6/18

Future Meeting Dates
The Shareholder Board noted the following meeting dates for the remainder of the
Municipal Year 2018/19 and agreed that a start time of 7 p.m. was appropriate:



7/18

Wednesday 23 January 2019; and
Wednesday 27 March 2019.

Development of Cobham Garages
(Below is a brief summary of the matters discussed under this item. In view
of the nature of the discussion which contained exempt information as
defined under Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972, as amended, a copy of the full Minute is appended [at
the back of these Minutes] as Minute No. 8/18 for Members of the Council
only.)
(Link to Council Priorities: Community Wellbeing)
The Shareholder Board considered a report in respect of the development of
Cobham Garages.
------The meeting commenced at 5.00 pm and concluded at 6.05 pm

T.G. Oliver
Leader

Page 104

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Democratic Services Officer
Mrs. T. Hulse

Principal Committee and Member Services Officer

Other Officers in attendance
Mrs. S. Selvanathan
Mrs. A. Williams
O. Ali

Strategic Director and Deputy Chief Executive
Head of Asset Management and Property Services
Housing Development Consultant

Page 105

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 107

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9.(c)
These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Elmbridge Borough Council
Appointments Sub-Committee
Report of a meeting held on Wednesday, 10 October 2018
Members of the Committee:
* T.G. Oliver (Chairman)
*
*

C.R. Sadler
J.W. Browne
A. Davis

*

Mrs. K. Randolph
Mrs. M.C. Sheldon

* Denotes attendance
(The Sub-Committee noted that Councillor A. Davis had been confirmed as a
permanent replacement member for Councillor Mrs. M. Marshall for the remainder
of the 2018/19 Municipal Year.)
Substitutes:
Mrs. M. Marshall (Substituting for A. Davis)
Also present:
M.F. Howard
6/18

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

7/18

Minutes of the Meeting held on 18 June 2018
The Minutes of the meeting held on 18 June 2018 were agreed as a correct record
and signed by the Chairman.
Matters of Report

8/18

Appointments to Outside Bodies
(Link to Council Priorities: All)
The Sub-Committee considered the nominations in respect of appointments to
outside bodies.
AGREED that the following appointments be made:

Page 109

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

9/18

(i)

Councillor B.J.F. Cheyne be appointed as the Council’s Armed Forces
Champion until he is no longer an elected Councillor or until he decides that
he no longer wishes to be the representative;

(ii)

Councillor M.F. Howard be appointed to serve as a Council representative
on the Elmbridge Sports Council for the remainder of the Municipal Year
2018/19;

(iii)

Councillor I. Donaldson be appointed to serve as the Council’s
representative on the Heathrow Airport Community Noise Forum for the
remainder of the Municipal Year 2018/19; and

(iv)

Councillor Mrs. C. Elmer be re-appointed to serve as the Council’s
representative on the Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust Council of
Governors for a further 3-year term of office expiring 5 November 2021.

Appointment of Nominative Trustees
(Link to Council Priorities: All)
The Sub-Committee considered the nominations in respect of appointments to
Charities.
With regard to the Weybridge Land Charity, whilst noting that Mr. G. Winton, a
former Councillor had indicated his willingness to be re-appointed, the SubCommittee acknowledged that a number of residents had expressed an interest in
being considered for the vacancies.
The Chairman reported that the Charity’s view was that the six representatives
appointed by the Council should either be former or serving Councillors. Whilst
acknowledging this view, it was noted that the Charity’s Scheme did not include
such prescriptive requirements and a nominee did not have to be a former or
serving Councillor.
Given that a number of expressions of interest from local residents had been
received in respect of the two vacancies, the Sub-Committee felt it appropriate that
the Charity consider a more transparent process for the selection and nomination of
Trustees.
Accordingly, Members agreed that the appointments to the Weybridge Land Charity
be deferred and that the Clerk to the Charity be advised that the Sub-Committee
did not feel confident in making appointments without there being clarity on the
Charity’s selection process. The Sub-Committee also expressed its wish that once
a clear selection process had been undertaken, the Charity would contact the
Council with its agreed nominations.
The Law Practice Manager suggested in the interests of transparency that should
the Charity be unable to agree nominations, it would revert to the Council, through
the Appointments Sub-Committee, to make a decision. She commented that a
consistent process for each of the interested persons alongside any former or
Page 110

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

serving Councillor should be undertaken with the use of a proforma application
form.
The Sub-Committee supported this approach and reiterated that its responsibility
was to appoint the best person(s) for the role.
AGREED that:
(i)

Mrs. R. Somerville be appointed as a Trustee of the Cobham Combined
Charities for a four-year term of office expiring 10 October 2022;

(ii)

Councillor S. Bax be re-appointed as a Trustee of the Eleemosynary Charity
of Joseph Palmer for a further four-year term of office expiring 10 October
2022;

(iii)

Councillor D.J. Lewis be re-appointed as a Trustee of the Stoke D’Abernon
Charities for a further four-year term of office expiring 10 October 2022;

(iv)

Councillor Mrs. C. James be appointed as a Trustee of the National Schools
Foundation – The Sullivan No. 2 Fund (Thames Ditton) for a three-year term
of office expiring 10 October 2021; and

(v)

the appointments to the Weybridge Land Charity be deferred be and the
Clerk to the Charity be advised that the Sub-Committee did not feel confident
in making appointments without there being clarity on the Charity’s selection
process. Once a clear selection process had been undertaken, the Charity
contact the Council with its agreed nominations.
------The meeting commenced at 6.40 pm and concluded at 6.48 pm

T.G. Oliver
Chairman
Democratic Services Officer
Mrs. T. Hulse

Principal Committee and Member Services Officer

Other Officers in attendance
Mrs. C. Herbert

Law Practice Manager

Page 111

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9.(d)
These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Elmbridge Borough Council
Cabinet
Report of a meeting held on 10 October 2018
Members of the Cabinet:
* T.G. Oliver (Leader)
* J.W. Browne (Deputy Leader)

*
*

A.P. Burley
G.P. Dearlove
M.F. Howard

*
*

A. Kelly
Mrs. R. Mitchell

Also present:
D.J. Archer, Mrs. C. Elmer, B. Fairbank, N. Haig-Brown, Mrs. M. Marshall, M. Rollings,
C.R. Sadler, S.J. Selleck, Mrs. M.C. Sheldon and Mrs. J.R. Turner
32/18

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

33/18

Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 19 September 2018
The Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 19 September 2018 were agreed
as a correct record and signed by the Leader.
Recommendation to Council on 5 December 2018

34/18

The Care & Repair Elmbridge Handyperson Service - a review of fees and charges
(Link to Council Priorities: P2 and P4)
The Portfolio Holder for Housing introduced the report that provided
background to the Council’s Handyperson Scheme and proposed changes to
the charges with effect from 1 April 2019.
The Cabinet was reminded that the Care and Repair Elmbridge (CARE) was
the Council’s in-house Home Improvement Agency which provided a range of
services to help older and vulnerable residents to live independently and safely
by repairing, improving or adapting their homes.
CARE ran a well-established handyperson service (HPS) which carried out
small jobs and minor repairs in and around residents’ homes. The work was
limited to a maximum of two hours duration and the service was available to
homeowners and private tenants who were either aged 70 or more, disabled,
vulnerable in some other way and / or were in receipt of means-tested benefits.

Page 113

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

With regard to the charging arrangements, the Portfolio Holder advised that the
HPS charged a standard rate of £17 per hour for labour, with those in receipt of
particular means-tested benefits being charged £10 per hour. Materials were
charged at cost and keysafes were supplied and fitted for £50.
As the labour charges for the HPS had not been reviewed or increased for at
least nine years, the charges were towards the lower end of those part-publicly
funded services operating across Surrey.
In this regard, the Portfolio Holder reported that a review of charges had been
undertaken in order to maintain the financial viability of the service and help
limit pressure on the Council’s cost base. Analysis of work undertaken by the
HPS between 1 April and 31 August 2018 indicated that approximately 60% of
the chargeable hours were charged at the standard rate of £17 per hour, with
40% at the lower rate. In light of these figures, it was proposed that, from
1 April 2019, the standard hourly labour rate be increased from £17 to £22 per
hour and the discounted rate be increased from £10 to £11 per hour. It was
also proposed that the charge for supplying and fitting keysafes be increased
from £50 to £55. It was considered that these changes would limit the level of
increase for those on qualifying benefits to £1 per hour; help alleviate pressure
on the Council’s cost base by bringing in additional fees in the region of £2,000
to £3,000 per year; and longer-term it would help put the service on a more
sustainable footing, by having caught up with inflation.
It was further proposed that with effect from 2020/21, the charges for the HPS
be increased by inflation (using the retail price index in place as at the
preceding September), rounded to the nearest ten pence, save in the
circumstances where Members approve an increase over the relevant rate of
inflation.
The Portfolio Holder also took the opportunity to provide a brief update with
regard to a review into the delivery of aids and adaptations across Surrey. The
Cabinet noted that officers across the Surrey Boroughs and Districts, Surrey
County Council and the Clinical Commissioning Groups were working together
to determine how the handyperson services could do more in respect of the
preventative agenda. This work was ongoing but it was anticipated that by mid2019, it would have advanced sufficiently to establish how the HPS might
change to best deliver what was needed.
The Cabinet discussed the proposed charges and the Portfolio Holder for
Environment and Transport queried how the member of staff travelled to the
residents’ homes. The Strategic Director and Deputy Chief Executive advised
that the staff member used their own vehicle and mileage was reimbursed
accordingly. She further commented that the use of the Council’s electric
vehicles / a company vehicle was currently being explored.
The Leader reported that he used to be involved with Homesupport Elmbridge,
a charity which provides practical help and support to people in the Borough
and surrounding areas, who due to age, sickness or disability required
additional support at home. Whilst the Council’s Handyperson Service was
Page 114

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

excellent, the Leader commented that the users of the service were probably
the same that used the services of Homesupport Elmbridge. In this regard, he
considered that there could be an opportunity for both organisations to work
together and he asked that the Interim Head of Housing Services meet with
representatives of Homesupport Elmbridge to see if there were any synergies /
benefits for a closer working relationship.
The Leader invited Councillor Mrs. C. Elmer, a Walton South Ward Councillor,
to address the meeting. Councillor Mrs. Elmer advised Members that her
mother had been a recipient of both services (Handyperson Scheme and
Homesupport Elmbridge) and in her opinion, with both organisations working
closely together in the future this would not only provide a greater networking
opportunity but could result in the Handyperson Scheme benefitting from more
clients.
The Leader then invited Councillor Mrs. M. Marshall, Deputy Group Leader of
the Liberal Democrats Political Group, to address the meeting. Councillor
Mrs. Marshall advised that she had attended the recent Annual General
Meeting of Homesupport Elmbridge, and there had been a discussion about
working with the Council’s Handyperson Scheme.
Recommended: that
(a)

the standard hourly charge for the Handyperson Service be
increased from £17 per hour to £22 per hour; the concessionary
rate (applying to residents on means-tested benefits) be increased
from £10 per hour to £11 per hour; and the charge for supplying
and fitting keysafes be increased from £50 to £55, with effect from
1 April 2019;

(b)

hourly rates be uplifted annually thereafter in line with the retail
price inflation index (RPIX) (with rounding to the nearest 10p), with
Member approval only sought where increases beyond RPIX are
proposed; and

(c)

the work being undertaken to review the Handyperson Service with
a view to enhancing the service and providing greater value for
money for the Council and service users alike be noted.
Matters of Report

35/18

Progress report on Syrian refugee resettlement programme in Elmbridge
(Link to Council Priorities: P2 and P4)
The Portfolio Holder for Housing introduced the report and reminded Members
that in September 2016, the Cabinet had resolved to participate in the
Vulnerable Persons Resettlement Scheme (VPRS) to assist a minimum of 5
and up to a maximum of 15 Syrian households over a five-year period.

Page 115

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

The Cabinet was advised that the first family had arrived in August 2017 and
the most recent in September 2018. Four of the five families included
dependent children and they had been housed in private-rented
accommodation in different locations around the Borough. All the families had
been receiving support from the Family Support Caseworker and had been
assessed as progressing well in key areas, with the children well settled into
local schools and the adults progressing in terms of learning English. The
adults had been working on developing their skills, knowledge and experience
to get them “work-ready” with some undertaking voluntary work and / or
attending work interviews and job trials. The children had also settled well and
several were in the scouts and / or attending after school clubs.
The Portfolio Holder reported that securing suitable accommodation remained
a challenge with attention being focussed on private landlords willing or able to
let properties at or close to the Local Housing Allowance (LHA) rate, given that
the families were in receipt of housing benefit. Landlords had been recruited
through various means, ranging from the Council’s own communication
channels, property appeals and also through the efforts of Elmbridge CAN and
the wider community.
With regard to the funding of the Scheme, it was noted that the costs incurred
by the Council during the first year of resettlement had been reimbursed by
Central Government. Furthermore, the Government had committed further
funds to assist with the costs over years two to five. The Portfolio Holder was
pleased to report that, to date, the Scheme had operated on a cost neutral
basis for the Council.
The Portfolio Holder further advised that with the arrival of the fifth family in
September 2018, the Council had met its initial target of resettling at least five
households and was now in a position to take stock and decide on whether to
continue accepting further cases through the VPRS, up to the maximum of
fifteen, as originally agreed in September 2016. In this regard, it was proposed
that the Council remained open to accepting further cases, given the scale of
the need and that there was still some way to go before the Government’s
target of resettling 20,000 individuals through the VPRS was met.
Members noted that there were some uncertainties and challenges which could
mean that it might not be possible to hit the higher target. The availability of
further accommodation could not be assumed and clarity was awaited from
Central Government with regard to the future of the VPRS in 2020, given that it
was a five-year programme.
In addition, the provision and funding of support and the need to balance
caseloads with capacity were important considerations too. Whilst resettling
more households would bring in more Home Office funding, there was a
balance to be struck in terms of the capacity and resilience of the Family
Support Service to manage additional cases. To date, it had been possible to
rely on one caseworker (who was Arabic speaking) but if the Council was to
take significantly more cases, then consideration would need to be given as to
how that would be managed.
Page 116

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

In this regard, the Portfolio Holder advised that it was proposed that the Council
continue to offer to resettle households under the VPRS, but on the
understanding that setting more specific and time-related targets was not
appropriate, given the various challenges and uncertainties going forward.
The Cabinet welcomed the positive report and noted that when compared with
the other Surrey Boroughs and Districts that were participating in the Scheme,
Elmbridge was mid-range. It was also acknowledged that finding families and
suitable accommodation continued to be a challenge.
Resolved that

36/18

(a)

the contents of the report and specifically that as at October 2018,
five families had now been resettled in Elmbridge through the Vulnerable
Persons Resettlement Scheme be noted; and

(b)

the original target be maintained and that efforts continue to resettle
further households through the Vulnerable Persons Resettlement
Scheme, up to a maximum of 15.

Recommendations from the Countryside Consultative Group meeting held on
12 July 2018
(Link to Council Priorities: A5, A6, P4, P5)
The Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Culture informed the Cabinet that, at its
meeting on 27 September 2018, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee had
considered five recommendations from the Countryside Consultative Group
(CCG) meeting held on 12 July 2018.
Firstly, in respect of the Claygate Common Access, the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee had supported the CCG’s recommendation that the track
accessway could be moved subject to the resident bearing all the costs.
With regard to a request to give permission to construct a new accessway
across Littleworth Common to Couchmore House which would allow the
construction of two additional dwellings in the grounds of Couchmore House,
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee had supported the CCG’s
recommendation that this was not appropriate for this area and as such an
additional crossover could not be supported.
In respect of the Lower Mole Countryside Project and the financial support that
the Council provided by way of an annual grant, whilst supporting the CCG’s
recommendation, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee had considered that in
order to provide clarification to the project, the Council would continue to
provide funding over a 3-year period through to 2020/21. Furthermore, the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee requested that consideration be given to the
current grant being increased annually by inflation.

Page 117

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

With regard to a request from one of the residents of Korea Cottages, Tilt Road
who was seeking permission to have an ‘H-Bar’ painted on Tilt Road outside
their property, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee had supported the CCG’s
recommendation that this request could not be supported.
Finally, a request had been received from Glaxosmithkline (GSK) for
permission to resurface the existing vehicular track and create a new
pedestrian access path adjacent to the existing vehicle accessway. The
Overview and Scrutiny Committee had supported the recommendation from the
CCG that, as insufficient information had been provided, the request should be
deferred, and further information in respect of neighbour consultation and
information on accidents / near misses for tracks / roads should be provided by
GSK.
On consideration of the report from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the
Cabinet concurred with the recommendations in respect of the Claygate
Common Access; the access request at Couchmore House, Littleworth
Common; and the Tilt Road parking.
With regard to the Lower Mole Countryside Project, given that it was not usual
practice for the Council to support annual funding on a 3-year basis, the
Cabinet considered that the original recommendation from the CCG should be
supported.
In respect of the request from Glaxosmithkline, the Leader invited Councillor
Mrs. J.R. Turner, Group Leader of the Hinchley Wood Residents’ Association
Political Group, to address the meeting. Councillor Mrs. Turner provided
historical context to this request and given that the requested access would be
over common land, a number of residents from the area had raised concerns
over the detriment to the common should permission be granted. She further
commented that should permission be granted, whilst the costs of the work
would be met by GSK, the Council would retain control and manage the work.
Resolved that
(a)

with regard to the Claygate Common Access, the request to move the
track accessway be supported subject to the resident bearing all the
associated costs;

(b)

with regard to the access request at Couchmore House, Littleworth
Common, as this was not appropriate for this area, support for an
additional crossover be not supported;

(c)

in respect of the Lower Mole Countryside Project:
(i)

the Council provide an indication that funding for the project will
continue over the next 3-year period;

(ii)

consideration be given that the current grant be increased
annually by inflation;
Page 118

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

37/18

(d)

with regard to the Tilt Road parking, the request to paint an ‘H-Bar’ on
Tilt Road outside Korea Cottages, be not supported;

(e)

the request by Glaxosmithkline for permission to resurface the existing
vehicular track and create a new pedestrian access path adjacent to the
existing vehicle accessway be deferred for the following further
information:
(i)

results and findings from neighbour consultation; and

(ii)

more information on accidents / near misses for track / road.

Strategic Spending Board Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Allocations September 2018
(Link to Council Priorities: P2)
The Portfolio Holder for Planning Services introduced the report that set out the
recommendations of the Strategic Spending Board.
The Cabinet noted that on 12 September 2018, the Strategic Spending Board
had held an additional meeting to consider one application that had been
deferred at the Board meeting in June 2018 and one application that had been
deferred back to the Board by Cabinet in July 2018. The opportunity had also
been taken to present a new bid for strategic funding from Surrey County
Council – Highways.
The Portfolio Holder reported that the application from Surrey County Council
for improved pedestrian facilities in the vicinity of Long Ditton St. Mary’s Junior
School had been supported and recommended for full funding of £52,000.
With regard to the application from the North West Surrey Clinical
Commissioning Group (NWSCCG), which had sought £140,000 for the
provision of GP services at Walton Community Hospital, the Portfolio Holder
reported that as the applicant had only recently commenced the consultation
with local residents and Ward Councillors and given that the necessary change
of use had yet to be obtained from the Council’s Planning Services Team, the
Board had felt that it could not determine the application at that time.
Accordingly, a deferral of the application had been supported for consideration
at the next meeting of the Board which was likely to take place in early 2019.
In respect of the application from the Cobham Free School and Cobham Rugby
& Sports Association, which had sought £323,418 for the balance of the project
cost towards an artificial playing pitch at Cobham Rugby for the benefit of the
state-funded school, the Portfolio Holder reported that the majority of the Board
had considered that they could not support the application and therefore no
funding was recommended in this regard. Whilst considering that, in his
personal view, this had been the wrong decision, the Portfolio Holder
acknowledged that the application had been dealt with through a democratic
process and unfortunately, he had been outvoted at the meeting.
Page 119

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Accordingly, the Cabinet
Resolved that the recommendations made by the Strategic Spending Board, as
set out at Appendix A of the report, be agreed.
38/18

Local Development Scheme 2018 to 2021
(Link to Council Priorities: P1)
The Portfolio Holder for Planning Services introduced the report that sought
approval for a new Local Development Scheme (LDS) 2018-2021.
The Cabinet was reminded that the Council was required to prepare, publish
and keep up to date, a timetable for the production of Local Plan documents.
The Portfolio Holder reported that in July 2018, the revised National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) had been published. This revised document had
provided much needed certainty, and, coupled with measures put in place to
resolve further slippages in the delivery of the Local Plan evidence base, the
Council was now in a position to prepare and publish a new LDS with a revised
timetable for taking forward the Local Plan over the next three years (20182021).
The Cabinet acknowledged that since the publication of the previous LDS in
November 2017, progress on the new Local Plan had been continuing. In
response to the Strategic Options consultation (Dec 2016-Feb 2017), Officers
had been further developing the Council’s Local Plan evidence base as well as
undertaking a number of additional evidence base studies, including a
Borough-wide Density Study; Urban Capacity Study; and supplementary work
on the initial Green Belt Boundary Belt Review 2016. Much of this work was
now concluding and would inform the next key stage in the Local Plan
preparation.
The Portfolio Holder reported that the revised timetable for the preparation of
the Local Plan responded to the changes in national planning policy as well as
enabling the completion of the outstanding key evidence base studies which
were necessary to support an appropriate strategy for sustainable growth within
the Borough. The draft LDS sought to respond to the Council’s calendar,
allowing for sufficient lead-in times to support decision making as well as
respecting periods of publicity restrictions during the Election periods.
The Cabinet acknowledged that it was important that the Council continued to
demonstrate its commitment to plan preparation moving forward expediently to
the next stages of consultation. Members were reminded that previously, the
Government had made it clear that those authorities who were not planning
positively through the preparation of up-to-date local plans were at risk of
having key decisions on development in their Boroughs being made by the
Planning Inspectorate and Secretary of State rather than by locally elected
Councillors.

Page 120

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

The Leader thanked the Portfolio Holder for Planning Services for his
comprehensive update and commented that as the timetable was progressed,
the public would be regularly updated. Should the timetable slip for any
reason, updates would be provided accordingly. The Leader further
commented that he hoped that there would be significant public engagement
and that the public took the opportunity to contribute to the work involved with
the preparation of the new Local Plan.
The Leader invited Councillor S.J. Selleck, Group Leader of the Residents’
Associations Political Group, to address the meeting. Councillor Selleck
referred to the review of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging
Schedule and suggested that perhaps there was the opportunity for the Council
to review the level of charges, which he believed had been agreed some
4-5 years ago. Given that the cost of providing infrastructure was increasing,
Councillor Selleck felt that a review of the level of charges to ensure that they
were appropriate going forward was important. Whilst not wanting to stifle
development, he reiterated that it was an opportune time to consider whether
the Council could structure the charging differently, as long as it complied with
the CIL Regulations.
The Portfolio Holder for Planning Services agreed that there was an opportunity
to review the level of charges. However, he reported that the Government had
indicated that it was looking at the CIL process and therefore it might be better
to wait until some guidance / consultation document was received in this
regard.
The Leader advised that as the Council was an early adopter of the CIL
process, there was an opportunity, in the light of any further guidance, that the
Council reviews its CIL processes which could include frequency of meetings
and how the Strategic Spending Board operates with the Local Spending
Boards etc.
Resolved that the draft Local Development Scheme 2018 to 2021 that set out
the timetable for the preparation of a new Local Plan and associated
documents, as attached at Appendix A of the report, be approved.

------The meeting commenced at 7.00 pm and concluded at 7.29 pm

T.G. Oliver
Leader
Page 121

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Democratic Services Officer
Mrs. T. Hulse

Principal Committee and Member Services Officer

Other Officers in attendance
R. Moran
Mrs. S. Selvanathan
R. Lee
Mrs. C. Herbert
Mrs. E. Jones

Chief Executive
Strategic Director and Deputy Chief Executive
Strategic Director
Law Practice Manager
Sports Development Officer

Page 122

Agenda Item 9.(e)
These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Elmbridge Borough Council
Individual Cabinet Member Decision Making - Planning Services
Report of decisions taken on 12 October 2018
Present:
J.W. Browne (Portfolio Holder for Planning Services)
5/18

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

6/18

Portfolio Holder's Opening Remarks
Whilst acknowledging that the two reports had been considered by the Local
Plan Working Group at its meeting on 25 September 2018, the Portfolio Holder
for Planning Services thanked the Members of the Working Group for bringing
the importance of these documents to his attention and the suggestion of
seeking approval for publication on the Council’s website at the earliest
opportunity.
Matters of Report

7/18

Draft Development Management Advice Note 1: Understanding Housing Need Draft
Development Management Advice Note 2: Optimising Development Land
(Link to Council Priorities: P1)
The Portfolio Holder for Planning Services considered a report that set out the
details of a draft Development Management Advice Note 1: Understanding
Housing Need and a draft Development Management Advice Note 2:
Optimising Development Land.
The Portfolio Holder was advised that these two draft Development
Management Advice Notes would form part of a series of Advice Notes being
prepared to assist applicants, planning agents and developers, on key matters
arising through the Local Plan preparation.
Whilst the Advice Notes did not introduce new policy or change existing policy,
they did outline the expectations for new residential schemes coming forward
and provided initial guidance on how new proposals could respond to local
development needs.
With regard to the draft Development Management Advice Note 1:
Understanding Housing Needs, the Portfolio Holder noted that this explained
what the local housing need was and how the Council was approaching this
matter in assessing planning applications.

Page 123

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

In respect of the draft Development Management Advice Note 2: Optimising
Development Land, the Portfolio Holder that this set out the Council’s approach
to ensuring the limited development land within the Borough was optimised.
On consideration of the report, the Portfolio Holder reiterated the qualitative
information from the Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) which had
identified the need for smaller homes (1 to 3 bedrooms) within the Borough. In
this regard, the Portfolio Holder asked whether there was any way the Council
could instruct developers to build smaller units within developments in order to
meet the SHMA requirements. The Deputy Planning Policy Manager advised
that Core Strategy Policy CS19 set out the Council’s approach to securing a
proportionate mix of housing types and sizes and this was also supported by
Development Management Policy DM10 which required residential
development on sites of 0.3 hectares or more to promote house types and
sizes that met the most up to date local housing need whilst reflecting the
character of the area. Furthermore, the Deputy Planning Policy Manager
advised that it was hoped to strengthen this approach through the revised
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) so that this would apply to all sites
regardless of their size.
The Portfolio Holder for Planning Services supported the two Advice Notes and
accordingly
Resolved that the Development Management Advice Note 1: Understanding
Housing Need and Development Management Advice Note 2: Optimising
Development Land be approved for publication on the Council’s Website.
8/18

Draft Exemption of Small Sites & the Vacant Building Credit Statement- Update
September 2018
(Link to Council Priorities: P2)
The Portfolio Holder for Planning Services considered a report that provided
details of the updated Exemption of Small Sites and the Vacant Building Credit
Statement, that had been prepared following the publication of the revised
National Planning Policy Statement (NPPF) in July 2018.
The Portfolio Holder was reminded that in the summer of 2016, the Council had
decided to continue to apply Policy CS21 (Affordable Housing) in the decisionmaking process and to consider on a case by case basis the weight to be given
to conflicting local and national planning policy. At that time, this element of
national policy had been issued through a Government Written Ministerial
Statement (WMS) together with changes to Planning Practice Guidance (PPG).
The WMS set out that local planning authorities should not seek affordable
housing contributions on development sites of 10 dwellings or less.
To support the decision to continue the application of Policy CS21, the Council
had published a position statement, the first of which had been published in
2016. In February 2017, the statement had been updated and it looked at
planning applications and appeals over the six-month period following the
Page 124

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

amendment to the Planning Practice Guidance and the Council’s decision to
continue to apply Policy CS21.
The Portfolio Holder was advised that within the revised NPPF, published in
July 2018, the provision set out in the WMS had been formally incorporated into
national policy. In this regard, a conflict now existed in respect of the Council’s
approach to affordable housing provision as set out in Policy CS21 ‘Affordable
Housing’ of the adopted Elmbridge Local Plan: Core Strategy (July 2011).
Accordingly, a draft Statement had been prepared which outlined the Council’s
position on the revised NPPF and how it intended to take forward decisions
where there was a conflict between local and national policy.
The Portfolio Holder noted that the draft Statement explained the local
circumstances and provided justification for the continued approach of seeking
affordable housing contributions on developments of 10 units or fewer, on a
case by case basis.
From past delivery, it was clear that the current policy approach had not had an
adverse impact upon the delivery of new homes on small sites or had been
financially harmful to small and medium enterprise developers.
The draft Statement also reflected on the successful delivery of Policy CS21
evidencing how the contributions to date had enabled the Council to support
the delivery of both new affordable units and ensure the more effective
provision of its existing stock and reduce under occupation.
On consideration of the report and draft Statement, the Portfolio Holder for
Planning Services supported the need to continue to consider Policy CS21
Affordable Housing as part of the decision-making process for any relevant
application and where applicants / developers considered that the charge was
disproportionate, the relevant information setting out scheme viability could be
submitted for independent assessment as set out in the Developer
Contributions Supplementary Planning Document.
Resolved that the Exemption of Small Sites and the Vacant Building Credit
Statement (update September 2018) be approved for publication on the
Council’s Website.
------The meeting commenced at 9.18 am and concluded at 9.28 am

J.W. Browne
Portfolio Holder for Planning Services
Page 125

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Democratic Services Officer
Mrs. T. Hulse

Principal Committee and Member Services Officer

Other Officers in attendance
A. Harrison
Mrs. R. Thorold
Mrs. A. Kantepudi-Bird
M. Corbett

Head of Legal Services
Deputy Strategy & Planning Policy Manager
Senior Planning Policy Officer
Planning Policy Officer

Page 126

Agenda Item 9.(f)
These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Elmbridge Borough Council
Planning Committee
Report of a meeting held on 16 October 2018
Members of the Committee:
* B.J.F. Cheyne (Chairman)
* Mrs. K. Randolph (Vice-Chairman)
*
*
*

*
*

A.P. Burley
A. Coomes
Mrs. C.J. Cross
A. Davis
Mrs. C. Elmer
M.J. Freeman
C.R. Green

*
*
*
*
*
*
*

P.M. Harman
Mrs. C. James
Rachael I. Lake
Mrs. D.M. Mitchell
Mrs. M.C. Sheldon
Mrs. J.R. Turner
S.J. Waugh

* Denotes attendance
Substitutes:
Mrs. M. Marshall (Substituting for A. Davis)
M. Rollings (Substituting for Mrs. C. Elmer)
Also present:
D.J. Lewis
15/18 Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.
16/18 Minutes of the special Planning Committee meeting held on 30 July and the
Planning Committee meeting held on 4 September 2018
The Minutes of the meetings held on 30 July and 4 September 2018 were
agreed as correct records.
Matters of Report
17/18 Planning Applications
The Committee considered the reports of various meetings of the East, North
and South Area Planning Sub-Committees.
Resolved that the reports of the East, North and South Area Planning

Page 127

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Sub-Committees held on 10 September and 8 October 2018 be received and,
except where already determined under delegated powers, the planning matter
set out below be determined as follows:
(a)

2017/3397 - 55 Weston Avenue, West Molesey
Further to the promotion of Planning application 2017/3397 – 55
Weston Avenue, West Molesey, by two Members of the North
Area Planning Sub-Committee at the meeting held on
8 October 2018, the Committee concurred with the
recommendation of the North Area Planning Sub-Committee in
respect of this application. Accordingly, it was
Resolved that permission be granted with conditions and informatives as
outlined in the agenda, and subject to the following additional conditions
and additional informative:
Add Conditions:
9. LANDSCAPING - SCHEME
Prior to any above ground works taking place full details of both
hard and soft landscaping works have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Borough Council and these works shall
be carried out as approved. This scheme shall include details of an
enlarged refuse area and provide indications of all hard surfaces,
walls, fences, access features, the existing trees and hedges to be
retained, together with the new planting to be carried out, and
details of the measures to be taken to protect existing features
during the construction of the development.
Reason: To preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the
locality in accordance with Policy DM6 of the Elmbridge
Development Management Plan 2015.
10. LANDSCAPING - IMPLEMENTATION
All hard and soft landscaping works shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details. Arboricultural work to
existing trees shall be carried out prior to the commencement of
any other development, otherwise all remaining landscaping work
and new planting shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any
part of the development or in accordance to the timetable agreed
with the Borough Council. Any trees or plants, which within a
period of five years of the commencement of any works in
pursuance of the development die, are removed, or become
seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced as soon as
practicable with others of similar size and species, following
consultation with the Borough Council, unless the Borough
Council gives written consent to any variation.

Page 128

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Reason: To preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the
locality in accordance with Policy DM6 of the Elmbridge
Development Management Plan 2015.
Additional Informative:
8. The applicant is advised that the submitted landscaping scheme
in association with Condition 9 requires the approval of the North
Area Planning Sub-Committee.
18/18 Appointment of a Member to the Thames Landscape Strategy Executive
Review Board
Members considered the appointment of a Member to the Thames Landscape
Strategy Executive Review Board.
Resolved that Councillor B.J.F. Cheyne be appointed to the Thames
Landscape Strategy Executive Review Board for a term of office expiring
October 2021, subject to the Councillor remaining an elected Member of the
Council.
19/18 Minutes of the Local Plan Working Group meeting held on 25 September 2018
The Committee received the report of the meeting of the Local Plan Working
Group held on 25 September 2018.
Resolved that the report of the meeting of the Local Plan Working Group held
on 25 September 2018 be received and noted.
20/18 Chairman's Closing Remarks
As this would be the last meeting that Mrs. P. Phillips, Committee and Member
Services Officer, would be attending, on behalf of the Committee, the Chairman
wished to place on record his thanks and wished her well for the future.

------The meeting commenced at 7.00 pm and concluded at 7.31 pm

B.J.F. Cheyne
Chairman

Page 129

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Democratic Services Officer
Mrs. P. Phillips

Committee and Member Services Officer

Duty Legal Officers
Mrs. C. Herbert
Ms. G. Healy

Law Practice Manager
Solicitor

Other Officers in attendance
Mrs. K. Tagliarini
P. Brooks

Head of Planning Services
South Area Team Leader

Page 130

Agenda Item 9.(g)
These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Elmbridge Borough Council
Individual Cabinet Member Decision Making - Housing
Report of decisions taken on 17 October 2018
Present:
A. Kelly (Portfolio Holder for Housing)
Also present:
B. Fairbank and Mrs. V. Macleod
1/18

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.
Matters of Report

2/18

Proposed response to the Government's social housing green paper - "A New Deal
for Social Housing"
(Link to Council Priorities: Community Wellbeing)
The Portfolio Holder for Housing considered a report and proposed response in
respect of a consultation being undertaken by the Government following the
publication of the Housing Green Paper ‘A New Deal for Social Housing’ on
14 August 2018.
The Portfolio Holder was advised that the Green Paper was focussed on social
housing and specifically affordable homes owned and managed by housing
associations and local authorities. The catalyst for its publication had been the
Grenfell Tower tragedy and the ensuing discussions about the performance
standards and accountability of social landlords; the wider landlord-tenant
relationship; and the perceived stigma attached to social housing and residents
of social housing.
In this regard, the consultation set out a strategy for reforming social housing
based around the following five core themes:






Ensuring homes are safe and decent;
Effective resolution of complaints;
Empowering residents and strengthening the regulator;
Tackling stigma and celebrating thriving communities; and
Expanding supply and supporting home ownership.

The Interim Head of Housing Services reported that a number of the specific
questions asked in the Green Paper which did not directly impact on the
Council’s sphere of influence, had been left blank.
Page 131

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

The Portfolio Holder acknowledged the implications for the Council and noted
that its main direct involvement related to working with Registered Provider
Partners and others to provide more affordable housing across the Borough
which was ongoing and supported by the recent formation of the local housing
company (LHC).
During consideration of the report, the Portfolio Holder invited Councillor
Mrs. V. Macleod, who was present at the meeting, to comment on the proposed
consultation response. Councillor Mrs. Macleod made reference to the tackling
stigma element of the consultation, and asked whether the Council had any
influence over the operation and management of PA Housing to ensure that
they were doing what they said they were doing with regard to social housing
tenants. The Portfolio Holder reminded the Members present of the annual PA
Housing presentation that was taking place at Case House in Walton-onThames on 31 October 2018, where Members would have the opportunity of
asking such questions to the PA Housing Management Board. He further
commented that the majority of Walton’s social housing was located within his
Ward, Walton North, and accordingly his casework was primarily PA Housing
related. PA Housing was an independent company and therefore the Council’s
influence was limited. Whilst a good relationship existed between the Council
and PA Housing, the organisation was not accountable to the Council.
The Interim Head of Housing Services further advised that the Council did have
some accountability with PA Housing, specifically in relation to nomination
rights and contractual obligations regarding temporary accommodation. He
also took the opportunity to provide the background to the Council’s decision to
transfer the housing stock to PA Housing (formerly Elmbridge Housing Trust)
and updated on changes made to PA Housing’s Management Board where the
Council, in the past, used to have Councillor appointed representatives.
Whilst acknowledging that positive messages could be communicated
regarding the stigma of social housing, the Portfolio Holder expressed the view
that it was difficult to change the public’s perception of social housing through
Government action. In his opinion, any local stigma was historic and related to
‘Council estates’ of which the majority were now privately owned.
Councillor B. Fairbank, who was also present at the meeting, raised the issue
of the communication channels with PA Housing and the difficulties he had
experienced in getting issues resolved. The Interim Head of Housing Services
agreed to speak to the Head of Housing Services at PA Housing to provide
updated guidance to Members on who to contact should issues arise in the
future.
On consideration of the report, the Portfolio Holder for Housing supported the
proposed consultation response and accordingly,
Resolved that

Page 132

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

(a)

the proposed response to the Government’s Social Housing Green
Paper consultation, as attached at Appendix 1 to the report, be agreed,
subject to any minor amendments; and

(b)

delegated authority be given to the Interim Head of Housing Services to
make any final minor amendments to the consultation response, prior to
its submission.
------The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 10.27 am

A. Kelly
Portfolio Holder for Housing
Democratic Services Officer
Mrs. T. Hulse

Principal Committee and Member Services Officer

Other Officers in attendance
A. Harrison
C. Waters

Head of Legal Services
Interim Head of Housing Services

Page 133

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9.(h)
These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Elmbridge Borough Council
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Report of a meeting held on Thursday, 18 October 2018
Members of the Committee:
* N. Haig-Brown (Chairman)
* Rachael I. Lake (Vice-Chairman)

*
*
*
*
*

D.J. Archer
M. Axton
S. Bax
M.J. Bennison
Tricia W. Bland
Mrs. C.J. Cross
M.J. Freeman

*
*
*
*
*
*

N. Houston
Mrs. V. Macleod
Mrs. C. Richardson
M. Rollings
C.R. Sadler
Mrs. C. Sood
Mrs. J.R. Turner

* Denotes attendance
Substitutes:
I. Donaldson (Substituting for Mrs. C. Sood)
Also present:
A. Kelly and Mrs. D.M. Mitchell
18/18

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

19/18

Minutes of the Meeting held on 12 July 2018
The minutes of the meeting held on 12 July 2018 were agreed as a correct record
and signed by the Chairman.
Matters of Report

20/18

Updates from the Overview and Scrutiny Ancillary Groups (Verbal Update)
The Committee received a verbal update from a number of the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee Ancillary Groups in respect of the work they had been
undertaking since being constituted by the Committee in June 2018.
In respect of the Countryside Consultative Group (CCG), the Chairman, Councillor
Mrs. J.R. Turner, explained that the Group had not met since the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee had considered the Group’s recommendations at its previous
meeting therefore there was nothing to add at that time. However, the CCG would
be meeting again in November 2018.
Page 135

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Councillor Mrs. J.R. Turner, Chairman of the Health and Well-being Task and Finish
Group explained that the Group had met on one occasion with officers and a health
organisation representative to review and identify how things could be improved for
Elmbridge residents in respect of health and well-being. It was suggested that
following the Group’s report to the Committee, it may like to consider inviting some
of the external health organisations to future Committee meetings to provide
informative updates in this regard.
In respect of the Performance and Finance Standing Panel, the Chairman
Councillor C.R. Sadler advised that the Panel had met on two occasions in July and
September since being reconstituted. At the meeting in July, the Panel had
received a presentation from the Council’s Communications Officer in respect of the
Council’s website usage and considered reports on the 2017/18 Revenue and
Capital outturn and the Council’s performance against objectives.
At the second meeting held in September the Panel had received two
presentations, one from the Head of Environmental Services regarding a proposal
for a further extension of the parking contract with Surrey County Council and the
second from the Head of Planning Services in respect of the issues in meeting turn
around targets and the use of extension of time to help meet the targets. The
Panel had also considered reports in respect of both the Revenue and Capital
Budget position and the Council’s performance against objectives for the first
quarter. Councillor Sadler also advised that the Panel had had extensive
discussions about the crime statistics that had been provided by Surrey Police and
the Panel had considered that a further review of these may be required.
Councillor Mrs. Cross, Chairman of the Community Safety Working Group,
explained that the Group had met once thus far and had considered a number of
key areas which included a review of the Community Safety Partnership for
2018/19; a review of the performance of CCTV; and a review of matters related to
Community Safety within the control of Elmbridge. The Chairman provided an
update in respect of a number of areas considered and advised that further
information would be provided to the Committee in the New Year.
In respect of the Energy and Sustainability Working Group, the Chairman,
Councillor Tricia W. Bland, explained that the Group had met on one occasion thus
far and a number of clear parameters had been identified for the group to
investigate. This included how the Borough could improve its approach to energy
and sustainability with a particular focus on reducing, and hopefully eliminating,
single use plastics by identifying innovative ideas and best practice to reduce
usage. The Group had also wanted to get behind the national ‘Refill’ project, a
campaign that aimed to reduce plastic pollution at source by making it easier for
people to reuse and refill reusable bottles with free tap water, rather than buying a
new one. Local shops and businesses could get involved in the project by
becoming a water station where members of the public could go to refill their water
bottles. The Group had also wanted to follow up on the proposed use of the
financial penalties paid by Amey for the installation of drinking fountains throughout
the Borough. The Group wanted to work with a number of other organisations
including Joint Waste Solutions, Surrey County Council and other local authorities
and agencies to identify ways to try and eliminate single use plastics.
Page 136

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Councillor Mrs. D.M. Mitchell Chairman of the Voluntary Sector Panel advised the
Committee that the Panel had met on one occasion and had initially received the
annual review of core funding of voluntary sector organisations. The Panel had
acknowledged that the Esher & District Citizens Advice Bureau’s building lease was
due to end in October 2019 and was aware that discussions were currently being
held about the bureau’s future location thereafter and this would be considered at
future meetings. It had also been acknowledged that Voluntary Action Elmbridge
had merged with Mid Surrey Voluntary Action and was now known as Central
Surrey Voluntary Action. The Panel also noted the work undertaken between the
Council and Central Surrey Voluntary Action, in association with the Citizens Advice
Bureau West and Concern & Help for East Elmbridge Retired (CHEER), in respect
of a joint application under the Loneliness and Isolation Lottery Fund. It was
anticipated that the outcome of the application would be known by the end of
October 2018. The Panel had also had a general discussion in respect of the
importance of highlighting the various voluntary organisations and services that
they provided and to ensure that the Council’s website had appropriate links in this
regard.
The Committee acknowledged that the Chairman of the Elmbridge Older Persons
Advisory Body was unable to attend the meeting to provide an update of the work
undertaken by the Body to date. However, it was anticipated that the Chairman
would attend a future meeting in order to provide the Committee with an update.
The Chairman thanked all of the relevant Chairmen for attending the meeting and
providing an informative update in respect of the work undertaken to date.
21/18

Scrutiny of Cabinet Members
(Link to Council Priorities: All)
The Portfolio Holder for Housing, Councillor A. Kelly was invited to attend the
meeting to answer any questions that the Committee may have in respect of the
work currently being undertaken as part of his Portfolio and to highlight any issues
or challenges.
As the Cabinet Member for Housing had a wide variety of responsibilities, one
Member enquired what his key priorities, particularly in terms of Housing Strategy
and Policy, and allocation of the Affordable Housing Enabling Funds, were. The
Portfolio Holder explained that the key priorities included the roll-out of Universal
Credit across Elmbridge from November; homelessness reduction; and eliminating
the use of out of Borough Bed and Breakfast as temporary accommodation.
In respect of the Enabling Fund, he explained that officers had been exploring a
number of avenues, in partnership with housing association partners, where the
fund could be utilised. Examples of this included a development in Hersham with
Paragon Asra Housing (PA Housing) which would provide up to 20 affordable
housing units; and an exploration between the Council and Transform Housing for
the latter to make a bid to Homes England ‘Move On’ fund which aimed to
increase the supply of accommodation for single persons leaving supported
accommodation (with the Council providing a contribution from the Enabling Fund).
Page 137

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Officers were liaising with Transform Housing to explore a local bid to use the
Enabling Fund for a suitable investment in this regard. The Portfolio Holder
explained that the Council’s Housing and Homelessness Strategy was due to
expire in 2019 and officers had begun initial work on a new strategy and he
anticipated that this would be ready by the beginning of the new Municipal Year.
In respect of the forthcoming implementation of Universal Credit, one Member
enquired what difficulties may arise for Elmbridge residents. The Portfolio Holder
explained that a partial rollout of the new Universal Credit system would commence
on 28 November 2018. He stressed that this would only affect those working-age
individuals making new claims or having a significant change to their existing claims
and that most existing claimants would not be moved over to the new system until
the Government confirmed a date nationally. It was unclear when this date would
be given the issues that had been widely reported in the national media. The
Portfolio Holder explained that the rollout on 28 November would only affect a
relatively small number of people within Elmbridge and therefore the impact should
not be huge. Given that Universal Credit was being implemented by the
Department for Work and Pensions, the Council’s role was one of advice and
signposting those individuals that required help. The Council would provide
communication to residents via the Council’s website and had also commissioned
the Citizens Advice Bureau to provide assisted digital support for the online claims
and personal budgeting support. The Council had also set aside a welfare reform
reserve fund which would be used to mitigate any impact that might occur.
In respect of the Council’s Welfare Reform Reserve Fund, the Chairman enquired
whether this would be made available to residents should there be a delay in them
receiving their first payment. The Portfolio Holder advised that the fund would not
be paid directly to residents however, would be utilised in providing services and
help support the partner organisations that would be assisting claimants. Without
knowing what the future problems would be, the Portfolio Holder explained that it
was difficult to know at this stage how the fund would be used.
In respect of the Affordable Housing Delivery Schedule that had been published in
the Agenda, some Members raised concern that some of the developments
mentioned were of a historical nature and questioned whether some of these still
needed to be reported. Furthermore, Members enquired why there had been
delays in the affordable housing being built and was there any redress that the
Council could seek. The Portfolio Holder acknowledged that some of the entries on
the schedule were of an older nature and should these developments not need to
be reported further then this would be updated. In respect of any delays, the
Portfolio Holder explained that as the Council was dependent on the developer or
builder this was something out of its control and furthermore there would be no
possibility of redress for the Council.
Following the creation of the Council’s Housing Company, one Member asked what
was being done to ensure that viable opportunities continued to be promoted and
that more would be forthcoming in the near future. The Portfolio Holder explained
that officers were exploring a number of opportunities that included looking at
approved planning applications; making contact with developers; and shortlisting
suitable sites that the Council could look to purchase in order to build affordable
Page 138

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

housing and work continued to be undertaken in this regard. The Portfolio Holder
commented that realistically the Housing Company would not be in a position to
build hundreds of affordable homes annually given the cost viability and land
availability. However, the Council would look at options that would be reasonable
and feasible.
In respect of the public perception of social housing, one Member enquired what
was being done to improve the perception; how the Council and PA Housing were
held to account in respect of the impact of social housing on local communities; and
how the Council proposed to improve the impact or mitigate/reduce any negative
impact. The Portfolio Holder explained that the Council had recently responded to
a Social Housing Paper government consultation and one element of the
consultation was in respect of perceived negative perception of social housing and
what could be done to change it. He explained that it was important to await the
Government’s findings and whether they would propose any specific actions for
local authorities. The Portfolio Holder explained that in his opinion it was very
difficult to change public perception however, it was important that everyone was
treated equally. He furthermore explained that within his own Walton North Ward,
which had a significant amount of social housing accommodation, he had not
observed any negativity from residents in respect of these areas of social housing.
The Portfolio Holder informed the Committee that the annual Member briefing by
PA Housing was due to be held on 31 October 2018 at Case House in Walton and
this would be a great opportunity for Councillors to attend and raise any issues they
may have. He further commented that in his opinion he considered that the Council
had a very good working relationship with PA Housing and on an individual level
thought that many Councillors did as well. To assist Members, he would arrange
for the circulation of a guidance document on how Councillors could contact PA
Housing in respect of enquiries or complaints from constituents. The Portfolio
Holder explained that although the Council worked closely with PA Housing, as
they were a separate organisation, they were not accountable to the Council.
However, he did believe that PA Housing did care about the relationship it had with
the Council.
In response, one Member, in their opinion did not feel the relationship between
Councillors and the Housing Association was very good, given that they had
contacted them on numerous occasions regarding one of their properties and
nothing had been done over a period of time. The Portfolio Holder understood this
could be frustrating however encouraged Members to attend the annual Member
briefing and liaise with them directly. Furthermore, the Member could request a one
to one meeting with officers of PA Housing of which some other Councillors had
already done.
In respect of homeless individuals, one Member enquired how many people were
homeless in Elmbridge; how the Council was managing the responsibilities towards
homelessness as a result of the new Homelessness Reduction Act; and what were
the key findings from the review of the local implementation of the Act through the
Elmbridge Homelessness Network. The Portfolio Holder explained that the
Council’s Homelessness Prevention and Advice Team were currently working with
98 potential homeless households. Of this number, 41 households were currently
Page 139

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

residing in temporary accommodation of which 31 households were residing in selfcontained accommodation owned by PA Housing and 17 households were residing
in nightly paid accommodation outside of the Borough. The remaining 50
households were currently receiving assistance from the team to try and prevent
them from becoming homeless. In respect of rough sleepers, although it was
difficult to assess the exact number, the Council was required to provide the
Government with an estimated annual figure and this was undertaken in November
of each year. The Council liaised with partner agencies including the Police,
Rentstart and local churches who were in a better position to know of rough
sleeping instances. As at November 2017, the estimated figure for the Elmbridge
area was 7 rough sleepers.
In respect of the Homelessness Reduction Act responsibilities, the Council tried to
assist as many people as possible. In terms of what the Council had undertaken
this included a restructure of the Housing Options Team which included a number
of additional positions to better meet the new challenges; improved the offers made
to Landlords who signed up to the Councils Rental Support Scheme; held a Private
Rented Landlords Forum to increase engagement and was anticipated that this
would become a regular forum; the Council had part funded Rentstart to employ a
rough sleeper outreach worker to engage with individuals to try and help them to
stay off the street; the Council had also funded Transform Housing and Support in
order to provide support to occupiers of shared houses; and the Council had
created a Homeless Prevention Fund which could be used in extreme cases to
prevent or relieve homelessness. The Portfolio Holder also advised that the
Council was looking at increasing the provision of temporary accommodation. In
terms of the review of local implementation of the Act through the Elmbridge
Homelessness Network, the Portfolio Holder explained that this had not happened
yet but the review was due to commence in the near future.
One Member commented that the first new affordable housing development that
had been created, owned and managed by the Council was due to open to
residents soon and in this regard, enquired whether the Council was to have an
official opening ceremony for Albemarle House in Thames Ditton. The Portfolio
Holder explained that there was to be an official opening and further discussions
would be held, in consultation with Ward Councillors, in this regard.
The Committee thanked the Portfolio Holder for Housing for attending the meeting
and for providing informative responses to the Members’ questions.
22/18

Cabinet Decision Making
(Link to Council Priorities: All)
The Committee considered the Cabinet’s Forward Plan, which covered the period 1
November 2018 to 28 February 2019 and contained matters which the Leader of
the Council had reason to believe would be the subject of consideration by Cabinet
or Individual Cabinet Members during this period. The Committee was also asked
to identify any relevant matters for inclusion within the Work Programme in
2018-19.

Page 140

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

In respect of a future Cabinet item relating to the Cecil Hepworth Playhouse, the
Vice-Chairman considered it appropriate for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
to establish a Task and Finish Group to look at all aspects of the Playhouse i.e.
maintenance, refurbishment, it’s future etc. This would enable the Committee to
have an input in to this matter prior to it being considered by Cabinet. The
Committee Members considered that prior to setting up a Task and Finish Group, it
would be beneficial for the Committee to receive an update report in respect to the
Playhouse prior to constituting a working group.
AGREED that the

23/18

(a)

Cabinet’s Forward Plan be noted; and

(b)

decisions taken by Cabinet at its meeting on 10 October 2018 be noted.

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2018/19
(Link to Council Priorities: All)
The Committee was invited to review progress against its work programme, identify
any additional items for consideration at a future programme and add, amend or
delete items from the work programme as appropriate.
The Organisational Development Officer updated that the items already highlighted
for consideration by the Committee for the Municipal Year would be arranged by
way of similar themes and scheduled in for future meetings.
The Organisational Development Officer explained that a further consultation was
to commence in respect of the expansion of an additional runway located at
Heathrow Airport and in this regard enquired whether the Committee wished to
reconstitute the Heathrow Expansion Task and Finish Group in order to respond to
the consultation. The Committee agreed that this would be appropriate and
accordingly the Organisational Development Officer would seek nominations for the
Membership of the Group.
AGREED that
(a)

the progress of the Committee’s work programme for 2018-19 be noted; and

(b)

a Heathrow Expansion Task and Finish Group be reconstituted to consider
responding to the forthcoming public consultation.
------The meeting commenced at 7.00 pm and concluded at 8.38 pm

N. Haig-Brown
Chairman
Page 141

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Democratic Services Officer
M. Clarke

Committee and Member Services Officer

Other Officers in attendance
Mrs. N. Anderson
C. Waters
Miss. L. Leigh
L. Harvey-Samuel
Mrs. E. Jones

-

Head of Organisational Development
Interim Head of Housing Services
Organisational Development Officer
Policy Assistant
Sports Development Officer

Page 142

Agenda Item 9.(i)
These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Elmbridge Borough Council
Individual Cabinet Member Decision Making - Resources
Report of decisions taken on 31 October 2018
Present:
Mrs. R. Mitchell (Portfolio Holder for Resources)
3/18

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

4/18

Exclusion of Public
Minute
No.

Item

Description of Exempt Information
(Schedule 12A)

6/18

New Lease to The Police and Crime
Commissioner for Surrey

Paragraph 3

Matter of Report
5/18

New Lease to The Police and Crime Commissioner for Surrey
(Below is a brief summary of the matters discussed under this item. In
view of the nature of the discussion which contained exempt information
as defined under Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972, as amended, a copy of the full Minute is appended
[at the back of these Minutes] as Minute No. 6/18 for Members of the
Council only.)
(Link to Council Priorities: Quality Services – Working in partnership to achieve
value for money)
The Portfolio Holder for Resources considered a report that sought approval to
grant a new lease to the Police and Crime Commissioner for Surrey.
------The meeting commenced at 10.30 am and concluded at 10.33 am

Mrs. R. Mitchell
Portfolio Holder for Resources
Page 143

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Democratic Services Officer
Mrs. T. Hulse

Principal Committee and Member Services Officer

Other Officers in attendance
Mrs. A. Williams
A. Harrison

Head of Asset Management and Property Services
Head of Legal Services

Page 144

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 145

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9.(j)
These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Elmbridge Borough Council
Licensing Committee
Report of a meeting held on Monday, 12 November 2018
Members of the Committee:
* D.J. Archer (Chairman)
* M.J. Bennison (Vice-Chairman)
*
*
*
*
*

Tricia W. Bland
B.J.F. Cheyne
Mrs. C.J. Cross
V.G. Eldridge
B. Fairbank

*
*
*
*
*

D.J. Lewis
Mrs. D.M. Mitchell
A.R. Palmer
M. Rollings
Mrs. J.R. Turner

* Denotes attendance
5/18

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.
Licensing (Alcohol & Entertainment) Committee Related Items

6/18

Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee Meetings held on 30 August & 5
October 2018
RESOLVED that the reports of the Licensing Sub-Committee meetings held on
30 August and 5 October 2018 be agreed.
The part of the meeting considering Licensing (Alcohol/Entertainment)
Committee related items concluded at 7.08 p.m.
Licensing (General) Committee Related Items

7/18

Street trading - designation of consent and prohibited roads and Consideration of
draft street trading policy and fee structure
Following the Licensing Committee’s adoption of the provisions of Schedule 4 of
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 in relation to Street
Trading at its meeting held in June 2018, the Committee considered a report that
proposed to designate all streets within the Borough as either Prohibited or
Consent Street areas. The purpose for the introduction of a Street Trading
Scheme was to enable controls to prevent street trading in locations that were
likely to give rise to nuisance; concerns of safety; appropriateness of vehicle or
stand; and where unfair competition could occur.
Following the meeting in June, informal conversations had been held with Surrey
Police and Surrey County Council as the Highways Authority, whereby both
organisations had indicated an agreement for the implementation of a street
trading scheme. In this regard the Council had sought any informal observations
Page 147

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

from these organisations, prior to the formal notification and publication process,
and the Committee was advised that no responses or objections had been
received.
The Council’s Principal Officer (Food and Safety) advised the Committee that
prior to any resolution being passed in respect of the designation of Consent and
Prohibited Streets within the Borough, the Council had to first publish notice of its
intention as per the requirements outlined in the report. As a requirement of the
process, any representations received, would be considered and reported back
to the Committee at its meeting being held in March 2019.
In respect of the six roads that had been proposed to become Prohibited Streets,
the Committee enquired whether additional roads could be added to this list or
the route covered by some of the roads already listed be extended. Individual
Members highlighted a number of areas within their respective Wards i.e.
Cobham, Molesey, Walton on Thames etc. that they considered should be
included in this category. The Principal Officer (Food and Safety) advised that
whilst this was possible, the six roads identified were the main arterial roads
throughout the Borough and therefore it would not be appropriate for any form of
street trading to be allowed on these roads. Furthermore, given the remaining
streets in the Borough would be designated Consent Streets the additional roads
mentioned by the Committee would still be controlled as trading would be
prohibited without the consent of the Council. Given that the next step would be
the formal consultation stage, one Member highlighted that should a significant
number of responses be received from residents, traders and Councillors that
identified additional areas that may be appropriate to be designated as
Prohibited, the Committee would be asked to consider the consultation feedback
at the meeting in March 2019.
In respect of the proposed costing structure, one Member enquired why the
proposed fees for Elmbridge were the second highest compared to other Surrey
Local Authorities. The Principal Officer (Food and Safety) explained that a lot of
time had been spent looking at the relevant steps, processes and officer time
involved, and each individual cost attributed had been input in to a cost
calculator with the proposed figures having been determined. All local
authorities were required to establish a fee structure on a cost recovery basis
and accordingly the proposed fee structure had been established.
In respect of Charitable events, the Principal Officer (Food and Safety) advised
that concerns had been raised that the introduction of the Policy could deter
individuals from holding these. However, the Policy did include an exemption
category for such events to address this issue. To meet the exemption, the
Charity event organisers would need to provide evidence in respect of who
would be trading so that other commercial traders, not associated with the event,
did not turn up and operate unofficially. As these were one-off type of events, a
licence would not be required although for the more regular events, the policy
would apply.
One Member was concerned that the introduction of the Street Trading Policy
could be seen as over regulation given that the local community were, in his
opinion already overtaxed. The Principal Officer (Food and Safety) advised that
Page 148

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

this Policy was being progressed following the recommendations made by the
Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Food Enforcement Task and Finish Group and
was part of the Council Plan for 2018/19.
The Principal Officer (Food and Safety) explained that further to the publication
of the agenda, officers had considered it appropriate to add an additional
condition to the draft Street Trading Policy in respect of peripatetic traders i.e. ice
cream vans etc. Accordingly, information in this regard was tabled at the
meeting. These types of traders did not stay for any length of time at a location
before moving on to the next and it was important that the Policy catered for
these.
Upon consideration of the recommendations the Licensing Committee
Resolved that
(a)

in accordance with paragraph 3(a) of Schedule 4 to the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (“the Act”) the Council’s notice of
intention to pass a resolution in the form set out in Appendix 1 to the report
to designate six identified roads as Prohibited Streets and the remainder of
roads in the Borough as Consent Streets, all be published in a local
newspaper;

(b)

in accordance with paragraph 3(b) of Schedule 4 to the Act the notice be
served on the Chief Officer of Police for the area and the Highway
Authority;

(c)

in accordance with paragraph 6 of Schedule 4 to the Act, the Council invite
representations to the said notice being made in writing to the Council
within a period of not less than 28 days after publication of the notice;

(d)

in accordance with paragraphs 7 and 8 of Schedule 4 to the Act,
consideration of substantive representations to the notice be referred to the
Committee at its meeting on 11 March 2019 at which time a decision on
whether to pass a resolution in the proposed form shall be made; and

(e)

subject to the above, consultation with interested parties on a draft Street
Trading Policy, in the form attached as an appendix to the report or as
amended by officers in the light of the Committee’s consideration be
commenced with substantive responses being reported to the Committee
on 11 March 2019.
------The meeting commenced at 7.00 pm and concluded at 8.02 pm

D.J. Archer
Chairman
Page 149

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Democratic Services Officer
M. Clarke

Committee and Member Services Officer

Other Officers in attendance
A. Harrison
A. Martin

-

Head of Legal Services
Principal Officer (Food and Safety)

Page 150

Agenda Item 9.(k)
These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Elmbridge Borough Council
Cabinet
Report of a meeting held on 14 November 2018
Members of the Cabinet:
* T.G. Oliver (Leader)
* J.W. Browne (Deputy Leader)
*
*
*

A.P. Burley
G.P. Dearlove
M.F. Howard

*
*

A. Kelly
Mrs. R. Mitchell

Also present:
Tricia W. Bland, A. Coomes, Mrs. C.J. Cross, Mrs. C. Elmer, B. Fairbank,
Mrs. V. Macleod, Mrs. M. Marshall, Mrs. K. Randolph, M. Rollings, C.R. Sadler,
S.J. Selleck and Mrs. J.R. Turner
62/18

Declarations of Interest
G.P. Dearlove declared a pecuniary interest under the Code of Conduct in
respect of agenda item 14 (Minute No.68/18 and 72/18 refers) – Property
Transactions, by virtue of having an interest in one of the sites identified in the
Part II report. He left the room during consideration of the item.

63/18

Exclusion of Public
Minute
No.

Item

Description of Exempt Information
(Schedule 12A)

72/18

Property Transactions

Paragraph 3

Recommendations to Council on 5 December 2018
64/18

2018/19 2nd Quarter Council Performance Report
(Link to Council Priorities: All)
The Leader introduced the second quarter’s performance monitoring report in
respect of the 2018/19 basket of performance indicators and Council Plan
objectives.
In the second quarter, 21 (60%) of the basket of performance indicators and
13 (72%) Council Plan objectives were on target.

Page 151

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

The Cabinet considered the progress made during the second quarter and the
opportunity was taken for each of the Portfolio Holders to provide updates in
respect of their areas of responsibility.
In respect of the Community and Social Affairs Portfolio, the Portfolio Holder
reported that the performance indicators for his Portfolio were on target.
However, he commented that he considered that the range of performance
indicators were quite narrow and principally focussed on the meals on wheels
service. In this regard, he advised that it was his intention to expand the
performance indicators to more adequately reflect the services provided by
Community Support Services. The Portfolio Holder also provided a brief
update on the Crime and Disorder Benchmarking Report. He reported that
Elmbridge continued to have the highest number of burglaries in Surrey and in
this regard he had been assured that the focus of the Police continued to be on
domestic burglary, vehicle crime and organised crime.
The Portfolio Holder for Environment and Transport then provided a brief
update in respect of Performance Indicator LES9 (Missed bin collections per
100,000 (Joint Waste Contract Performance Standard)). He reported that the
collection service had now stabilised and approximately 230 to 250 bins were
being missed per week. On a positive note, most of these missed bins were
collected within 24 hours. The Portfolio Holder advised that he was due to
meet the contractor on 22 November 2018 and the issues in respect of
repeated missed bin collections would be discussed and accordingly
improvements would be expected. With regard to Performance Indicator
L-ES10 (Number of food hygiene visits made by officers), the Portfolio Holder
advised that this indicator was for information purposes only and he was
uncertain as to why this indicator had been included within the report,
particularly given that there was no comparison data available.
In respect of the Housing Portfolio, the Portfolio Holder updated on the
improvements that had been made to date. With regard to Performance
Indicator L-HS1 (Number of affordable homes delivered (gross) – cumulative)
the Portfolio Holder advised that he was confident that the overall target of the
delivery of 100 affordable homes would be met by the end of Quarter 4. In
respect of Performance Indicator L-HS2(c) (Number of households in
temporary accommodation out of Borough), the Portfolio Holder commented
that whilst the figure for Quarter 2 was slightly above the target, it was
considered that this was a short-term increase and the additional
five temporary accommodation units at Albermarle House would hopefully
reduce the number of households accommodated outside of the Borough. The
Portfolio Holder also provided a brief update in respect of the Housing Benefit
and Council Tax Benefit performance. It was noted that work to clear the
backlog of claims was continuing and a noticeable improvement was being
made in this regard.
During consideration of the Housing Portfolio, the Portfolio Holder for
Resources reminded Members that at the presentation given last week in
respect of housing needs, it had been reported that 56% of social rented
housing was needed compared to 2% of affordable rented housing. Given that
Page 152

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

the figures in the report only reflected affordable housing, the Portfolio Holder
asked whether in 2019/20, a breakdown of both could be provided. The
Portfolio Holder for Housing agreed to look into this for 2019/20.
The Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Culture then provided a brief update in
respect of his Portfolio. Whilst all the Performance Indicators were on target,
he commented that some concerns had previously been raised regarding the
grass cutting. However, he was pleased to report that this had improved
considerably over the grass cutting season.
In respect of the Planning Services Portfolio, the Portfolio Holder provided a
brief update in respect of Performance Indicator L-TP5 (Percentage of planning
applications processed in 13 weeks: Major applications). Whilst the figures for
Quarter 2 had slightly increased, he reported that the recruitment process was
continuing and that he was confident that once the two vacant Senior Planning
Officer posts had been recruited to, significant improvements would be made.
The Portfolio Holder for Resources then provided a brief update in respect of
her Portfolio. With regard to Performance Indicators L-Customer7 (Percentage
of customers who were satisfied with the service provided) and L-Customer8
(Percentage of customers who contacted the Council once to deal with their
enquiry), whilst these indicators were below target, this had been due to the
enquiries / complaints regarding the waste and recycling service. However,
she was pleased to report that the figures for September 2018 were above
target and therefore trending in the right direction.
As part of the consideration of the report, the Leader also took the opportunity
to provide a brief update in respect of the Council’s application for an injunction
to prevent the setting up of unauthorised encampments on all identified public
land. Whilst the Council had obtained a temporary injunction for 3 months in
August 2018, officers had attended the High Court the previous week and a
new 3-year injunction to prevent the unlawful encampments had been granted.
The Leader commented that this was not a step that the Council wanted to
take. However, due to the level of disruption, damage and cost that the Council
had experienced over the summer there had been no alternative. The granting
of this injunction within Elmbridge would no doubt have an impact on the
neighbouring Boroughs and Districts and in this regard the Council would
continue to work with them to find an overall solution for Surrey.
Recommended: that
(a)

progress against the performance dashboard be noted;

(b)

progress against Council Plan objectives be noted; and

(c)

the comments provided for the targets showing an amber or red
traffic light arising from (a) and (b) above be noted.

Page 153

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

65/18

Council's Schedule of Meetings 2019/20
(Link to Council Priorities: All)
The Leader introduced the report, which set out the Council’s proposed
Schedule of Meetings for the Municipal Year 2019/20.
As was customary, the Schedule had been prepared taking account of various
aspects including the budget setting and closing accounts processes;
accommodating the needs of the Planning process; the scheduling of Overview
& Scrutiny Committee meetings following the Cabinet meetings and within the
respective Cabinet Call-In Notice periods; adjusting the pattern of meetings so
as to incorporate an August recess, as far as possible; and taking account of
the Multi-Faith Calendar and the planned School Term and Holiday dates
2019/20 as published by Surrey County Council.
During consideration of the report, the Portfolio Holder for Planning Services
reported that the Planning Services Team had been looking at the dates for the
Local Spending Board meetings in February and March 2020 and in this
regard, he advised that there could be a need to amend these dates.
Accordingly, he asked that the dates for these meetings in 2020, be noted as
provisional at this time.
The Leader also took the opportunity to encourage Members to attend the
Overview and Scrutiny Workshop that would be taking place on 23 May 2019.
This was an important workshop which would give all Members the opportunity
to generate and prioritise topics for inclusion in the Overview and Scrutiny Work
Programme.
Recommended: that

66/18

(a)

the Council’s Schedule of Meetings for the Municipal Year 2019/20,
as set out at Appendix A to these minutes, be approved;

(b)

in accordance with (a) above, the dates for the Local Spending
Board meetings scheduled in February and March 2020, be
regarded as provisional at this time; and

(c)

it be noted that the Overview and Scrutiny Workshop will be held
on Thursday 23 May 2019.

Revenue Budget Proposals for 2019/20
(Link to Council Priorities: All)
The Portfolio Holder for Resources introduced the report which included initial
Budget proposals for consideration and inclusion in the 2019/20 Budget as part
of the Annual Budget Setting process.

Page 154

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

The Portfolio Holder provided a progress update in respect of the 2019/20
Budget together with details in respect of the national funding position; the
Council Tax levels; the New Homes Bonus Grant; an economic update; and
Business Rates including the 100% Business Rates Retention Pilot and
Business Rates Pooling.
With regard to new spending pressures, the Cabinet noted that an updated
forecast had been prepared which identified a number of spending pressures
totalling £660,000 for 2019/20. The Portfolio Holder highlighted that these
pressures included the reductions in Surrey County Council funding which had
accounted for £200,000; the allowance for traveller encampments at a cost of
£100,000; and the potential decrease in planning income of £100,000. In
addition, she reported that the Council Tax surplus for 2018/19, which would
form part of the 2019/20 Council Tax, had decreased from approximately
£175,000 to £54,000. This had resulted in a decrease of £120,000 compared
to the £25,000 which had been reflected and allowed for in the Strategy.
With regard to Budget Savings for 2019/20, the Portfolio Holder updated on the
savings and additional income that had been identified to date which totalled
£285,000. These proposals included the proposed additional income from the
increase in fees and charges for both Leisure & Cultural Services and
Environmental Services (garden waste and car parking); additional income as a
result of the Gold Service pre-planning application service; additional income
from the redevelopment of the Xcel Indoor Bowls facility; revenue underspends;
the net cost saving in respect of the Automatic Public Conveniences contract;
and the 2019 NNDR1 return.
The Portfolio Holder highlighted that since the publishing of the report, as a
result of obtaining the 3-year protective injunction banning the setting up of
unauthorised encampments on all identified public land, the figures that had
been included within the budget for this purpose, would need to be revisited.
The Cabinet welcomed the comprehensive report and noted that in order to
meet the 2019/20 budget requirement, further savings and budget reductions of
£410,000 were required. The Portfolio Holder advised that officers continued to
work to find further savings / additional income and these would be reported to
the Cabinet in the New Year. Whilst the Council was in a good position to have
a balanced budget in 2019/20, the implications and timing of the Fair Funding
Review were still unknown. Furthermore, it has been assumed that the
Negative Revenue Support Grant would not be applied for in 2019/20.
However, this could not be ruled out in future years.
The Portfolio Holder also advised that in February 2019, the Council would be
considering a Capital Strategy in accordance with the new requirements, which
would provide a longer term view of Capital expenditure, funding profiles,
affordability and risk.
Whilst commending the recommendations to the Cabinet, the Portfolio Holder
advised that the budget reductions total should read £285,000 and not
£265,000 as outlined in the agenda.
Page 155

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

The Leader then invited Councillor Mrs. J.R. Turner, Group Leader of the
Hinchley Wood Residents’ Association Political Group, to address the meeting.
With regard to the budget savings proposals for 2019/20 and specifically the
income from redevelopment of Xcel Indoor Bowls, Councillor Mrs. Turner
considered that the wording of this was misleading and therefore asked that the
word ‘area’ be added after the world ‘Bowls’, which the Cabinet supported.
The Leader then invited Councillor M. Rollings, a Claygate Ward Councillor, to
address the meeting. Councillor Rollings asked what the additional income
would be for Elmbridge should there be a 1% rise in Council Tax for 2019/20.
The Leader explained that the income would be approximately £125,000 and
stressed that there had been no determination of what the Council Tax
increase would be for 2019/20. Decisions in this regard would be considered
by the Council in February 2019 at which time confirmation of the settlement
from Government would be known.
Recommended: that

67/18

(a)

the budget reductions totalling £285,000 for inclusion in the draft
budget and service plans for 2019/20 be approved;

(b)

the spending pressures identified in paragraph 5 of the report, to
be included in the 2019/20 draft budget, be approved;

(c)

the surplus on the Collection Fund for 2018/19 be declared and
split amongst the precepting authorities in 2019/20, as reported in
Section 10 of the report; and

(d)

the progress made on developing the budget position for 2019/20
be noted.

Discretionary Fees & Charges - 2019/20 - Environmental Services - Joint Waste
Service Charges
(Link to Council Priorities: Commitment to the Environment)
The Portfolio Holder for Environment and Transport introduced the report that
set out a number of changes to the fees and charges for the services delivered
under the Joint Waste Contract.
The Cabinet was advised that under the Joint Waste Contract, each authority
paid the service provider the same charge for common services such as the
collection of garden waste, and the collection of one or more unwanted bulky
household items. Now that the Contract had been mobilised in all four of the
participating Councils, it had been considered appropriate that the opportunity
be taken to align a common set of fees and charges.
With regard to the fees and charges for the Garden Waste Collection Service,
the Portfolio Holder advised that it was proposed that the charges for all
subscriptions be set at £45 for the initial bin and £40 for any subsequent bins.
Page 156

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Furthermore, those subscribers who had initially purchased their bin prior to
June 2017 would also be eligible for a free replacement bin in the event that
their bin became unusable due to wear & tear or any other failure.
In respect of the Special Collection Service and the Wheeled Bin Charges, the
Cabinet was advised that the Contract Partnering Board and Joint Waste
Services Committee planned to consider these areas of charging later in the
year. Accordingly, it was proposed that the Strategic Director be authorised to
set the levels of fees and charges for the collection of bulky waste items and
the provision of bins (refuse and recycling / food bins) with effect from 1 June
2019. Should any proposed fee increase significantly exceed inflation, this
would be reported to the Cabinet.
Recommended: that

68/18

(a)

the annual subscription charges from 1 June 2019 for the garden
waste collection service be set at £45 for the initial wheeled bin and
£40 for each additional wheeled bin, as detailed in Paragraph 6 of
the report; and

(b)

for the reasons set out in Paragraphs 8 and 12, the Strategic
Director be authorised to set the levels of fees and charges for the
collection of bulky waste items and the provision of wheeled bins
with effect from 1 June 2019, except for any proposed fee increase
which significantly exceeded inflation.

Revised Parking Charges: 2019-2021
(Link to Council Priorities: Economic Development, Character & Environment,
Quality Services)
The Portfolio Holder for Environment and Transport introduced the report and
reminded Members that at its meeting on 22 July 2015, the Council had agreed
a three-year schedule for revised parking charges. It was noted that the final
year of the schedule was 2018, and therefore Cabinet was asked to give
consideration to a further three-year schedule for the January 2019 to
December 2021.
The Cabinet noted that as a result of the present three-year programme of
revised parking charges, the Council’s parking charges remained broadly
competitive with similar areas.
The Portfolio Holder explained that rather than applying an annual ‘inflationary’
increase, the proposals for the next 3 years focussed on targeted changes to
the structure of the parking charges that would better influence how and when
a car park was used. Specifically, increases were proposed where they would
help balance the often-competing needs for parking by shoppers, workers,
visitors and commuters. For this reason, some of the changes proposed
represented an above inflation increase whilst other charges remained
unchanged.
Page 157

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

With regard to the offer of significantly discounted annual parking permits for
use by commuters and workers, as demand for all-day parking was very high at
the majority of the Council’s main and station car parks, the proposals included
a reduction in the discounts to help manage demand. In this regard, the
reduction in the discount was proposed as part of a switch to an on-line permit
system that would enable the customer to pay monthly instead of by way of an
annual prepayment, and enabled the permit to be easily cancelled when
periodically not in use, such as over the summer holidays. Under the new online permit system, it would be possible to elect to pay monthly under a
recurring arrangement or select and pay for any number of months up to a
given maximum, for example, 12-months.
Furthermore, with the introduction of flexible working practices many of the car
parks were increasingly used outside of the traditional 9.00 a.m. to 6.00 p.m.
pattern. Similarly, the emergence of a vibrant night time economy had resulted
in several town centre car parks becoming increasingly busy well in to the
evening. In these circumstances, the proposals allowed for a 1-hour extension
to the beginning and to end of the current charging period.
The Portfolio Holder further advised that to encourage the adoption of ‘greener
and cleaner’ travel in Elmbridge, the proposals included the introduction of a
new 70% discount for a Green Parking Permit for fully-electric vehicles.
Although the number of fully electric cars in use nationally was low at just over
2% overall, it was also proposed that up to 5% of the available permits in a car
park be made available for Green Permits, although the number would be
agreed and reviewed each year in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for
Environment and Transport.
The Portfolio Holder then provided details of the three-year schedule for the
revised parking charges with effect from January 2019 to December 2021.
With regard to the Station Car Parks, it was proposed that there be no
increases in the all-day or permit charge for the first year. For Year 2, it was
proposed that the daily peak and off-peak charges be increased by 50p to
£8.50 and £3.50 respectively. In addition, it was proposed that the annual
Permit (previously discounted by 30%) be withdrawn in favour of the monthly
Permit which carried a lower discount of 20%. In Year 3, it was proposed that
the daily peak and off-peak charges be increased by 30p to £8.80 and £3.80
respectively, which would also increase the monthly permit cost. The Cabinet
was also asked to consider whether to introduce an off-peak all-day Sunday
charge of £2.50 given the growing use of these car parks on a Sunday.
In respect of the local car parks, it was proposed that in Year 1, a simple linear
parking tariff at all these car parks based on 80p per hour for stays from
30 minutes up to 4 hours, with an all-day charge of £4.00, be adopted. In
addition, the monthly cost of a Permit would be £50. In Year 2, as proposed for
other car parks, the additional discount that had been applied when purchasing
twelve months in advance for the pay-monthly permit facility would be
discontinued and the monthly cost of a permit would remain at £50. For Year
3, it was proposed that the tariff rate be increased by 10p per hour to a
Page 158

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

standard rate of 90p per hour, therefore increasing the all-day charge to £4.50
and the monthly permit to £56.30.
With regard to the main car parks, the Portfolio Holder advised that in Year 1, it
was proposed that the charging hours be extended to 8.00 a.m. – 7.00 p.m.,
and that new 9-hour and 5-hour charges be introduced of £7.00 and £6.00 (to
cater for the working day). The charge per hour for the first and second hour
would increase by 10p, and the charge per hour for the third and fourth would
increase by 20p per hour. For Year 2, it was proposed that the charge for the
first two hours would not change. However, the charge per hour for the third to
fifth hour would increase by 10p per hour, and the all-day charge would
increase by 50p to £7.50. It was further proposed that the annual Permit
(discounted by 45%) be withdrawn in favour of the pay-monthly Permit which
would carry a lower discount of 35%. In Year 3, the Cabinet was asked to
consider options for the introduction of a small overnight and Sunday flat fee
charge of £1.20 which would be based on the charge for a one-hour ticket, and
a further extension to the end of charging period i.e. from 7.00 p.m. to 8.00 p.m.
or 10.00 p.m.
The Leader thanked the Portfolio Holder for Environment and Transport for his
comprehensive update and then invited Councillor C.R. Sadler, a Walton
Central Ward Councillor, to address the meeting. Whilst expecting to see a
range of price increases around the current sub 3% level of inflation, Councillor
Sadler was surprised with the actual proposed increases as set out in the
report. He highlighted the various percentage increases for the station car
parks, the local car parks and the main car parks and commented that overall,
the increases in total income from off street parking would amount to nearly
10% in Year 1, almost 6% in Year 2 and 2.8% in Year 3. In his opinion,
Councillor Sadler considered that this was excessive and unfair. He reminded
Members that over the last 6 years, there had been significant increases in the
prices charged in the Council’s off-street car parks. This had resulted in an
increase of local workers parking their cars for free in residential roads which
then made it difficult for those who lived there to be able to park their cars. In
view of this, Councillor Sadler asked that the report be withdrawn and more
moderately priced charges, in line with inflation levels, be considered.
The Leader thanked Councillor Sadler for his comments and advised that the
use of percentages, could at times, be misleading and in context, most of these
increases would result in a 10p rise. The Leader further commented that the
final year of the current parking charging schedule would end in December
2018 and therefore it was timely that parking charges for the next three years
should be considered. Whilst the proposals included the extension of the
charging hour to 7.00 p.m., those who visited the Town Centres in the evening
would still be able to park for free. He advised that if the increases were not set
at a sensible level going forward, then there would be a need to find the money
from elsewhere and the general consensus was that there should be no cuts to
frontline services. In respect of commuters parking in residential roads, this
was a wider issue across the Borough and could be addressed by introducing
or extending resident parking schemes.

Page 159

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

The Leader then invited Councillor S.J. Selleck, Group Leader of the Residents’
Associations Political Group, to address the meeting. Councillor Selleck raised
the issue of the current free Saturday parking concessions and queried whether
this would continue after 31 December 2018. The Portfolio Holder for Housing
reminded Members that under the previous Administration, these concessions
had been introduced. However, it had been agreed at that time that these
concessions would end when the Drewitts Court Car Park refurbishment works
were completed or 31 December 2018, whichever was the latest. Accordingly,
the Portfolio Holder for Housing confirmed that the concessions in the three
Walton off-street car parks would end on 31 December 2018.
Recommended: that the three-year schedule for revised parking charges
for January 2019 to December 2021 in respect of the following, be agreed:

69/18

(i)

Station Car Parks, as set out in Appendix B (page 1) of the report;

(ii)

Local Car Parks, as set out in Appendix B (page 2) of the report;
and

(iii)

Main Car Parks, as set out in Appendix B (page 3) of the report.

Parks Tennis Review
(Link to Council Priorities: P1, P2, P3)
The Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Culture introduced the report and
reminded the Cabinet that the Council had launched the parks tennis booking
and gate access system across seven Parks Tennis venues together with the
introduction of fees and charges across all twelve Parks Tennis venues in June
2017 and with the remaining sites having introduced gate access systems in
2018.
The Cabinet acknowledged that following significant feedback from residents, a
summer promotion offering 6 weeks free tennis at all twelve Parks Tennis
venues had been agreed for the summer of 2018. Now that the offer had come
to an end, a review of the summer take up and further survey of users had
been completed and in this regard options for the way forward had been
considered in order to continue to support the development of tennis across the
Borough.
The Portfolio Holder advised Members that the following four options had been
proposed in respect of the way forward for tennis across the Borough:


Option 1 - Completely remove the Scheme – the booking system would be
cancelled and the gate locks would be disabled completely which could
incur an increase in maintenance and vandalism. No charges would be
levied, except for professional coaching, and courts would operate on a first
come first served basis;

Page 160

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.



Option 2 - Retain booking / gate controls but free courts all year – the court
booking system and gate control systems would remain in place but all
charging would be removed other than for professional coaches. Users
would be required to register for free with the system to be able to make a
free of charge booking;



Option 3 – Upgraded business model – the court booking system and gate
control systems would remain in place and charging would be continued as
per the original business plan. Furthermore, those individuals on low
income would be entitled to free access all year round and £10,000 of
income from the Scheme would be redirected back in to Free Tennis
Development activities. Improvements would also be made to the booking
system following feedback from the customer survey; and



Option 4 – Continue with original 2017/18 Parks Tennis Business Plan –
the court booking system and gate control systems would remain in place
and charging would continue as per the original business plan.

The Cabinet noted that within all four options, it was proposed to retain the
coaching licences and to continue to charge professional coaches for the use
of the Boroughs courts.
In view of the four options that had been proposed, the Portfolio Holder advised
that he was minded to support Option 2 going forward which was to retain the
booking and gate controls but have the courts for free. This would result in
various advantages for those people who enjoy the opportunity to book and
play at a time and on a court of their choice. In addition, it would enable the
courts to be maintained and to reduce the amount of vandalism. Whilst it was
hoped that the Council would continue to work with the Lawn Tennis
Association, monitoring would take place over the coming years to ensure that
the Scheme was working.
Whilst supporting Option 2, the Portfolio Holder for Planning Services
commented that it had been clear over the last year that the public were not
happy to pay to use the tennis courts in the Borough. In his opinion, he would
not support the removal of the booking system / gate controls as this provided a
huge advantage in knowing that the tennis court would be available when it had
been booked. He further commented that he had personally used the booking
system and he had found it very simple to register and book courts.
The Leader then invited Councillor Mrs. J.R. Turner, Group Leader of the
Hinchley Wood Residents’ Association Political Group, to address the meeting.
Councillor Mrs. Turner was very disappointed that it was being proposed to
remove the small charges for the use of the tennis courts. She considered that
the public should be required to pay a small fee to use the courts and given that
the Council was required to find funds to meet the spending pressures and
reductions in funding, this small amount of income would help in this regard.

Page 161

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

The Leader then invited Councillor S.J. Selleck, Group Leader of the Residents’
Associations Political Group, to address the meeting. Councillor Selleck
queried the comments made by the Lawn Tennis Association particularly in
respect of Option 2. He highlighted that as outlined in the report, the Lawn
Tennis Association had considered that Option 2 would be unsustainable and
unless another option could be committed to / confirmed, any support and
commitment for future investment from the LTA would need to be reviewed. In
this regard, Councillor Selleck queried whether the Lawn Tennis Association
would withdraw their support if Option 2 was agreed.
The Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Culture commented that it was important
that the relationship with the Lawn Tennis Association continued specifically in
respect of the development of the sport and in this regard, he hoped that the
Association would continue to support the Council.
The Portfolio Holder for Housing disagreed with the comments made by
Councillor Mrs. Turner and advised that, at the Borough Elections held in May
2018, the residents of Walton in particular, had indicated that they wanted to
see the tennis courts free to use. In his opinion, he felt that the residents
received very little for free and in fact the residents did contribute to the tennis
courts by way of Council tax payments. He further considered that tennis
courts came under the same category as the recreational grounds and as the
Council did not charge for those, then access to the tennis courts should also
be free.
In concluding the discussion, whilst respecting Councillor Mrs. Turner’s view,
the Leader reiterated that the Scheme would be monitored going forward to
ensure that the courts were used to their full potential.
Recommended: that on consideration of the review, Option 2 – Retain
booking / gate controls but free courts all year, be supported.

70/18

Green Spaces Grounds Maintenance Contract Review
(Link to Council Priorities: P1, P2, P3, P4)
The Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Culture introduced the report that provided
a summary and recommendations of a review of the Grounds Maintenance
Contract following a number of concerns regarding performance over the past
year.
The Cabinet was reminded that the current Grounds Maintenance Contract had
commenced from the 1 April 2015 for seven years ending on the 31 March
2022. However, due to an unsatisfactory service delivery and an
unprecedented number of customer complaints, the contract had been novated
in January 2017 from The Landscape Group to Burleys, in agreement with the
Council.

Page 162

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

The Portfolio Holder reported that in accordance with the contract, an annual
review had been undertaken. Whilst the overall quality and customer
satisfaction had risen, it had highlighted the following three areas of challenge
and concern:


the number of complaints regarding the quality of amenity grass cutting
during the annual spring flush of growth which generally peaked in May;



the quality of the seasonal hanging baskets and trough floral displays
supplied by Burleys had been of a poor and unacceptable standard; and



Burleys had put forward a proposal to change and enhance the Security
and Patrol Service.

With regard to the amenity grass cutting, the Portfolio Holder advised that these
areas were specified to be cut on a fortnightly basis between March and
October each year, with a quality / height of between 25 mm and 5 mm as
appropriate to ground conditions. However, following unacceptable amenity
grass cutting standards in Quarter 1 of 2018, the standards had been reviewed
with the contractor. It was acknowledged that due to mild Winters and as
Spring arrived later than usual in 2018 with unusually wet weather, this had
culminated in a delay and difficulty in grass cutting over a prolonged period. In
order to mitigate and manage this natural and now expected seasonal growth,
Burleys had agreed, at no extra cost to the Council, to additionally carry out
several winter cuts.
Furthermore, in order to improve customer service, it was proposed to publish
an indicative grass cutting route from March to the end of October, on the
Council’s website together with a weekly update showing completed grass cut
areas throughout the Borough. It was hoped that this would provide Members
and residents with up to date information on the progress of grass cutting
around the Borough.
With regard to hanging baskets and troughs and in particular the two years of
unacceptable seasonal displays, the Portfolio Holder reported that, having
reviewed the service, Burleys were now unable to deliver the required standard
of seasonal floral display for the hanging baskets and troughs.
Accordingly, the Cabinet noted that it was proposed to remove this service from
the Burleys contract and use a preferred supplier following a mini-tender to
deliver this service to the required standard. Subject to the outcomes of the
mini-tender, it was likely that this would cost the Council an annual revenue
increase of £3,000.
The Portfolio Holder then provided an update following a review of the Security
Patrol Service. The associated contract had commenced on 1 April 2005 and
had been awarded to Continental Landscapes at an annual cost of £72,590.

Page 163

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

The Cabinet noted that the Security Patrol Service element of the Green
Spaces Contract had been designed to provide a visible presence of authority
within the recreation grounds and public open spaces throughout Elmbridge
from early afternoon (2.00 p.m.) until midnight (during the summer months).
Having reviewed the service to seek a more sustainable option and one that
provided added value to the Council, the Portfolio Holder reported that the
proposed service would provide one operative through a staff rota, to provide
continuous cover 7 days a week at variable times depending on the time of
year. The Cabinet noted that the cost to the Council for this revised service
would remain the same as the current arrangements at £70,590 per annum.
The Portfolio Holder advised Members of the operative’s working patterns and
was pleased to update that, whilst the current service covered 2,688 hours per
year, the new revised service would now equate to 3,464 hours per year. This
increase in hours would provide the Council with additional resources to
support areas of concern and recent increase in activity such as unauthorised
encampments, fishing, and unauthorised moorings. In re-designing this
service, the approach was to present a Green Space Ranger style service,
rather than the ‘Security Officer’.
The Leader thanked the Portfolio Holder for his detailed update and invited
Councillor Mrs. J.R. Turner, Group Leader of the Hinchley Wood Residents’
Association Political Group, to address the meeting. Councillor Mrs. Turner
congratulated the officers for undertaking the review. With regard to the
amenity grass cutting, as the grass was still growing during the Autumn, she
considered that additional grass cutting would make a difference. In respect of
the hanging baskets and troughs, Councillor Mrs. Turner commented that due
to the extreme weather conditions experienced over the summer months, the
seasonal floral displays provided by Burleys had not been satisfactory and
therefore a change in supplier was the most appropriate solution going forward.
Recommended: that
(a)

the steps to be taken to mitigate and manage the impact of the
annual expected rapid Spring grass growth be noted;

(b)

authority be delegated to the Head of Leisure and Cultural Services
to remove the supply and delivery of the seasonal hanging baskets
and troughs displays service from the contract with Burleys and
commence procurement for a new supplier; and

(c)

the Security and Patrol Service be renamed ‘Green Spaces Ranger
Service’ and the proposed service delivery improvements be
implemented.

Page 164

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

71/18

Local Plan Budget
(Link to Council Priorities: P1)
The Portfolio Holder for Planning Services introduced the report that set out the
estimated cost required to support the delivery of the Local Plan over the
current and next two financial years.
The Cabinet was advised that to ensure that the Local Plan was sound it was
vital that the programme was adequately resourced. Whilst the majority of the
evidence base, as well as the plan writing and managing of the programme
including consultation, was being undertaken ‘in-house’, a significant proportion
of the essential evidence required technical and / or independent expertise not
held internally, which could include the use of advanced modelling systems.
Furthermore, a budgetary allocation was required for legal Counsel advice
during the Local Plan preparation and the examination as well as expert
support to respond to technical questions and challenges made to key
evidence base documents. As seen with neighbouring authorities experiences,
regardless of the policy position of the Local Plan, there was significant risk of
legal challenge to the adoption of the Local Plan from either residents,
landowners or developers. Accordingly, the use of appropriate legal Counsel at
key stages of the preparation and during the examination would reduce the risk
of a costly legal challenge.
The Portfolio Holder provided Members with details of the forecasted costs
required to support the Local Plan to adoption in 2021, the details of which
were outlined in the report. The Cabinet noted that as of September 2018, the
forecast to 2021 indicated that there would be an overall shortfall in budget
provision of £447,850.
In order to deliver the infrastructure elements of the programme, resources
from the Council’s Strategic Infrastructure Projects and Community
Infrastructure Levy administration funds was required, drawing down £311,000
over the three-year period. The Cabinet acknowledged that this would meet
the cost of production, examination and adoption of the new Infrastructure
Delivery Plan to support proposed growth in the Local Plan as well as the
update to the Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule.
The utilisation of the Strategic Infrastructure Projects fund and the Community
Infrastructure Levy administration fund would result in £136,850 budget growth
above the existing Local Plan budget across the three years, most notably in
2020/21 to support the examination.
The Portfolio Holder commented that initially he was concerned whether
Community Infrastructure Levy funding could be utilised for this area of work.
However, it had been established that there were no legal reasons why this
funding could not be used for the infrastructure element of the Local Plan
programme.

Page 165

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Members noted that the 2018/19 expenditure primarily related to the production
of the evidence base which had been committed by order or contract. In
2019/20, the estimated expenditure focused on the outstanding spend as the
evidence base concluded. In addition, an allocation was required for the two
statutory consultation periods, in line with previous costs incurred.
With regard to the estimated expenditure in 2020/21, this was centred around
the examination. The figure included the cost of the examination itself including
the Inspectorate fees as well as the necessary expert witness(es) to support
the evidence base conclusions. Whilst the figure in 2020/21 for legal
representation had been forecasted to be £100,000, the Portfolio Holder
stressed the need to ensure that the Council had in place expert legal
representation given that there could be the need to defend legal challenges
against the adoption of the Local Plan.
The Leader invited Councillor Mrs. K. Randolph, a Thames Ditton Ward
Councillor, to address the meeting. Councillor Mrs. Randolph fully supported
the forecasted costs associated with the legal representation as there was a
need to be able to defend any challenges. She further commented that should
the Council not be able to provide the expert representation required, this could
lead to a loss in credibility.
Recommended: that

72/18

(a)

the external expenditure within 2018/19 and the budgetary
placeholders for expenditures for 2019/20 and 2020/21 be
approved;

(b)

the Community Infrastructure Levy funding to deliver the
infrastructure aspect of the Local Plan programme be agreed; and

(c)

the financial risk associated, should a potential legal challenge to
the adoption of the Local Plan be made, be noted.

Property Transactions
(Below is a brief summary of the matters discussed under this item. In
view of the nature of the discussion which contained exempt information
as defined under Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972, as amended, a copy of the full Minute is appended
[at the back of these Minutes] as Minute No. 72/18 for Members of the
Council only.)
The Portfolio Holder for Resources introduced the report that provided details
of a proposal for the acquisition of a property in Weybridge for investment
purposes in accordance with the Council’s Property Acquisition and Investment
Strategy.

Page 166

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Matters of Report
73/18

Wider Determinants of Health
(Link to Council Priorities: P1, P2, P3)
The Leader introduced the report and advised the Cabinet that the wider
determinants of health, also known as social determinants, were a diverse
range of social, economic and environmental factors which impacted on
people’s health. Whilst the Surrey Heartlands, which included the 2 local
Clinical Commissioning Groups, was the primary organisation with
responsibility for health, the Borough played a key role in supporting wider
health objectives through the delivery of a wide range of health initiatives
across several Council teams.
Members noted that the framework of the Council’s Health and Wellbeing
Statement (2015- 2019), set out how Elmbridge, and its partners, was working
to address the wider determinants of health and what more could be done
locally to build on that work. It was acknowledged that this included looking for
opportunities to ‘join up’ work to address the wider determinants of health
across the system, with Elmbridge, Surrey County Council and the other Surrey
Boroughs and Districts, as the key enablers. Through this work, the aim was to
enable a system-wide approach to improving health and wellbeing outcomes
for the Borough’s residents.
As well as there being numerous national policies relating to health and
wellbeing, the Council had several policy and strategy documents that
individually contributed to health promotion, or social care. These included the
Council Plan (2018-19) and Five-Year Vision (2018-23); the Older People’s
Strategy; the Elmbridge Physical Activity Strategy (2015-2020); the Core
Strategy 2011 and the emerging Local Plan; the Air Quality Plan; the
Contaminated Land Strategy; the Elmbridge Cycle Plan (2016); and the
Housing & Homelessness Strategy (2015 to 2019).
With regard to local partnership working, the Cabinet noted that over the last
18 months there had been an enhanced partnership agenda working closely
with the Surrey Downs and North West Surrey Clinical Commissioning Groups
together with Social Care. The focus had been to drive forward partnership
opportunities to support the preventative approach ensuring older people could
be appropriately supported to maintain their independence within community
settings and recognising the vital role of Borough and District Councils in
achieving this. There had been active involvement in a range of project
activities working closely with health and social care partners, which included
the development of two Social Prescribing Services; Frail, Elderly Hub
developments; the launch of the Home Safe Plus joint referral form; the Home
from Hospital Service; Community Transport providing Patient Transport;
Health Population Management Project; and the Loneliness and Isolation
Agenda.

Page 167

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Through a variety of work streams, the Council was already working to address
the wider determinants of health and various examples of work being
undertaken by Elmbridge and how this could be built upon, was detailed in
Appendix 1 of the report. The Cabinet acknowledged that all the services
offered, as detailed in the report, were provided within existing budgets.
The Leader welcomed this excellent report and advised that as an organisation,
the Council could significantly influence health outcomes. Consideration of the
wider context of Surrey County Council’s Vision for 2030 together with the work
in respect of Surrey Health should also be taken into account. He reported that
a plan was being prepared for the whole of Surrey which would set 10 or
12 priorities to be delivered over the coming years. These priorities would
focus on all the areas but especially those areas of social deprivation.
The Leader also took the opportunity to highlight to Members the 2010 Marmot
Review (Fair Society, Healthy Lives) which raised the profile of wider
determinants of health by emphasising the strong and persistent link between
social inequalities and disparities in health outcomes. He considered that there
was a link between social inequalities and disparities in health related to social
deprivation and that in those more affluent neighbourhoods, individuals
generally experienced longer life expectancy. In this regard, he commented
that everything the Council did, needed to focus on those more vulnerable
members of society and in those areas of deprivation.
As part of the discussion, as the Council did not have a specific Portfolio Holder
for health and wellbeing, the Leader advised that this was an area that would
be considered going forward particularly as the profile of these types of issues
did need highlighting to ensure that the Council was contributing to the health
of the Borough’s residents.
Resolved that the ongoing work to address the wide determinants of health be
supported.
74/18

Drinking Water Scheme - Update
The Portfolio Holder for Environment and Transport introduced the report and
reminded Members that in June 2018, a report had been considered by the
Cabinet on options for the use of the default payments made by Amey for the
failures in the Waste Collection Contract.
The Portfolio Holder advised that the Cabinet at its meeting in June 2018 had
agreed to allocate £100,000 of the default payments to the creation of a
Community Green Infrastructure Improvement Fund and work in this regard
was currently underway.
With regard to the remaining £143,000 of the default payments, the Cabinet
agreed to defer the use of these monies so that the most appropriate use,
together with a further investigation into costs, could be undertaken.

Page 168

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

As outlined in the report, there had been a general aspiration to reduce single
use plastics and accordingly, the provision of easy access to drinking water
appeared to be nationally accepted. In this regard, the following initiatives had
been considered:





the Refill Scheme;
restoring existing facilities;
providing new fountains; and
reactive provision.

Having considered the four initiatives, the most cost-effective method of not
only reducing single use plastics but also the quickest to implement, was the
Refill Scheme.
To implement the Refill Scheme and make it sustainable, it was suggested that
a Scheme Coordinator be employed on a one-year fixed term contract funded
from the Amey default payments in order to establish the Scheme, sign up
businesses and seek volunteers to operate it going forward. This would also
enable the opportunity to include promotion of the Community Toilet Scheme
and other green initiatives currently being adopted by the Overview and
Scrutiny Energy and Sustainability Working Group. Given that this Working
Group had already started looking at the Refill Scheme initiative, it was further
proposed that the Group be asked to take on the role of overseeing this
initiative with the funding being provided from the Amey default payment funds.
The Portfolio Holder highlighted to Members a number of errors within the
report and whilst he supported the principle of the Refill Scheme initiative, he
considered that the amended report should be referred to the Overview and
Scrutiny Energy and Sustainability Working Group for consideration.
The Leader invited Councillor S.J. Selleck, Group Leader of the Residents’
Associations Political Group, to address the meeting. Councillor Selleck sought
clarification as to whether the option of installing drinking fountains around the
Borough would also be considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Energy and
Sustainability Working Group.
The view of the Cabinet was that whilst an amended report would be presented
to the Working Group, the Refill Scheme was the most sensible option going
forward. In this regard, the Working Group would be asked to deal with the
practicalities and detail of the scheme. The Leader commented that the
introduction of a drinking fountain scheme within the Borough had a number of
complications and therefore the remaining monies from the default payments
could be used to promote air quality monitoring stations across the Borough
given that this was also a significant issue.
The Leader then invited Councillor S.J. Selleck, Group Leader of the Residents’
Associations Political Group, to further address the meeting. Councillor Selleck
asked whether the Cabinet would be comfortable if the Overview and Scrutiny

Page 169

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Energy and Sustainability Working Group was to make recommendations in
respect of a drinking fountain scheme.
The Leader clarified the Cabinet’s position and reiterated that there was not
enough quality information available on such schemes and costings were also
unclear. The Refill Scheme was the appropriate way forward for the Borough
and the Leader hoped that the local traders would support the Scheme. Should
the Overview and Scrutiny Energy and Sustainability Working Group wish to
comment on other options, including a drinking fountain scheme, then that was
up to the Group. However, the Leader commented that he did not wish to
mislead Members and should a recommendation regarding a drinking fountain
scheme be put before Cabinet, it would probably not be supported.
The Leader then invited Councillor Tricia W. Bland, a Thames Ditton Ward
Councillor and the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Energy and
Sustainability Working Group, to address the meeting. Councillor Bland
considered that the research into water fountains was inadequate and there
was a need to discuss this initiative with Thames Water. She further
commented that the Refill Scheme was already being rolled out within
Elmbridge.
The Leader then invited Councillor B. Fairbank, a Long Ditton Ward Councillor,
to address the meeting. As a point of accuracy, Councillor Fairbank advised
that the photograph in Appendix 1 of a drinking fountain at the corner of
Portsmouth Road and Angel Road, was actually located in Thames Ditton and
not Long Ditton.
On consideration of the report, the Cabinet
Resolved that

75/18

(a)

the Refill Scheme to reduce single use plastics in the Borough be
adopted;

(b)

a Green Projects Coordinator be employed on a one-year fixed term
contract, paid for from the waste default payments, to establish the
Scheme, sign up businesses and seek volunteers to operate it going
forward; and

(c)

the Overview and Scrutiny Energy and Sustainability Working Group be
asked to take on the role of overseeing this initiative and report back to
Cabinet on any further / additional proposals.

2018/19 Revenue and Capital Budget Update - Quarter 2
(Link to Council Priorities: All)
The Portfolio Holder for Resources introduced the report, which advised
Members of the second quarter monitoring against the 2018/19 approved
budget; together with an update on the Revenue & Capital budget position as
Page 170

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

at 30 September 2018 and an early view for the financial year. This report had
been considered and discussed at the Performance and Finance Standing
Panel on 13 November 2018.
The Cabinet noted that as at the end of September 2018, the revenue position
was £197,763 above the net operational budget.
The report detailed that this variance was due to a number of issues including
the non-variable direct costs of the Borough elections; the drop in the level of
off-street car parking income; unbudgeted expenditure in respect of the recent
unauthorised encampments; and a drop in the level of planning income.
With regard to the Resources Portfolio, the Portfolio Holder reported that as a
result of the enhanced optimum contract (planned and preventative
maintenance), significant compliance issues had been identified in a number of
Council properties. Accordingly, to reflect the overspend in the expenditure
incurred in this regard, it was proposed that £100,000 be funded from
Earmarked Reserves.
The Portfolio Holder also provided a brief update in respect of the Capital
monitoring.
The Leader thanked the Portfolio Holder for Resources for her update and
commented that whilst it was highly unusual to have an overspend at this level,
it would continue to be monitored going forward.
Resolved that
(a)

the Revenue and Capital budget position for the second quarter of
2018/19 be noted; and

(b)

£100,000 of the reactive property maintenance expenditure, as detailed
in the Resources Portfolio, be funded from Earmarked Reserves.
------The meeting commenced at 7.00 pm and concluded at 8.19 pm

T.G. Oliver
Leader

Page 171

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Democratic Services Officer
Mrs. T. Hulse

Principal Committee and Member Services Officer

Other Officers in attendance
R. Moran
Mrs. S. Selvanathan
R. Lee
A. Harrison
Mrs. N. Anderson
I. Burrows
A. Jeziorski
M. Kearton
Mrs. E. Jones

Chief Executive
Strategic Director and Deputy Chief Executive
Strategic Director
Head of Legal Services
Head of Organisational Development
Head of Leisure and Cultural Services
Head of Environmental Services
Environmental Services Officer
Sports Development Officer

Page 172

Elmbridge Borough Council
Schedule of Meetings 2019/20

Page 173

Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Fri
Sat
Sun

1
2 Election
3
4
5

Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Fri
Sat
Sun

1
2
3 CBNT
4
5
6
7

Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Fri
Sat
Sun

Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Fri
Sat
Sun

6
7
8 APPT
9
10
11
12

8
9
10 SCH
11 O&S
12
13
14

May 2019
13
14
15 AN CO
16
17
18
19

20 APS
21
22
23
24
25
26

July 2019
15 APS
16
17 ICMDM / CO
18
19
20
21

1

2
3
4 ICMDM
5
6
7
8

September 2019
9 APS
16 LIC
10 PLNG
17
11
18 CBNT
12
19
13
20
14
21
15
22

1
2
3

4 APS
5
6
7
8
9
10

November 2019
11 LIC
12
13 CBNT
14
15
16
17

22
23 PLNG
24
25
26
27
28

23
24
25
26 O&S
27
28
29

18
19
20 ICMDM / A&S
21 O&S
22
23
24

27
28
29 A&S
30
31

29 A&S
30
31

30

25
26 PLNG
27
28
29
30

Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Fri
Sat
Sun

Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Fri
Sat
Sun

Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Fri
Sat
Sun

Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Fri
Sat
Sun

June 2019
10
11 PLNG
12
13 O&S
14
15
16

1
2

3
4
5 CBNT
6
7
8
9

1
2
3
4

5
6
7
8
9
10
11

1
2 CO
3
4
5
6

October 2019
7 APS
14
8
15
9 ICMDM
16 CBNT
10
17
11
18
12
19
13
20

1

2 APS
3
4 CO
5
6
7
8

August 2019
12 APS
13
14
15
16
17
18

December 2019
9
16
10
17
11 ICMDM 18
12
19
13
20
14
21
15
22

17 APS
18
19 ICMDM
20
21
22
23

24 LIC
25
26
27
28
29
30

19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26
27
28
29
30
31

21
22 PLNG
23 SCH
24 O&S
25
26
27

28
29
30
31

23
24
25
26
27
28
29

30
31

Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Fri
Sat
Sun

Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Fri
Sat
Sun

Page 174

Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Fri
Sat
Sun

1
2
3
4
5

1

1
2
3

6 APS
7
8 CBNT
9
10
11
12

2 APS
3
4 A&S
5 *LSB-COSDD
6
7
8

January 2020
13
14
15
16 O&S
17
18
19

20 LIC
21
22 SCH
23
24
25
26

March 2020
9 LIC
16 *LSB-DHWWG
10 *LSB-EH
17
11 CBNT
18 LSB-WoT
12
19 O&S
13
20
14
21
15
22

4
5
6
7 ELECTION
8
9
10

May 2020
11
12
13 APPS
14
15
16
17

27
28
29
30
31

23 *LSB-W
24 PLNG
25 SCH
26
27
28
29

18
19
20 AN CO*
21
22
23
24

Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Fri
Sat
Sun

30 APS
31

Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Fri
Sat
Sun

1
2

1 CO
2
3
4
5

3 APS
4
5
6
7
8
9

February 2020
10
11 PLNG
12 CBNT
13
14
15
16

6
7
8
9
10
11
12

April 2020
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24 O&S
25
26 ICMDM / CO
27 *LSB-EWM
28
29

20 APS
21
22
23
24
25
26

27
28
29
30

25
26 APS
27 A&S
28
29
30
31

AN CO* / CO – Annual Council / Council
APPT – Appointments Sub-Committee
APS – Area Planning Sub-Committees
A&S – Audit and Standards Committee
CBNT – Cabinet
ICMDM – Individual Cabinet Member Decision Making
LIC – Licensing Committee
**LSB-EWM – Local Spending Board – East and West Molesey
**LSB-COSDD – Local Spending Board – Cobham, Oxshott, Stoke D’Abernon & Downside
**LSB-EH – Local Spending Board – Esher & Hersham
**LSB-DHWWG – Local Spending Board – Thames Ditton, Long Ditton, Hinchley Wood & Weston Green
**LSB-WoT – Local Spending Board – Walton on Thames
**LSB-W – Local Spending Board - Weybridge
O&S – Overview and Scrutiny Committee
PLNG – Planning Committee
SCH – Shareholder Committee (Housing)

7.00 p.m.
7.00 p.m.
7.00 p.m.
7.00 p.m.
7.00 p.m.
10.00 a.m.
7.00 p.m.
7.00 p.m.
7.00 p.m.
7.00 p.m.
7.00 p.m.
7.00 p.m.
7.00 p.m.
7.00 p.m.
7.00 p.m.
7.00 p.m.

Meetings are usually held in the Civic Centre, Esher. Public
are welcome to attend all meetings, although may be
excluded on occasions.
* Meetings of the Audit & Standards Committee; Licensing
Committee; Overview & Scrutiny Committee and Planning
Committee will be held at the rise of the Annual Council
Meeting in order to appoint their respective Chairman and
Vice-Chairman.
**These meeting dates are to be considered as provisional
at this time
Agendas and minutes are available on the Council’s
Website:www.elmbridge.gov.uk

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 175

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9.(l)
These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Elmbridge Borough Council
Audit and Standards Committee
Report of a meeting held on 21 November 2018
Members of the Committee:
* A. Coomes (Chairman)
* O.T. Chappell (Vice-Chairman)
*

N. Haig-Brown
A.H. Kopitko

*

D.J. Lewis
S.J. Selleck

Co-Opted Members:
*
*
*

Mr. S. Hassel, Independent Member
Mr. C. Johnson, Independent Member
Claygate Parish Councillor M. Sugden
(* Denotes attendance)
Also present:
Mrs. R. Mitchell

13/18 Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.
14/18 Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 25 July 2018
The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 25 July 2018 were
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.
15/18 Opening Remarks
The Committee welcomed Sarah Ironmonger, Engagement Lead, Grant Thornton
and Amber Banister, Engagement Manager, Grant Thornton to the meeting.
Ms. Ironmonger took the opportunity to advise the Committee thatMr. Ade Oyerinde
had been promoted to Senior Manager at Grant Thornton earlier in the year and
that he was now responsible for other clients.
As a result of this, Ms. Ironmonger introduced Ms. Banister to the Committee
and it was noted that the audit work going forward for the Council would now be
undertaken by Ms. Banister and her team.
The Committee placed on record its thanks to Mr. Oyerinde for all his work and
professionalism in respect of the audit work undertaken for the Council and
wished him well for the future.
Page 179

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

Recommendation to Council on 5 December 2018
16/18 Risk Management Strategy
(Link to Council Priorities: All)
The Committee was provided with details of the Council’s Risk Management
Strategy that provided a structured and coherent approach to identifying,
assessing, controlling and financing risk.
Members noted that, having reviewed the Strategy that had been considered
by the Committee in September 2017 and subsequently approved by Council in
September 2017, it still remained unchanged and fit for purpose.
It was further noted that a series of risk management initiatives were being
developed and progressed with a view to enhancing current procedures and
practices, the details of which were outlined in the report.
During consideration of the Risk Management Strategy and specifically the
development of a series of risk management initiatives, the Claygate Parish
Councillor Co-Opted Member queried what the financial risk was in respect of
the Tree Risk Management programme and the incursion of the Oak
Processionary Moths. The Head of Finance advised that it was not exclusively
a financial risk to the authority and risks associated with reputation and health
& safety should also be considered with this particular initiative.
With regard to the Grey Fleet data capture and insurance review, whilst
referring to a previous employer in the private sector, one Member asked
whether the Council had a similar approach with regard to users of the Grey
Fleet not using mobile phones whilst driving. The Head of Finance advised that
all legal obligations would need to be met and that included not only mobile
phones but also smoking. Policies were in place in this regard and for those
members of staff who were out on Council business undertaking site visits etc.,
business car insurance cover was required. He further confirmed that this also
applied to Members of the Council. Given that this was not necessarily widely
known by Members, the Head of Finance agreed to include this requirement in
the guidance provided to Members at the beginning of each Municipal Year.
Recommended: that the Risk Management Strategy, as attached at
Appendix A to these minutes, be approved.
Matters of Report
17/18 Annual Audit Letter
(Link to Council Priorities: All)
The Committee received and considered Grant Thornton’s Annual Audit Letter.

Page 180

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

The Committee had previously considered Grant Thornton’s Audit Findings at
its meeting on 25 July 2018. In accordance with the established timetable,
Grant Thornton had now issued its Annual Audit Letter that provided a
summary of Grant Thornton’s work at the Council as part of the 2017/18 audit
plan.
Members noted that the key messages contained in the letter included:
(i)

Grant Thornton had issued an unqualified opinion on the Council’s
financial statement for 2017/18 and its value for money arrangements;
and

(ii)

the Council had proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources.

Ms. Ironmonger reported that work in respect of the Housing Benefit Grant
Certification was ongoing and it was envisaged that Grant Thornton would be in
a position to complete the certification by the deadline of the end of November
2018. She advised the Committee that one or two errors had been identified
and therefore extended testing was being undertaken in this regard. Once the
work had been completed, an update would be provided to the Committee in
March 2019. Ms. Ironmonger provided some context to this issue that out of
the seven other authorities that she would be signing off on Housing Benefit
claims, there had been only one where no issues had been identified.
Accordingly, it was fairly standard to find issues when extended testing was
undertaken.
During consideration of the report, one of the Independent Members queried
the level of fees which he considered had increased disproportionately and
asked whether this increase was due to the additional work being undertaken.
Ms. Ironmonger advised that the planned fees for the year were in line with the
scale fee set by the Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA).
In answer to a question as to whether the significant audit risk ‘management
override of controls’ had been provided as part of the audit regulatory
framework or whether it was an Elmbridge specific risk, Ms. Ironmonger
advised that the audit regulation had two presumed risks for any audit. One
was the risk of revenue recognition and the other was the management
override of controls. Therefore, she commented that it had been included
within the report because it was a standard risk that was assumed to exist for
every audit and accordingly work had been undertaken in this regard.
Resolved that Grant Thornton’s Annual Audit Letter be received and noted.
18/18 Grant Thornton's Audit Fee 2018/19
(Link to Council Priorities: All)
The Committee received a copy of Grant Thornton’s Annual Audit Fee letter for
2018/19.
Page 181

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

The Committee was advised that the proposed audit fees for 2018/19 were
approximately 23% less than the fee applicable for 2017/18 and in this regard
the Council’s scale fee for 2018/19 had been set at £40,000. Members noted
that the reason for this decrease in audit fees was because the housing benefit
grant certification now fell outside the Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA)
Contract and Councils were therefore expected to make their own
arrangements.
As outlined in the report, following a procurement process, the Council had
appointed Grant Thornton for this work and the indicative grant certification fee
would be approximately £18,000.
Accordingly, the Committee noted that the total fee would be approximately
£58,000 which could be met from the existing budget.
RESOLVED that the Annual Audit Fee for 2018/19 be received and noted.
19/18 Treasury Management 2018/19
(Link to Council Priorities: All)
The Committee received an update in respect of the investment position of the
Authority as at 2 November 2018 and approval was sought in respect of
revised security benchmarks. A report on the mid-year activity, as required
under the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
Treasury Management Code of Practice, was also provided.
Members were pleased to note that all of the limits and targets were within the
parameters set by the Council. Officers continued to explore options to
increase the yield on investments while preserving the money invested.
Members were also informed that new default rates had now been published.
Given the timing of the publication of these indicators, the Committee noted
that it would be difficult to use the information effectively across a full financial
year and therefore in order to ensure monitoring took place against the new
benchmarks in a constructive way, it was suggested that the new benchmarks
be set for a calendar year. A table showing comparison of the performance
against the current benchmark; the actual percentage against the new default
rates; and the proposed limits for 2018, was set out in the report. Currently the
Maximum Expected Value of the Historic Risk of Default was 0.25% (Actual at
2 November 2018 was 0.11%). However, based on the new indices, this would
have been 0.10%. In light of the new figures, the Committee supported the
Maximum Expected Value being maintained at the level of 0.25%.
A lengthy discussion took place regarding the average level of treasury
management investments held each month against profile and clarification was
provided by the Head of Finance and the Corporate Group Accountant as to
why the investments had peaked in January. This had been due to the majority
of Council Tax and Business Rates cash flows having been received between
April and January, and because the payments to the major preceptors (Surrey
Page 182

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

County Council, the Police, and the Government) had occurred evenly
throughout the whole year. The Head of Finance agreed to refine the wording
within the report to clarify the position.
With regard to the various core investments that were due to mature by the end
of January 2019, the Claygate Parish Councillor Co-Opted Member asked what
the plan was for these funds. The Head of Finance advised that whilst officers
would continue to look at the markets, regular meetings would be held on the
Council’s approach based on market intelligence, and advice would be sought
form the Council’s advisors as to whether the Council should be investing
short-term or long-term. He further advised that at the current time, it was likely
that short-term investments would be the way forward unless an opportunity
became apparent. He reminded the Committee that the most important
consideration for the Council should be security followed by liquidity and yield.
Whilst noting that the Council had short-term core investments of approximately
£80 million, one Member queried why the Council continued to borrow funds
from the Public Works Loan Board. The Head of Finance advised that recently
he had been looking at 50-year money which, taking into account the discount,
had a fixed interest rate of approximately 2.7%. In this regard, depending on
the investment opportunity, there were advantages of taking the lower rates of
borrowing.
A discussion also took place regarding concerns that had been raised by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) in respect of
property acquisition borrowing. The Committee was advised that the Council
had a robust strategy in place and officers were confident that the Council
complied with the CIPFA guidance in this regard.
With regard to the Fair Funding Review, whilst noting that the Council’s
Medium Term Financial Strategy had identified a £3 million funding gap, one of
the Independent Members asked whether the Fair Funding Review would help
or worsen the situation. The Strategic Director and Deputy Chief Executive
advised that the £3 million funding gap had been identified for 2020/21 and this
figure had been based on the assumption that the Council would receive no
funding from Government. She further commented that it was likely that those
authorities that were responsible for demand-led services such as Social Care,
would benefit the most out of this Review.
Resolved that
(a)

the investment position at 2 November 2018 and the mid-year Treasury
Management Activity Report for 2018/19 be noted; and

(b)

the revised security benchmark criteria, as detailed in paragraph 12 of
the report, be approved with effect from 1 January 2019.

Page 183

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

20/18 Internal Audit & Counter Fraud Progress Report
(Link to Council Priorities: PC8)
The Committee considered a summary of Internal Audit’s work for the period
1 April to 2 November 2018.
The Head of Internal Audit took the opportunity to provide an update on the
work undertaken by the Team during the period and reminded the Committee
that from 1 April 2018, the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud functions had been
combined and assimilated into one team. The Committee noted that the
Counter Fraud officers would be taking on a wider remit to prevent and detect
fraud in addition to their role with regard to fraud investigations.
The Committee noted that the progress report had been refreshed and now
included the Counter Fraud and Investigation activities.
The Head of Audit provided a brief update regarding the National Fraud
Initiative and it was noted that datasets had been submitted to the Cabinet
Office in October 2018. It was anticipated that the results from this exercise
would be released to the Council for investigation in late January 2019.
With regard to Internal Audit performance, the Head of Internal Audit advised
that in addition to the annual assessment of internal audit effectiveness against
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), the performance of the service
had been monitored against a set of agreed key performance indicators, the
details of which were outlined in the report. Given that the PSIAS required an
external assessment to be conducted every five years, the Head of Internal
Audit updated that following the external assessment undertaken in 2018, it
had found that the Internal Audit Service at Elmbridge substantially confirmed
to the PSIAS requirements which was pleasing given the size of the Team at
Elmbridge. Whilst the assessment had highlighted a small number of areas
where improvements could be made, the Head of Internal Audit advised that
these actions had been considered and incorporated into an action plan where
appropriate. The Head of Internal Audit was pleased to update that the
assessment had also identified several areas of good practice.
During consideration of the report and specifically the investigation into
Housing Tenancy and Council Tax Fraud, one of the Independent Members
queried whether PA Housing contributed to the cost of undertaking this fraud
work. The Head of Internal Audit confirmed that the two organisations worked
in partnership and whilst PA Housing did not currently contribute financially to
the fraud work undertaken, a more formalised working arrangement was being
considered. However, the Council was given nomination rights for those
properties that were recovered which was a benefit to the Council in that it
could assist with reducing the temporary housing bill.
In answer to a question regarding internal fraud and the process undertaken in
this regard, the Head of Internal Audit advised that the Council had a
Confidential Reporting Policy which set out the whistleblowing guidelines which
Page 184

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

were based on best practice. A referral in box was also in place for
whistleblowing which was monitored regularly, and any instances of
whistleblowing were reported to the Committee. The Head of Internal Audit
confirmed that to date, no whistleblowing cases had been reported.
One Member asked whether the public could report any allegations of fraud
through the Council’s website. The Head of Internal Audit commented that
information in this regard was available on the website and all allegations were
treated as confidential. As some of the Committee had been unable to find
information regarding whistleblowing on the Council’s website, the Head of
Internal Audit agreed to look at this and refine the search facility as appropriate.
One Member sought clarification as to how the list of planned audits was
established and whether they were carried out by a dedicated Internal Audit
team or whether there was the opportunity of using other staff to assist. The
Head of Internal Audit provided the Committee with the details of the resources
available in respect of Internal Audit which included not only himself (40 days a
year) and the Internal Audit Manager at Elmbridge but also an additional
60 days a year that were bought from Surrey County Council. With regard to
the list of planned audits, the Head of Internal Audit advised that this list was
developed following discussions with Heads of Service, consideration of the
Risk Registers and in the light of any emerging national trends. Benchmarking
with the other Surrey Districts and Boroughs was also undertaken. In respect
of using other staff to assist with audits, the Head of Internal Audit explained
that in order to maintain the professional independence there was a need to
ensure that the Internal Audit staff were independent from the areas that they
were auditing and furthermore audits were required to be undertaken by
qualified auditors in line with the professional standards.
Resolved that the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Progress Report for the
period 1 April to 2 November 2018 be received and noted.
21/18 Information Item
(a)

Audit Progress Report and Sector Update
The Committee received Grant Thornton’s Audit Progress report for the
Audit of the 2018/19 Statement of Accounts together with a Sector Update.
Members noted that Grant Thornton had commenced planning
processes for the 2018/19 financial year audit and early substantive
testing would begin in early 2019.
With regard to the Sector update, which provided a summary of
emerging national issues and developments for the Public Sector as a
whole, the Committee was advised that there were two that directly
impacted the Council, specifically:



the Consultation on Financial Resilience Index; and
the impact of the Fair Funding Review.
Page 185

These Minutes should be referred to in conjunction with the Minutes of the subsequent meeting
of the Council, where they are presented; and for completeness to the next relevant meeting
when the Minutes are adopted.

(b)

Skills Audit / Health Check - Verbal Update
The Head of Internal Audit reminded the Committee that when Members
had considered the Audit and Standards Health Check in January 2017,
it had been proposed that this be brought to the Committee in the
Autumn.
However, having considered this further, it was felt it would be more
sensible to circulate the self-assessment checklist and skills audit to the
Committee in June each year so that any changes to the membership of
the Committee as a result of the new Municipal Year arrangements,
could be taken into account and relevant training needs could then be
identified.
The Committee agreed this approach and noted that the Forward Plan
would be updated accordingly.
------The meeting commenced at 7.00 pm and concluded at 8.06 pm

A. Coomes
Chairman
Democratic Services Officer
Mrs. T. Hulse

Principal Committee and Member Services Officer

Other Officers in attendance
Mrs. S. Selvanathan
A. Cooper
A. Harrison
S. White
Mrs. A. Gale

Strategic Director and Deputy Chief Executive
Head of Finance
Head of Legal Services
Head of Internal Audit
Corporate Group Accountant

Others in attendance
Ms. S. Ironmonger
Ms. A. Banister

Engagement Lead, Grant Thornton
Engagement Manager, Grant Thornton

Page 186

Appendix ‘A’
ELMBRIDGE BOROUGH COUNCIL
RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
Risk can be defined as uncertainty of outcomes. Risk is always present and a certain
amount of risk taking is inevitable if the Council is to achieve it’s objectives
Purpose, Aims and Objectives
The Council is responsible for delivering a wide range of services and the
purpose of this Strategy is to effectively manage potential opportunities and
threats to the Council achieving its objectives.
This Risk Management Strategy has the following aims and objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Integration of Risk Management into the culture of the Council.
Raising awareness of the need for Risk Management by all those connected
with the delivery of services (including Partners, Delivery Agents etc).
Enabling the Council to anticipate and respond to changing social, political
environmental and legislative conditions.
Minimisation of injury, damage, loss and inconvenience to residents, staff,
service users, assets etc; arising from or connected with the delivery of
Council services.
Introduction of a robust framework and procedures for identification, analysis,
assessment and management of risk, and the reporting and recording of
events, based on best practice.
Minimisation of the cost of risk.

To achieve these aims and objectives, the following strategy has been adopted:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Establish and maintain clear accountabilities, roles and reporting lines across
all Council services.
Acquire and develop the necessary skills and expertise.
Provide for risk assessment in all decision-making processes of the Council.
Develop a resource allocation framework for Risk Management.
Ensure appropriate consideration of risk within all Council decisions, reviews
of service performance and subsequent improvement plans.
Develop toolkits, procedures and guidelines for use across the Council.
Develop arrangements to measure performance of Risk Management
activities against the aims and objectives.
To make all Partners, Providers and Delivery Agents aware of the Council’s
expectations on risk, both generally as set out in its Risk Management Policy,
and where necessary in particular areas of service delivery.

Page 187

Accountabilities, Roles and Reporting Lines
A framework has been implemented that addresses the following issues:
• The different types of risk – Strategic, Operational and Reputational.
• Where they should be managed.
• Corporate, Directorate and Team roles and accountabilities.
• The need for a “driving force” within the Council.
• Prompt reporting of accidents and losses etc.
In most cases, Risk Management follows existing Service Management
arrangements – certainly Operational Risk is best managed in this way i.e. by the
very people who manage service delivery. Strategic Risk is best managed at
Council Management Board level.
However, to enhance the linkages between the two, the Council has also
established a Corporate Risk Management Group, that is accountable to the
Council Management Board and is the “driving force” behind developing and
implementing the Risk Management Strategy. The Group is led by the Head of
Finance includes Legal, Risk Management, Audit and Health & Safety /
Emergency Planning support and frontline services, together with other
appropriate Officers.
Risk Management covers the whole spectrum of risks and not just those
associated with finance, health & safety and revenue. It also includes risks
associated with public image (reputation), the environment, technology,
contracts, partnerships and projects etc.
Risk Management is about adopting a planned and systematic approach to the
identification, evaluation, control and finance of the risks facing the Council and is
the means of minimising the impact on operations and services caused by the
occurrence of adverse events.

Page 188

Framework for Risk Management Responsibilities
Group

Role

Council

Approval of Risk Management Strategy

Cabinet

Monitoring of Risk Management Strategy
and Corporate/Strategic Risk Register

(Reporting Annually)
Audit & Standards Committee
(Reporting Six Monthly)
Council Management Board

Review of Risk Management Strategy and
monitor development of Risk
Management
To ensure the Council manages risk
effectively through the Risk Management
Strategy and considers Strategic Risks
affecting the Council. To give advice to
Cabinet regarding Risk Management
practices and to determine the Council’s
risk appetite.

(Reporting Quarterly)

Corporate Risk Management
Group

Develop Risk Management Strategy and
supporting framework. Monitor and review
Strategic Risk Register.

(Reporting Quarterly)
Directorate Management Teams
(Reporting Quarterly)
Heads of Service
(Reporting Monthly (where
appropriate) to Officers with risk
management responsibilities)
Employees

Implement Strategy and monitor Service
Operational Risk Registers, reporting on
progress and emerging issues
Manage risk effectively in their service
area, reporting on how risks are managed
and preparing Operational Risk Register

To effectively manage risk as part of their
job and report risks to their Service
managers

Page 189

Risk Manager

To develop and maintain a Risk
Management Strategy providing for the
identification, assessment, control and
finance of risk.
To develop and maintain a Risk
Management framework for Impact and
Probability classifications and revised
review periods in accordance with best
practice.
To liaise with Heads of Service and other
Risk Owners to establish appropriate and
proportionate risk management
responses to identified risks.
To collate risk information and prepare
reports as required including the
maintenance of Operational and Strategic
risk registers and assessments on
Covalent.
To provide Risk Management training to
officers and Members as required.

Internal and External Audit

To provide advice and guidance on the
management of risks relating to the
design implementation and operation of
systems of internal control.

Page 190

Risk Management Reporting

Members
Hold CMB accountable for the
effective management of risk by
Council Officers.
Audit and Standards Committee
Review Risk Management strategy
and monitor development of risk
management

Directorate Management
Teams - (DMT)
▪
▪

▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪

Assess & prioritise risks
to Service Delivery Plans
and Objectives
Monitor Risk
Management progress,
including Business
Continuity Planning and
report to CRMG
Can seek assistance
from members of CRMG
Communicate with &
involve employees in
Risk Management
Facilitate workshops to
assign risk responsibility
in Directorates
Identify and exchange
information on emerging
risks with CRMG
Analyse information
Identify risks to new
projects/changes to
service delivery

Council Management
Board - (CMB)

Corporate Risk Management
Group (CRMG)

▪

Report to CMB quarterly
including:
▪ Group Work Plan
▪ Trends and potential
movements in Strategic
Risks
▪ Cost of risk
▪ Common areas of risk for
projects

▪

Ensure that the
Council manages
risk effectively,
through the
development of a
Corporate Strategy
To consider
Strategic Risks
that may threaten
the Council’s
priorities and
reputation

Form sub groups as required
for common projects e.g.
Business Continuity, Health &
Safety, and Information
Security
Attend DMT meetings as
required to provide information
and discuss common issues as
the need arises.
Issue appropriate advice as
common themes are identified

Heads of Service
Employees
Manage risks in service areas,
compile Risk Register and report
to DMT

Liaise with Manager to assess
risks and report any risks in
their job

Identify and implement mitigating actions
to reduce and eliminate risk

Page 191

Skills and Expertise
Having established roles and accountabilities for risk management, the
Council must ensure that it maintains the skills and expertise necessary. It is
achieving this by a programme of risk management training and learning
opportunities that addresses the needs of Members and Officers – this
programme will not be “one size fits all”.
The programme includes relatively high-level risk appreciation seminars aimed
at Senior Managers (including Directors) and more detailed and intensive
courses focusing on best practice in risk management.
Risks and the Decision-Making Processes
Risk needs to be addressed at the point at which decisions are being taken.
Where Members and Officers are asked to make decisions, they should be
advised of the risks associated with recommendations being made. The
training programme described in the preceding section enables this to happen.
However, the Council needs to be able to demonstrate that it took reasonable
steps to consider the risks involved in a decision. Decisions will be requested
through reports to the Council Management Board (CMB) and Members and
risk implications must be addressed within these reports.
There needs to be a balance struck between the efficiency of the decisionmaking process and the need to address risk. Risk assessment is seen to be
particularly valuable in options appraisal.
Current reports for decisions are expected to address any appropriate options
that have been considered. This would be an appropriate point at which to
address the risks involved with those options. This doesn’t guarantee that
decisions will always be right. but the important point is to demonstrate that
the risks have been considered and to have evidence that will support this.
All Committee reports include a section on Risk Management
Supporting Improvement
Risk Management has been incorporated into the business planning process
for all Divisions with a risk assessment of all services being undertaken as part
of drawing up Service Delivery Plans. Risk control measures feed into Service
Improvement Plans.
Risk Management Assisting Project Management
A consistent approach to identifying, assessing and controlling risk has been
adopted and included in the Council’s project management system. This is
being used in all major Council projects, including the development of all
Council Strategies.

Page 192

Integrating Risk Management with Performance Management
Risk Management has been integrated into the existing performance
management system, primarily through the use of risk analysis in the
formulation of Service Delivery Plans and monitoring of Corporate Plan
Objectives.
Involvement of Elected Members
Elected Members have a key contribution to make to the assessment of risks
to the objectives of Corporate Strategies and must be included in
assessment exercises. Reports to Cabinet and Committees include a
demonstration that risks have been addressed. An annual report to Cabinet
will be made that will review existing Risk Management arrangements,
identify key Strategic Risks and the way in which they will be managed.
Toolkits, Procedures and Guidelines
Toolkits for Risk Management and Contract Management which form part of
a series of initiatives have been agreed by Council Management Board.
Further details of these initiatives are provided in Section 7, Risk
Management developments.
Performance Management
A performance management framework has been developed to monitor the
impact of risk management activities and the success of the Risk
Management Strategy itself. Individual indicators have been developed to
measure achievement of the aims and objectives. The following table forms
the basis of the performance management framework.

Page 193

Aim/Objective
Integration of Risk
Management into
Culture of the Council
and raising awareness
of Risk Management

Indicator
•

•

•
Enabling and managing
Change

•

Minimisation of losses,
•
injury and inconvenience
•
•
•
•
Introduce Risk
Management
Framework
Minimising Cost of Risk

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Staff recognising their
role and responsibility
for Risk Management
in their area
Number of reports for
decision that
demonstrate risk
assessment
Responses to Audit
and Inspection reports
Assessment of how
we managed
individual major
changes.
Number and length of
disruptions to services
Levels of Fraud
Level of complaints
Levels of Write-Offs
Level and cost of
Claims
Feedback from staff
Compliance with
standards
Annual Insurance
Premiums
Level of Reserves
Uninsured Losses
Management and
Project Costs
Claims experience

Page 194

Measurement
•
•

By staff surveys
(extension of existing
surveys)
By audit of reports and
documentary evidence
of decisions

•

Post implementation
reviews

•

Measure response
and recovery
performance as well
as frequency
Informed by existing
strategies and
processes.
Did we do it?
Is it any good?

•

•
•
•

Will incorporate
budget and capital
project overspends,
fraud, write-offs,
claims, premiums etc.
plus any loss in
external resources.

